
 

  

 
WISCONSIN 

STATE  COUNCIL  ON 
ALCOHOL  AND 

OTHER  DRUG  ABUSE 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
December 14, 2012 

MEETING 
 
 
 
 
 

Michael Waupoose SCOTT WALKER 
Chairperson Governor 

 



 

This page has been intentionally left blank and does not contain any information. 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 



State Council on Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse (SCAODA) 
Strategic Plan Goals: July 2010 – June 2014 

 

PRIMARY OUTCOME GOAL AND MEASURE: 
The immediate primary outcome goal is to have Wisconsin no longer ranked in the top ten states for 
Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse (AODA) and problems related to AODA.   

SCAODA’s primary outcome goal is in accord with the Wisconsin Department of Health Services’  
“Healthiest Wisconsin 2020 Plan” regarding unhealthy drinking and drug use that results in negative 
consequences. Its goals are also consistent with the HW2020 lifespan and equity objectives and the data-
driven priorities established through the current “Wisconsin Epidemiological Profile on Alcohol and 
Other Drug Use, 2008.   

 
SCAODA GOALS: 

1. SCAODA with its committees 

a. Effectively fulfill the statutory dictate to provide leadership and direction on AODA 
issues in Wisconsin 

b. Is a highly recognized and respected body that serves as the voice to whom the Governor, 
legislators, local coalitions, and media turn for guidance on AODA issues 

c. Develop and exhibit broad collaborative leadership and aligned action across multiple 
sectors to advance progress on SCAODA goals. 

2. Wisconsin cultural norms change to people vehemently rejecting social acceptance of the AODA 
status quo and demand and support methods to transform the state’s AODA problems into healthy 
behavioral outcomes. 

3. There will be educated Wisconsin citizens regarding the negative fiscal, human and societal 
impacts of AODA in WI (e.g., risk and addiction, prevention, stigma, treatment and recovery, 
including the racial and gender disparities and inequities relative to these issues). 

4. Wisconsin will have adequate, sustainable infrastructure and fiscal, systems, and human resources 
and capacity:  

a. For effective prevention efforts across multiple target groups including the  
disproportionately affected 

b. For effective outreach, and effective, accessible treatment and recovery services for all in 
need1. 

5. SCAODA   with its committees provide leadership to the Governor and Legislature and other 
public policy leaders to create equity by remedying historical, racial / ethnic and other systems 
bias in AODA systems, policies and practices that generate disparities and inequities toward any 
group of people.  

                                                 
1 Effective prevention, treatment and recovery services include:  using science and research based knowledge, trauma informed, culturally 
competent, and use of practices that have promise to work. 
 

1



This page has been intentionally left blank and does not contain any information. 
 
 

2



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tobacco-Free Environment 
 
American Family Insurance is a tobacco-free environment.  
We prohibit the use of tobacco products everywhere, by 
anyone, at all times. 
 
• Use of tobacco products is prohibited in all interior and 

exterior spaces, including inside your vehicle while on 
company-property and in parking ramps and parking lots. 

 
• We ask that you refrain from using tobacco products while 

using our facility. 
 
Thank you for your cooperation.  We welcome you and look 
forward to serving you! 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Meeting Coordinator – Please make sure the meeting 
participants are aware American Family is a Tobacco-
Free Environment.   
 

 

3



This page has been intentionally left blank and does not contain any information. 
 
 

4



  
  
  

SSCCAAOODDAA  22001122  MMeeeettiinngg  DDaatteess  
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

The meeting dates are: 
March 2, 2012 
June 8, 2012 

September 7, 2012 
December 14, 2012 

 
 

5



  
  
  

SSCCAAOODDAA  22001133  MMeeeettiinngg  DDaatteess  
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

The meeting dates are: 
March 1, 2013 
June 7, 2013 

September 13, 2013 
December 13, 2013 

 
 

6



 
 
Scott Walker 
Governor 
 
 
 
 

   
 

State of Wisconsin 
 

State Council on Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse 
1 West Wilson Street, P.O. Box 7851 

Madison, Wisconsin  53707-7851 

 
 

Michael Waupoose 
Chairperson 

 
Duncan Shrout    

Vice-Chairperson 
 

Scott Stokes 
Secretary 

 

www.scaoda.state.wi.us 

December 14, 2012 
MEETING AGENDA 
9:30 a.m. – 3:30 p.m. 

American Family Insurance Conference Center 
6000 American Parkway, Madison, WI  53783 

Building A, Room A3151 
American Family General Information: (608) 242-4100 ext. 31555 or ext. 30300 

 
Please call Louis Oppor at (608) 266-9485 or email Louis.Oppor@Wisconsin.gov to advise if 
you or your designee will not attend the meeting. 
 
9:30 a.m. I. Introductions / Welcome / Pledge of Allegiance / Announcement 

Noise Level / Agenda – Michael Waupoose 
  • Ashleah Bennett, Office Operations Associate assisting with 

SCAODA staffing duties 
 

9:45 a.m. II. Review / Approval of September 7, 2012 Minutes – 
Chairperson….pp. 25-36 
 

9:55 a.m. III. Public Input (maximum 5 minutes per person) – Chairperson 
 

10:10 a.m. IV. Committee Reports 
  SCAODA Goals 
  Provide 

Leadership 
Change the 
Culture 

Educate 
Citizens 

Sustain 
Infrastructure 

Address 
Disparities 

   
  • Executive Committee Report – Chairperson….pp. 37-40 

o Request from DCF to appoint SCAODA Council 
Member to the DCF Secretary’s Council on Child 
Welfare….p. 40 

   
  • Diversity Committee – Rebecca Wigg-Ninham and Sandy 

Hardie….pp. 41-48 
   
  • Intervention & Treatment Committee – Norm Briggs and 

Roger Frings….pp.49-56 
  o Motion: Policy goal of SCAODA that people seeking 

treatment for Nicotine Use Disorders have same 
access to same range of treatment services as those 

7

mailto:Louis.Oppor@Wisconsin.gov


offered for the treatment of other substance use 
disorders….p. 56 

   
  • Planning and Funding Committee – Joyce O’Donnell….pp. 

57-76 
  o Motion: Planning and Funding supports the 

Department of Public Instruction (DPI) in retaining 
the current $1.3 million allocation received from the 
Penalty Surcharge into the next biennium and for the 
foreseeable future…..p. 68 

  o Motion: To support the addition of the definition of 
intoxicant (“any alcohol beverage, substance used 
contrary to x. 941.316, controlled substance, 
controlled substance analog or other drug, or any 
combination thereof”) to the vehicle statutes that apply 
to the OWI laws….p.69 

   
  • Prevention Committee – Scott Stokes….pp. 77-82 
  o Motion: To form a marijuana prevention ad-hoc 

committee that would develop a recommendation 
report and a public health response to issues related to 
marijuana use….p. 82 

   
11:30 a.m. V. Report on Combined Mental Health and Substance Abuse Needs 

Assessment Ad-hoc Committee – Rebecca Wigg-Ninham and Don 
Pirozzoli 
 

11:45 a.m. VI. Lunch 
 

12:15 p.m. VII. By-Law Modification 
  • The proposed change is to modify or revise Article III, 

Section 8 of the By-laws to read “Individuals who are not 
council members but are serving on committees and who are 
not employed by an agency or business compensating them 
for the time spent at committee meetings may receive a 
stipend for committee meeting attendance in addition to 
compensation for their expenses.” (Article III, Section 8 
currently states: “Members of a council shall not be 
compensated for their services”). 

o Rational: Consumer input is vital.  In order to 
maximize consumer input it may be necessary to 
provide stipends to those individuals who may not be 
compensated by their employer in order for them to 
participate in Committee meetings. 

 
   

8



12:40 p.m. VIII. State Agency Reports 
  • Department of Revenue – Matthew Sweeney….p. 83 

 
1:00 p.m. VIII. AODA Services for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing – Denise Johnson 

 
1:30 p.m. IX. Drug Endangered Children – David Forsythe, Wisconsin Department 

of Justice 
 

2:00 p.m. X. Report on Affordable Care Act – Jon Peacock or Sarah Eskrich, 
Wisconsin Council on Children 
Shell Gross – Wisconsin Council on Mental Health 
 

2:30 p.m. XI. Agenda Items for March 1, 2013 Meeting 
  • 2012 Epidemiological Study 

• Workforce Development 
• Department of Children and Families Update 
• DPI/DOT Update on Surcharge (through Executive 

Committee or Planning and Funding) 
 

2:45 p.m. XII. Announcements – Joyce Allen and Lou Oppor 
• Synar Annual Report 

http://www.dhs.wisconsin.gov/substabuse/INDEX.HTM  
 

3:00 p.m. XIII. Adjourn - Chairperson 
       
 

2012 Meeting Dates 
March 2, 2012 
June 8, 2012 

September 7, 2012 
December 14, 2012 

2013 Meeting Dates 
March 1, 2012 
June 9, 2012 

September 13, 2012 
December 13, 2012 

9

http://www.dhs.wisconsin.gov/substabuse/INDEX.HTM


 
 
Scott Walker 
Governor 
 
 
 
 

   
 

State of Wisconsin 
 

State Council on Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse 
1 West Wilson Street, P.O. Box 7851 

Madison, Wisconsin  53707-7851 

 
 

Michael Waupoose 
Chairperson 

 
Duncan Shrout    

Vice-Chairperson 
 

Scott Stokes 
Secretary 

 

 

 
STATE COUNCIL ON ALCOHOL AND OTHER DRUG ABUSE  

MEETING MINUTES 
June 8, 2012 

9:30 a.m. – 3:30 p.m. 
American Family Insurance Conference Center 
6000 American Parkway Madison, WI  53783 

Room A3141 
 
Members Present: Sonya Sidky, Allison Malcolm for Craig Harper, Kevin Moore, Steve Fernan,  
Norman Briggs, Joyce O’Donnell, Tina Virgil, Charlotte Rasmussen, Mark Seidl, , Scott Stokes, 
Michael Waupoose, Rebecca Wigg-Ninham, Sandy Hardie, Douglas Englebert, Mary 
Rasmussen,  
 
Members Excused:  Sandy Pasch, Garey Bies, Dennis Baskin, Duncan Shrout, Roger Frings 
 
Members Absent: 
 
Ex-Officio Members Present:  Raymond Luick, Matthew Sweeney, Robert Williams, Raymond 
Perez, Anne Hoffmann, Joann Stephens  
 
Ex- Officio Members Excused: Randy Glysch 
 
Ex- Officio Members Absent:  Thomas Heffron, Colleen Baird, Linda Preysz,  
 
Staff:  Joyce Allen, Sarah Coyle, Michael Quirke, Lou Oppor, Lori Ludwig, Tanya Hiser, Faith 
Boersma, Arlene Baker, Lila Schmidt, Susan Endres, Christy Niemuth, Lee Ann Cooper, 
Bernestine Jeffers, Gail Nahwahquaw, Linda Harris   
 
Guests: Don Pirozzoli, Todd Campbell, Dave McMaster, Tami Bahr, Paul Krupski, Emmanuel 
Scarbrough, Nina Emerson, Jill Gamez, Tami Bahr, Bill McCulley, Sue Gadacz, Leland Wigg-
Ninham, Mark Clark, Ari Becker, Kisha Shaw 
 
I. Introductions/ Welcome/ Pledge of Allegiance/Announcement Noise Level – Michael 

Waupoose  
 
Mr. Waupoose welcomed the group.  The group recited the Pledge of Allegiance.  Mr. 
Waupoose began the meeting at 9:30 A.M.  Members, staff and guests introduced 

10



themselves. Mr. Waupoose reminded everyone to speak up and be clear so that all can be 
heard.  He welcomed as new members Dr. Anne Hoffmann from UW Stevens Point, 
representing the UW System and Dr. Raymond Perez from the Department of Veterans 
Affairs.  Representative Garey Bies has been appointed to SCAODA, but was unable to 
attend today’s meeting.  Mr. Waupoose pointed out that Allison Malcolm was Craig 
Harper’s designee for today’s meeting. 
 

II.     Review/Approval of March 2, 2012 Minutes—Michael Waupoose 
 

Joyce O’Donnell made a motion to approve the minutes of March 2, 2012 and Mark 
Seidl seconded the motion.  The minutes were adopted unanimously. 

 
III.  Sue Gadacz Recognition—Michael Waupoose 

 
Michael Waupoose presented Sue Gadacz with an award with the engraving of the state 
seal and the words (which he read): “With thanks and appreciation for your many years 
of leadership and dedicated service to the State Council on Alcohol and Other Drug 
Abuse, June 8, 2012.”  Mr. Waupoose indicated that he had attended Sue’s going away 
party and reported that she had touched many lives and was thankful for all that she had 
done for the citizens of the State.  Ms. Gadacz thanked the Council and expressed 
gratitude for the opportunity to work for the State.  She reported that she has worked with 
an incredible group of people and was happy to be a part of the team.  She expressed 
thanks in particular to Joyce Allen and Linda Harris and reported that she looks forward 
to working in partnership with them in the future.  The group gave Ms. Gadacz a warm 
round of applause.   

 
IV.  Public Input—Michael Waupoose 
 

Dave Macmaster thanked Sue Gadacz for the work she has done for the WiNTiP Project.  
He indicated that he was reporting on behalf of WAADAC—Wisconsin Association of 
Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors.  He provided the group with a handout from the 
Substance Use Practitioners Association for Recovery (SUPAR).  The new association 
for alcohol and drug abuse counselors is only $35 a year for membership, while 
WAADAC is $125 per year, SUPAR is more economical.  Students can join for just $15.  
SUPAR will serve the interests of those in the field.  For example we need to have input 
into the New Scope of Practice recommendations as many of us are non-degreed.  
Wisconsin needs a workforce and the workforce needs a voice.  There will be new 
recovery coaches and peer specialists.  We have no lobbyist like the Mental Health 
Council and NASW (National Association of Social Workers).  This new association 
should be that voice.  He asked the group to get the word out.  People with disorders will 
benefit.  He then thanked the State Council. 

 
V.  Combined Mental Health and Substance Abuse Needs Assessment Ad-Hoc 

Committee—Michael Waupoose, Joyce Allen, Rebecca Wigg-Ninham and Don 
Pirozzoli 

11



 
Rebecca Wigg-Ninham referred the group to pages 31 through 40 in their packets to view 
the “Charge” to the Committee,  the “Membership” of the Committee, SAMHSA’s 
“Priorities and Vision,” and a “Summary” of the Ad-hoc Committee on Needs 
Assessment’s work to date.  Joyce Allen read the “Charge” to the Committee, basically to 
work with the Bureau of Prevention Treatment and Recovery on a Needs Assessment for 
the State.  She continued that SAMHSA has asked states to develop joint needs 
assessments (mental health and substance use disorders) of behavioral health needs and 
services in their state.  Therefore, both Councils need to work together.  Ms. Wigg-
Ninham introduced Mr. Don Pirozzoli, the Co-Chair of the Ad-hoc Needs Assessment 
Committee along with herself.  Joyce Allen pointed out that this Ad-hoc Committee 
sunsets on June 30, 2013.  Ms. Wigg-Ninham reported that SCAODA’s Executive 
Committee approved the “Charge” to the Committee allowing work to proceed prior to 
the next full Council meeting.  She then read from the “Summary” on page 39 of the 
packet.  She reported how supportive state staff have been moving the group along.  
There have been five general meetings.  The Bureau has shared prevalence data and 
designed a short survey to include consumers’ viewpoints.  Consumer satisfaction is very 
important.  Scott Stokes relayed that the Prevention Committee felt that there wasn’t 
adequate representation of Prevention perspectives on the Ad-hoc Committee and 
therefore made a motion to include a Prevention representative on the Ad-hoc 
Committee.  He therefore referred the group to page 162 of their packets and read the 
motion to appoint a Prevention Committee representative to the Ad-hoc Committee 
for combined mental health/substance abuse needs assessment.  Rebecca Wigg-
Ninham seconded the motion explaining that members were appointed at the last 
Council meeting and it was after Mr. Stokes had left for the day.  The oversight was 
unintentional.  Norman Briggs spoke in support of the motion adding that 20% of the 
block grant is set-aside for prevention expenditures.  Joann Stephens felt that it makes 
sense for a representative from each SCAODA Committee be appointed to the Ad-hoc 
because a representative of each of the Committees of the Mental Health Council was 
represented on the Ad-hoc Committee.  At that point, Mr. Waupoose asked for a vote on 
the motion.  There were all ayes and the motion passed unanimously.  Mr. Don 
Pirozzoli indicated that he was honored to Co-Chair the Ad-hoc Committee with Ms. 
Wigg-Ninham and recognized Brad Munger, Tim Connor, Mike Quirke and Amy Owen 
as state staff who do great work for the Committee.  Mr. Waupoose asked that updates of 
this Committee remain as standard agenda items on the SCAODA agenda going forward. 

 
VI.  Youth Risk Behavior Survey (YRBS)—Steve Fernan 

 
Mr. Steve Fernan reported that he started out in his career as a probation officer and then 
started working in AODA prevention and violence prevention in the Department of 
Public Instruction.  He pointed out that prevention works.  He continued that we spend 
significant time talking about treatment and alternatives to incarceration and now we 
need to spend significant resources on prevention.  Twenty percent of the Substance 
Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant (SAPT BG) has to be spent on prevention. 
Mr. Fernan reported with the latest YRBS data there is now a twenty year trend line from 
1993 to present and we can look at every two year cycle since 1993.  Today, he will focus 

12



on substance abuse indicators only, although the survey does look at other prevention 
areas as well.  The survey design includes its administration on every odd-numbered 
year.  There is a cooperative agreement with the CDC (Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention) and the states to administer a common 99-item survey.  There are eight 
priority areas:  Developmental Assets; Weapons and Violence; Suicide; Alcohol and 
Other Drugs; Tobacco; Sexual Behavior; and Nutrition and Exercise.  He presented 
summary graphs showing the following: 

• Females comprised 49% of the sample, males 51% 
• 25% of the sample were 9th graders; 24% 10th; 25% 11th; 25% 12th graders. 
• Hispanic/Latinos comprised 7% of the sample; Black (Non-Hispanic) 9%; White 

(Non-Hispanic) 78%; All other Races 1%; Multiple Races 3%. 
• The percentage of students who ever smoked cigarettes daily, that is, at least one 

cigarette every day for 30 days fell from 25% in 2001 to 9% in 2011. 
• The percentage of students who, in the last 30 days, rode in a car with a driver 

who had been drinking alcohol or drove a car when they had been drinking 
alcohol dropped from 39% to 23% and 15% to 9% respectively. 

• The percentage of students who had at least one drink of alcohol on one or more 
of the past 30 days increased from 48% to a high of 54% in 2001 and then fell to a 
low of 39% in 2011. 

• The percentage of students who had five or more drinks of alcohol in a row, that 
is, within a couple of hours, on one or more of the past 30 days fell from 29% in 
1993 to 24% in 2011. 

• The percentage of students who drank before the age of 13, increased from 48% 
in 1993 to a high of 54% in 2001 and then fell to 39% in 2011. 

• The percentage of students who used marijuana one or more times during their 
life or in the past 30 days rose from 23% and 11% respectively in 1993 to high of 
43% and 25% in 2001 and then fell to 37% and 22% in 2011.  This is a negative 
trend. 

• Regarding other drugs, there are a small number of students who are using other 
drugs. Only 8.4% of students indicated that they used inhalants one or more times 
in their lives (sniffed glue, breathed the contents of aerosol spray cans, or inhaled 
any paints or sprays to get high).  Only 4% of students indicated that they used 
any form of cocaine, including powder, crack, or freebase one or more times 
during their life.   

• Eighteen percent (18%) indicated that they have taken a prescription drug (such as 
Oxycontin, Percocet, Vicodin, codeine, Adderall, Ritalin, or Xanax) without a 
doctor's prescription one or more times during their life.   

 
At this point, Mr. Fernan distributed an Executive Summary of the 2011 YRBS from the 
Wisconsin Department of Public Instruction.  The document includes data on all eight priority 
areas.  Tanya Hiser asked if there was a question on the survey regarding texting and driving.  
There was not.  Mr. Fernan invited her to send an email to him and he would see if he could get 
it into the next survey.  Norm Briggs asked a question about alcohol and marijuana and why the 
trends were up in 2001.  Mr. Fernan could not offer an explanation, however he relayed that in 
2010 the Safe and Drug Free Schools funding was lost.  Then in 2011, there was a loss of 
categorical funds for AODA prevention in the state.  He suggested that perhaps trends will 

13



increase.  Mary Rasmussen asked if you could make a link between the trend and programs.  Mr. 
Fernan replied that he could not.  Even if the relationship is statistically significant, we cannot 
say one event caused the other.  Joann Stephens asked why not.  If you see an increase in AOD 
use with a decrease in funds, why can’t you say the lack of programming caused an increase in 
AOD use?  Mr. Fernan informed the group that correlations do not mean cause and effect.  Paul 
Krupski asked if there were any questions on the survey on how they access substances.  Mr. 
Fernan indicated that alcohol is most frequently obtained from friends or an adult.  Mr. Krupski 
asked another question about why the state data could not be broken down by county.  Mr. 
Fernan indicated that there are not enough students from each school.  Each student would need 
to be surveyed.  That is why an on-line accessible survey would help.  Ms. Stephens asked if 
schools participate on-line, would they be able to pull out local data?  Mr. Fernan indicated that 
the data would go to CDC first.  It would probably be too small of a number of students to 
analyze.  Sonya Sidky asked if there were data from neighboring states.  Mr. Fernan indicated 
that there were.  Wisconsin’s data have been higher than the national average.  Emmanuel 
Scarbrough asked if there were data for Alabama, Mississippi and Florida.  Mr. Fernan explained 
that you can go to the CDC website and see each state.  There are some differences but largely 
the same trends.  Raymond Perez felt that this is an exceptionally useful study.  Regarding 
veterans in the state, there has not been a deployment of troops as large since World War II.  
What is the effect on family members?  Mr. Fernan informed him that the survey is administered 
in Fort McCoy.  There is an opportunity to customize local surveys with more questions.  He 
asked Dr. Perez to call him and he would look into it.  At that point Mr. Waupoose thanked Mr. 
Fernan for the good work and the group for good questions. 
 

VII.  Adolescent Treatment—Tami Bahr and Jill Gamez 
 
Tami Bahr is the Assistant Director of Connections Counseling and Co-Chair of the Child, 
Youth and Family Treatment (CYFT) Sub-Committee with Jill Gamez, who is also the Executive 
Director of Arbor Place.  Ms. Bahr and Ms. Gamez presented a power point titled, “Adolescent 
Treatment in Wisconsin.”  The first point Ms. Bahr made was that early intervention is key to 
decreasing costs of substance use disorders.  Research has shown that early initiation (age 14 or 
younger) results in an increased incidence of substance abuse or dependence diagnoses as adults 
(age 21 or older).  There are significant effects on the developing brain of AOD use among 
adolescents.  Nationally, about 3% of children age 12 and 13 and about 12.4% of adolescents age 
14 and 15 used alcohol in 2010.  There were about three million initiates of other drugs in 2010 
age 12 and older.  Other drugs include pain relievers, inhalants, tranquilizers, hallucinogens, 
stimulants and sedatives, cocaine, heroin, and marijuana.  The following statistics reflect the 
number of American youth, aged 12-20 who try substances for the first time, every day, on 
average: 

• 11,318 try alcohol = Baraboo, Little Chute, Suamico 
• 6,488 try marijuana = Kimberly, Fox Point, Delafield 
• 2,786 try cocaine = Lake Delton, Lodi, Oconto Falls 
• 386 try heroin = Kellnersville, Pound, Rock Springs 

Ms. Bahr pointed out that alcohol is the leading cause of death among youth, nationally.  How 
does Wisconsin compare? 

• 2009 National Survey of Substance Abuse Treatment Services (NSSATS) data 
 Nationally - 7.2% of AODA clients served are adolescents 

14



 Wisconsin – 7.0% of AODA clients served are  adolescents 
• 2009 Treatment Episode Data Set/Human Services Reporting System (TEDS/HSRS) data  

 Nationally about 7.6% of AODA clients served are adolescents.   
 Wisconsin about 1.8% of AODA clients served are adolescents. 

 
Ms. Bahr summarized that the divergent statistics from the TEDS/HSRS data set indicate that 
Wisconsin is either underserving adolescents or undercounting.  Jill Gamez pointed out that the 
Child, Youth and Family Treatment (CYFT) Sub-committee evolved out of the Project Fresh 
Light Grant.  The primary goal of the Sub-committee is to increase access to and capacity of 
adolescent screening, intervention, treatment, and recovery opportunities.  Ms. Gamez indicated 
that we need to do a better job.  In 2009, 241 facilities identified themselves as providing 
services to adolescents in Wisconsin.  As of May 2012, only 70 agencies have indicated that they 
continue to provide adolescent treatment services.  Mr. Waupoose asked if there were any new 
providers.  Ms. Gamez indicated that she didn’t know.  Ms. Bahr thought that it was still the 
same providers.  Jill Gamez reviewed CYFT’s strategies to increase access to and capacity of 
adolescent screening, intervention, treatment and recovery opportunities:  

• Support the Bureau of Prevention Treatment and Recovery (BPTR) partnership with 
Mental Health America to publish the Project Fresh Light website 
including an on-line version of Adolescent Treatment Provider Directory  
(www.projectfreshlight.com) 

• Explore collaboration with the WI Council on Mental Health.  State Council CYFT Sub-
committee to identify ways to strengthen a comprehensive approach to adolescent 
treatment.  

• Review current Sub-committee membership to identify gaps in representation and seek to 
fill those gaps.  

• Increase family involvement and support of families in treatment 
• Support ongoing efforts of BPTR in child, youth and family substance abuse treatment 

 
Ms. Gamez pointed out the second goal of the CYFT Sub-committee: To raise awareness of 
adolescent treatment and treatment standards with insurance companies.   They have met with 
insurance companies’ representatives once on best practices and plan to continue a Payers 
Workgroup and seek representatives from insurance companies to participate in CYFT.  The 
third goal of CYFT is: To educate targeted groups/people within Wisconsin about issues related 
to adolescent substance abuse treatment.  Towards this goal, CYFT plans to hold bi-monthly 
meetings in all regions of the state to encourage and provide involvement opportunities.  
Ms. Gamez pointed out that CYFT’s fourth goal is to increase provider capacity to deliver 
evidence-based intervention and treatment programming.  Training opportunities have been 
offered in implementing the following evidence-based practices:  the GAIN – Global Appraisal 
of Individualized Need, Teen Intervene, Multi-Dimensional Family Therapy, Comprehensive, 
Continuous, Integrated System of Care (CCISC) Model and Celebrating Families.  CYFT’s fifth 
goal is to continue to focus on adolescent opiate treatment.  CYFT’s sixth goal is to deliver 
timely reports to the ITC and engage in solution-based discussions about adolescent and family 
treatment issues. 
 
Ms. Gamez introduced Ari, and his journey to healthy living, Ari’s story:  Ari is a recovering 
young man who initiated alcohol and drug use as an adolescent.  He shared with the group his 

15

http://www.projectfreshlight.com/


story and answered questions about his experience.   Mr. Waupoose thanked Ari for his moving 
story and reminded everyone that behind all the work that we do, are people like Ari.  The group 
gave Ari a warm round of applause in thanks for his story and his journey. 
  
In conclusion Jill Gamez indicated that the Child, Youth and Family Treatment Sub-committee 
(CYFT) would like SCAODA to classify adolescents as a priority population in order to 
effectively identify ways to support prevention, early intervention, treatment and recovery within 
a sustainable environment.   
 
Norman Briggs asked a question about the facilities being surveyed and the quality of their 
services.  Do the services meet the Adolescent Framework standards?  Tami Bahr responded that 
the survey instrument did not ask about the quality or type of services, only whether or not they 
provided services by age.  Mr. Briggs continued that the age of adolescents as a policy issue 
should be examined.  Younger women, for example aged 19-22 are significantly different from 
women in their 30’s.  What age constitutes adolescent treatment? Ms. Bahr thought age 25 and 
under.  We do need to consider how we re-classify things.  Traditionally it was those age 18 and 
up went into the adult system.  However, that doesn’t work.  They bail out of treatment more 
often.  Steve Fernan asked about the distribution of adolescent services by County.  He thought 
each County has to provide adolescent treatment services as a requirement of the block grant.  
However, adolescent treatment services are voluntary according to Mark Seidl.  Kewaunee 
County provides adolescent services through a contract.  Ms. Gamez pointed out that we don’t 
have adolescents coming in the door and asking for treatment.  We need systems to screen, 
identify and refer.  Mr. Seidl pointed out that adolescent treatment is a specialty and there are 
significant differences on how to do it.  Joann Stephens suggested utilizing peer run groups.  
Consumer driven groups give parents support.  Ms. Gamez indicated that there are Parents 
Anonymous groups around the state that are great.  They aren’t in every County but where they 
are, they provide great support for parents.  Mary Rasmussen agreed that it is rare to find parents 
who bring their kids into treatment.  She asked Ms. Gamez what she would like to see.  Ms. 
Gamez responded that she would like to see screening tools implemented in schools, primary 
health care settings and other systems that touch adolescents.  We need to identify areas of risk 
and facilitate referrals, involve parents, and deal with resistance.  Is it more challenging to work 
with kids?  Ms. Gamez responded in the affirmative.  Manny Scarbrough informed the group that 
for many kids in middle-school, they reside with family members who use.  Using AOD has 
become normalized.  What is your experience with that?  Ms. Bahr responded that we need 
systems improvement.  Family systems change.    
 
 

VIII.  Mark Seidl Recognition—Michael Waupoose and Joyce O’Donnell 
 
Michael Waupoose presented Mr. Seidl with a plaque and read its inscription.  “Your direction 
and unwavering commitment to the State Council on Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse have been 
invaluable.   We thank-you for your eighteen years of service including three years as Council 
Chairperson,  June 8, 2012.”  Joyce O’Donnell then explained that she has served with Mark 
Seidl since the Citizens Council (pre-cursor to SCAODA).  We have always known that we need 
to change the culture of Wisconsin.  There was a big conference in 1988.  Agencies that were 
once fractured have come together.  Things are better but we still have a long way to go.  The 

16



beer tax has not risen since man landed on the moon.  The culture in Wisconsin has to change if 
we want to move forward.  Mark Seidl is admirable.  Mr. Seidl responded by indicating he had 
nothing profound to say except that he is retiring in 20 days and it has been an honor to serve 
these eighteen years.  He explained that he has been in the public sector for 40 years.  He thinks 
SCAODA collaborating with the Mental Health Council is fantastic!  There was another warm 
round of applause for Mark Seidl. 
 

IX.  Report on Workforce Survey 
 
Mike Quirke thanked the WAADAC (Wisconsin Association of Alcohol and Drug Abuse 
Counselors) members, Norm Briggs and Dave Macmaster, who participated in the interpretation 
of findings from the Workforce Survey analysis.  Mr. Quirke explained that an electronic survey 
was sent to Wisconsin SACs (Substance Abuse Counselors) and CSACs, (Clinical Substance 
Abuse Counselors) identified by the Department of Safety and Professional Services (DSPS) 
(formerly the Department of Regulation and Licensing).  It was not sent to SACITS (Substance 
Abuse Counselors in Training).  About 1900 surveys were sent out and just about 50% 
responded.  He directed the group to pages 41 through 50 in their packets.  While there is the 
possibility of bias due to the response rate (50%), “the 2012 e-survey does show 
representativeness as evidenced by the proportion of responses received by geographic region 
and the proportion of responses received from racial/ethnic group counselors in comparison to 
the general population (U.S. Census Bureau).”  A table comparing age distribution of counselors 
in 1995 compared to 2012 shows that 55% of the counselors in 2012 are in the age group of 51+ 
(compared to 31% in 1995).  The data show how the 2012 counselors are aging out of the 
profession.  Mr. Quirke directed the group to page 45 of their packets.  Comparing level of 
education among respondents, individuals with associates degrees or high school degrees appear 
under represented.  Those with Master’s degrees represented 54% of the sample.  Counselor’s 
level of education by race/ethnicity shows that there may be disparity in the number of Native 
Americans with Master’s degrees.  There are lower numbers of Master degreed counselors 
among the Native American counselors compared to the other racial/ethnic groups.  This 
information could be relevant for the Minority Training Institute.   Medicaid Reimbursable:  66% 
had Medicaid reimbursement (Master’s) while 44% had less than Master’s degrees and indicated 
that they too, can bill Medicaid.  There were disproportionately fewer Hispanic counselors who 
are Medicaid reimbursable.  The implications of the study were that counselors do want to 
increase their education, 75% said yes.  How?  They are opposed to being required to have a 
Master’s degree  to perform substance abuse counseling but if it is required, then current 
counselors should be grand-fathered in.  They indicated they want 1) more financial aid, 2) better 
wages and reimbursement rates (average wage was $48,570) and 3) more accessible college 
programs.  Mr. Quirke suggested the following actions that could be taken resulting from the 
survey: 

1. There was strong opposition to the requirement of Masters degrees to be required of 
substance abuse counselors.  If a Master’s degree were to become mandatory, survey 
respondents favored a provision to “grandfather” current substance abuse counselors that 
do not possess a Master’s degree. 

2. In order to promote higher education in a field where the prevailing wage does not 
readily support higher education pursuits, it is recommended that financial aid resources 
be expanded and current and prospective counselors be informed of financial aid 

17



resources.  Higher education programs need to be more affordable, accessible, and 
accommodate the schedules of working counselors.  Outreach to Native Americans is 
recommended.   

3. Compared to their presence in the general population, there are fewer Hispanic persons 
employed as counselors.  A disproportionate number do not possess Medicaid approval.  
Outreach to increase Hispanic counselors is recommended.   

4. There are a disproportionate number of substance abuse counselors who are 51 and older 
in Wisconsin.  Within the next 10 to 15 years, up to half of the counselors may age out of 
the workforce.  Outreach to attract younger counselors is critical.  Younger counselors 
also need assistance with obtaining Medicaid approval. 

5. Even with the substitution of a degree for supervised experience hours, Wisconsin’s 
hours of experience for substance abuse counselor certification exceed the national scope 
of practice guidelines discussed previously.  It is recommended that the required 
supervised experience hours be lowered. 

6. In order to have more ready access to workforce planning data, it is recommended that 
Vocational Technical schools, colleges and universities offering substance abuse 
counselor education degrees submit to the Department of Health Services annually a 
count of the number of substance abuse counselor degrees conferred.   

 
There were a number of questions pertaining to whether or not the Affordable Care Act requires 
Master’s degrees to be reimbursable.  Mr. Waupoose indicated that he is trying to correct that 
misperception.  Joyce Allen reported that it is a state decision not a federal decision.  Dave 
Macmaster offered that two-thirds of substance use disorder counselors are women.  There is a 
sense in the field that livelihoods are being threatened.  Rebecca Wigg-Ninham suggested that 
we need to attract the next generation, if 50% are gone, who will be treating the next generation.  
Working with colleges and tech schools is imperative.  Mr. Briggs offered that younger 
counselors also need assistance.  Mr. Waupoose agreed that the younger counselors don’t know 
how to apply for Medicaid.  Rebecca Wigg-Ninham asked that Workforce Issues be placed on 
our next agenda.  Kevin Moore asked who was representing the Department of Safety and 
Professional Services (DSPS) on SCAODA.  Mr. Waupoose reported that the seat is currently 
unfilled.  Mr. Moore recommended that the DSPS seat get filled as soon as possible.  We need to 
get more information.  We need a partnership with the University and DSPS.  We need to know 
who to talk to about this.  We need a report on this at the next meeting.  Mr. Waupoose asked 
ITC to keep this issue going.  We need a strategy, a plan, an idea of how to move this forward.  
Ray Luick asked if we knew how many counselors we need and how many people will need 
services?  Mr. Quirke indicated that yes we can do that.  Who do we need to ask 1) at DSPS—
question about degree, that is, when substance abuse counselors (SACs and CSACs) apply for 
recertification we need to find out their academic degree (as is asked of nurses) and 2) what is 
the number of mental health providers with AOD specialties, that is, LPC (Licensed Professional 
Counselor), LCSW (Licensed Clinical Social Worker) and LMFT(Licensed Marriage and Family 
Therapist)—we don’t know that either.  Raymond Perez suggested working with UW to develop 
a curriculum designed for that purpose.  Charlotte Rasmussen suggested that DSPS do the 
questioning.  She felt that we should complement each other.  Mr. Waupoose felt that this should 
be an agenda item at the next meeting or a Committee report. 
 

X.  State Agency Reports 

18



 
Office of Justice Assistance—Ray Luick 
 
Ray Luick reported on the newly formed Criminal Justice Coordinating Council.  He distributed 
two handouts, “Executive Order #65 relating to the creation of the Criminal Justice Coordinating 
Council” and a press release from Governor Walker’s Press Office dated May 3, 2012, 
“Governor Walker Appoints Eighteen to Criminal Justice Coordinating Council.”  According to 
Executive Order #65, the Council will have four sub-committees:  1) Data 2) Benchmarks 3) 
Treatment Alternatives and 4) Outreach.  There are two Co-Chairs:  Attorney General JB Van 
Hollen and Secretary Department of Corrections Gary Hamblin.  Mr. Luick indicated he is 
looking forward to the Council and the sub-committees getting up and running.  The Council has 
met three times, once as a full Council.  There are exciting aspects to this Council such as access 
to data and coordination between agencies.  This Council and the Department of Workforce 
Development sharing data is a great opportunity.  How do we pull these pieces together?  Joann 
Stephens pointed out that Secretary Gary Hamblin, sits on the Criminal Justice Committee of the 
Wisconsin Council on Mental Health.  Mr. Luick asked that anyone who wants to be on a sub-
committee should get their name to him.  Mr. Waupoose asked where meetings are held.  Mr. 
Luick suggested going to the website OJA@wisc.gov to find out.   
 
Department of Transportation—Sonya Sidky 
 
Sonya Sidky reported that the Department of Transportation (DOT) has a diversion program, 
Intensive Supervision.  However, she is reporting on the Safe Ride program today.  The Safe 
Ride program was created by statute.  DOT administers a grant program and the Tavern League 
Foundation runs the program.  Over the years, DOT has looked at other programs, others could 
compete for the funds.  Currently, the Safe Ride grantee is the Tavern League.  She referred the 
group to data on page 51 of their packets.  Each Tavern League (there are 54 of them) is 
responsible to report the number of rides and cost data to the Tavern League Foundation each 
year.  Some counties have multiple Tavern Leagues.  The DOT grant goes to the Tavern League 
Foundation which in turn disperses funds to the local Tavern Leagues.  The grants are up to 
$20,000 for safe rides from the tavern to home.  Each Tavern League has different ways of 
operating and different costs.  The grant money provides up to 80% of the cost of the rides.  Up 
to $20,000 is available to each Tavern League.  The Tavern League provides 
name/date/bartender/address and keeps meticulous records.  Each Tavern League submits for 
reimbursement.  They provide 20% of the cost.  According to the Tavern League Foundation, the 
2010-2011 survey indicated that about 68,000 rides were given.  Mary Rasmussen asked what 
accounts for Dunn County giving 758 rides with only 3 taverns.  Sonya Sidky suggested that 
some taverns don’t participate, it is too cumbersome with lots of reporting requirements.  Nina 
Emerson shared that only members of the Tavern League, establishments that belong to the 
Tavern League, can participate.  If not a member of the Tavern League, you can’t participate.  
Mark Seidl asked about the percentage of taverns that are members of the Tavern League.  Ms. 
Sidky reported that she could check.  Don Pirozzoli asked about the Lincoln car that gives rides.  
Are there other ride programs?  Ms. Sidky responded that yes, there were.  DOT also funds “Bar 
Buddies” in Prairie du Sac.  Kevin Moore noted that there is a $2,000 difference between total 
cost and cost of rides.  What did the $2,000 go for?  Ms. Sidky responded that it is match for 
rides.  Mr. Waupoose noted that funds were lapsed from the Intoxicated Driver Program last 

19

mailto:OJA@wisc.gov


year.  Why?  Ms. Sidky reported that there was more funding from the IDP surcharge than funds 
needed.  A couple of years ago, a statute changed, up to 80% versus up to 50% of the cost of the 
rides could be grant funded.  Participation fell and the match fell and for awhile DOT carried 
over the funds, but the pile got too big and they returned the money to GPR.  Joyce O’Donnell 
reported that this is a hot issue for the Planning and Funding Committee.  The Tavern League is 
comprised of advocates and lobbyists.  They are the only organization in the Intoxicated Driving 
Program with a designated percentage for funds.  The message is that it is ok to go out and (drink 
too much).  It contradicts (our message).  It is a glaring example.  Elections are coming up.  Ms. 
O’Donnell suggested Council members ask your representative about the set-aside for the Tavern 
League Safe Driver Program funded by the Intoxicated Driver Program.    
 
UW Updates—Dr. Anne Hoffmann 
 
Dr. Hoffman reported that she was from Iowa.  She found it unusual that the church picnics here 
serve alcohol.  The UW system has 180,000 students, 13 universities and 13 colleges.  College 
students drink more than their non-college peers.  Regarding intervention and treatment, there is 
only a .25 FTE for prevention training for 9,000.  There is a 1.0 FTE for all the colleges.  The 
goal is to knit the network together.  Every two years there is a review of policies and practices.  
The UW System looks at how the environment/community can focus on harm reduction.  
Alcohol is a legal product for over half the population.  The focus is on protecting individuals 
and preserving communities.  Milwaukee house parties are an example.  UW-Milwaukee and the 
neighboring community have been working together to address large house parties for several 
years now. Recently, the institution completed a community readiness assessment on the topic 
and is working with the community on continuous improvement. Their work includes both 
students and community members to address these house parties.  Joyce O’Donnell asked how 
many of the colleges and universities have Rathskellers.  Dr. Hoffman reported that many 
universities are getting rid of bars.  Stevens Point has one.  60% of students are of drinking age.  
There has been an improvement of sanctions in residence halls.   
 
Department of Health Services—Kevin Moore 
 
Kevin Moore reported that the Department of Health Services is preparing for the budget cycle.  
Mental health advocates arranged a meeting with DHS in conjunction with staff from the 
Governor’s Office to discuss what is working and what is not working.  Mr. Moore felt that 
SCAODA should also be engaged with the Department and the Governor’s Office.  And so a 
similar meeting was set up with SCAODA’s Executive Committee and Norm Briggs.  Mr. 
Moore indicated that the Governor’s Office needs to be aware.  Mr. Moore shared that Michael 
Waupoose brought up the beer tax issue during the meeting.  Mr. Moore indicated that dialogue 
needs to happen at that level and that he is happy to facilitate.   
 

XI.  President’s Budget—Joyce Allen 
 
Joyce Allen reported that the President’s budget directed SAMHSA to reduce its budget overall 
by 4%.  In particular, a 13% cut was targeted for prevention services and a 4% cut for treatment 
services in the Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment block grant.  The biggest overall 
change for the block grant was that prevention services would be split off from treatment 

20



services so that there would be two grants.  Funding in the proposed budget for Wisconsin is 
$21.9 million (now it is $27.8 million).  The prevention portion is unknown.  The Community 
Mental Health Block Grant is a different smaller grant.   It was $8 million this year.  It will be 
reduced if the President’s budget goes through.  It will be reduced through a formula reduction.  
The biggest thing to watch is if the budget bill doesn’t pass, there will be across the board cuts.  
Dave Macmaster asked about the state budget.  Ms. Allen replied that we are just entering into 
the budget cycle.  Michael Waupoose asked if there is a reduction in the block grant, how would 
it play out at the state level?  Ms. Allen responded that a plan would be developed by the Bureau 
and the Division and based on input, for example using the Epi report or other data, we would 
present a plan for the reduction.   
 

XII. By-Laws Review—Scott Stokes 
 
Mr. Stokes referred the group to the By-laws on pages 52-67 in their packets.  He asked 
members to go through the By-laws and see if there are any changes that they would like to 
make.  The By-laws are four years old.  If there are suggestions for change we would address 
them in September’s meeting.  Please review the By-laws in your Committees.   
 

XIII. Committee Reports:  SCAODA Goals 
 
Executive Committee Report—Michael Waupoose 
 
Mr. Waupoose reported that during December’s SCAODA meeting there was a discussion about 
a bill that passed expanding alcohol establishments’ hours of sale.  SCAODA opposed that bill 
and wanted to let counties and municipalities know that their hours of sale could stay the same or  
more restrictive sales hours could be adopted locally.  Instead of writing letters directly to all the 
counties and municipalities, Kevin Moore suggested we reach out to the League of 
Municipalities.  Therefore, a letter was drafted and sent.  Please see page 69 in the packet.  Lou 
Oppor reported that the League has responded and is happy to put the letter in their Newsletter.  
The letter was drafted by the UW Law School and Nina Emerson.  Mr. Waupoose also referred 
the group to pages 71-2 in their packets to see a sample letter that was sent to legislators in the 
Assembly and Senate in order to facilitate three legislative appointments to SCAODA.  He 
reported that he and Duncan Shrout met with Senator Scott Fitzgerald’s staff and were advised to 
contact certain legislative members’ staff to find a potential appointee to SCAODA.  Michael 
Waupoose reported that he met with Senator Mark Miller’s staff who assured him that the 
appointment would be made by SCAODA’s September meeting.  Representative Garey Bies was 
appointed by the Assembly’s majority party.  Mr. Waupoose then informed the group that 
September’s meeting would include the election of SCAODA officers, and a Nominating 
Committee would be needed to draft a slate of officers.  He asked for any volunteers.  Joyce 
O’Donnell and Rebecca Wigg-Ninham volunteered.  Mr. Stokes indicated he would appoint a 
representative from each Committee.  Mr. Waupoose then asked for a volunteer to participate in 
“Recovery Service Planning,” consisting of two teleconferences and one all-day meeting.  This 
group will be looking at the broad issues regarding recovery service planning, that is, for mental 
health and substance abuse services, what is needed?  Mary Rasmussen volunteered and Joyce 
Allen indicated that someone would be in touch with her regarding dates and times.  Finally Mr. 
Waupoose indicated that he attended a Motivational Interviewing training session with  

21



Menominee Nations.  Gail Nahwahquaw and Scott Caldwell attended.  It was an amazing, 
culturally competent training.  Motivational Interviewing was adopted as an intervention 
strategy.  We are fortunate to have staff like Ms. Nahwahquaw and Scott Caldwell.  Mr. 
Waupoose gave a huge thank-you to both. 
 
Intervention and Treatment Committee (ITC)—Norman Briggs 
 
Mr. Briggs updated the group with ITC’s Annual Report which focuses on increasing access to 
care for specific populations, namely women, adolescents, intoxicated drivers, and older adults. 
The Child Youth and Family Treatment (CYFT) Sub-Committee has defined the Adolescent 
Treatment Framework.  The Wisconsin Women’s Educational Network (WWEN) is updating the 
women’s treatment survey.  Three members of ITC are working with 3 members of Planning and 
Funding Committee on SBIRT (Screening, Brief Intervention and Referral to Treatment).  Roger 
Frings (Co-Chair of ITC) revised the way they categorize complaints in the Office of the 
Insurance Commissioner regarding substance abuse services.  Women’s Treatment Standards 
and Core Values have been defined.  CYFT has coordinated with the Mental Health CYFT 
Committee and WINTIP has seen a second hospital go tobacco-free.  Mr. Briggs made the 
following motion:  That the State Council on Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse develop a set 
of priorities for the 2013 budget and take appropriate steps to inform key decision makers; 
including State agencies and members of the Legislature about the priorities.  Scott Stokes 
seconded the motion.  Mr. Briggs explained that typically SCAODA reacts to bills proposed 
with letters.  He believes that SCAODA needs the ability to testify about bills before the 
legislature.  This way, the Executive Committee can take a stand with the full support of the 
Council.  He explained he didn’t know if it is even necessary or whether current By-laws already 
cover this situation.  Steve Fernan asked how the role of the Planning and Funding Committee 
would change.  Mr. Briggs responded that he didn’t know that it would change.  Bills are 
presented and voted on very quickly.  Monthly and quarterly meetings do not allow for the 
responsiveness that is needed.  Mark Seidl indicated that he strongly supports the motion because 
of the process.  Mr. Waupoose pointed out that having someone with the ability and means to 
respond is a big burden.  Mr. Briggs thought that Committees could determine their respective 
areas of influence regarding budget priorities within their scope.  At that point Mr. Waupoose 
called for the vote.  The motion passed unanimously.   
 
Mr. Briggs then read his second motion:  The State Council on Alcohol and Other Drug 
Abuse recognizes that the treatment of substance use disorders is a specialty profession 
requiring specific training and experience.  The Department of Safety and Professional 
Services has delineated the training necessary for certification and licensing.  The Council, 
therefore, opposes any proposal to eliminate or weaken the specialized training 
requirements necessary for anyone to present themselves as an alcohol and drug counselor, 
substance abuse counselor or other term which implies that the individual has the training 
prescribed by the Department of Safety and Professional Services.  Mark Seidl seconded 
the motion.  Raymond Perez agreed that increased standards for AOD counselors were 
necessary.  Mr. Waupoose asked for a vote and all were in favor except Steve Fernan, Kevin 
Moore and Tina Virgil who abstained.  The motion passed. 
 
Planning and Funding Committee—Joyce O’Donnell 

22



 
Joyce O’Donnell began her report by referencing the Annual Report in the packet.  She thanked 
Lori Ludwig for her work on the Annual Report.  Ms. O’Donnell informed the group that the 
Planning and Funding Committee hosted the Public Forum at the WAAODA conference.  She 
thanked the Bureau staff who attended, Joyce Allen and Lou Oppor and SCAODA Chairperson 
Michael Waupoose for attending as a member of the audience.  She explained that the Public 
Forum is an opportunity for people to get answers to their concerns.  Most of the time at the 
Public Forum was spent on the Scopes of Practice issue.  Concerns continue about certification.  
The Planning and Funding Committee has established an Ad-hoc Sub-committee on SBIRT.  
Lou Oppor informed the group that Scott Caldwell will be staffing the new Ad-hoc Sub-
Committee.  Mr. Briggs shared that at the Public Forum one gentleman, a high school level AOD 
counselor, was concerned about the future.  Two women in recovery shared that they each went 
to school and got their degrees, experience and licensure.  They showed that it can be done.  Ms. 
O’Donnell expressed concern that because of aging-out more people will be retired than 
working.  She also thanked Lou Oppor for duplicating and distributing the National Drug 
Control Strategy Report.  Mr. Waupoose commented on Mr. Briggs statement.  People in 
recovery have challenges in obtaining an advanced degree.  It’s not easy but it can be done.   
 
Diversity Committee—Rebecca Wigg-Ninham and Sandy Hardie 
 
Rebecca Wigg-Ninham informed the group that the Diversity Committee is focusing on the 
website, making it user friendly with cultural competency assessment tool resources.  She 
reviewed the Diversity Committee’s goals and activities.  Gail Kinney, Diversity member, is 
drafting a letter to be sent to treatment agencies statewide encouraging the use of cultural 
competency self-assessments.  A report on the LGBTQ population was presented to the Diversity 
Committee.  It will be shared with SCAODA in the future.  Also, there will be a report 
representing the needs of the Deaf and Hard of Hearing population which Diversity will bring to 
SCAODA perhaps in December.  The largest issue continues to be the Scope of Practice issue.  
Sue Gadacz came to speak to the group regarding the Scope of Practice issue.  Sandy Hardie 
reported that the Diversity Committee continues to work on increasing membership.  They want 
to include more diverse populations at the table.  Raymond Perez indicated he would like to help 
with that.   
 
Prevention Committee—Scott Stokes 
 
Mr. Stokes referred the group to the Prevention Committee’s Annual Report which contains a 
summary of the work of the Prevention Committee already reported on in previous meetings.  
There was the ACE Report (the Alcohol, Culture and Environment Report) and the Prescription 
Drug Report which were printed and widely distributed.  The Prevention Committee completed a 
membership review and as a result new members were added to the Committee.  New Prevention 
Committee members represent minority agencies, law enforcement and the Brighter Futures 
Initiative.  Mary Rasmussen indicated that she wants to be on the Prevention Committee.  Mr. 
Stokes continued that the 911 Good Samaritan Ad-hoc Committee has had two meetings.  They 
will need another four meetings before they can make recommendations regarding opiate 
overdose.  The Parents Who Host Lose the Most billboards are everywhere.  Mr. Oppor 
explained that the campaign needs to be expanded beyond the two events, that is high school 

23



proms and graduations.  The message needs to get to a broader audience.  Mr. Fernan 
commented that as the campaign expands, it should retain its link to branding.  The Ohio Drug 
Free Action Alliance owns the branding.  Scott Stokes announced that the Prevention Conference 
is Monday through Wednesday of next week and the Prevention Committee will be hosting the 
Public Forum on Tuesday.  The Prevention Committee will meet again on July 12th.   
 
Michael Waupoose thanked the Committees for the hard work that they do.  He asked that each 
Committee send him 3-4 items from their Annual Reports, the best highlights.  He plans to put 
them together in an Executive Summary. 
 

XIV. Agenda Items for September 7, 2012 Meeting – Michael Waupoose 
 

• Recovery Presentation 
• By-laws Review 
• Elections 
•  Budget Priority Discussion  
• Update on Workforce Issues 

 
XV. Announcements 

 
• Michael Waupoose announced he will be participating in interviews for Sue Gadacz’s 

replacement 
• Joyce O’Donnell announced that Mark Seidl and Blinda Beason will be joining the 

Planning and Funding Committee 
 
XVI. Adjournment – Michael Waupoose 
 
The meeting adjourned at 3:00 p.m.  The next SCAODA meeting is scheduled for September 7, 
2012 from 9:30am to 3:30 pm in room A3151 of the American Family Complex.  

 
 
 

 
 

24



 
 
Scott Walker 
Governor 
 
 
 
 

   
 

State of Wisconsin 
 

State Council on Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse 
1 West Wilson Street, P.O. Box 7851 

Madison, Wisconsin  53707-7851 

 
 

Michael Waupoose 
Chairperson 

 
Duncan Shrout    

Vice-Chairperson 
 

Scott Stokes 
Secretary 

 

 

 
STATE COUNCIL ON ALCOHOL AND OTHER DRUG ABUSE  

MEETING MINUTES 
September 7, 2012 

9:30 a.m. – 3:30 p.m. 
American Family Insurance Conference Center 
6000 American Parkway Madison, WI  53783 

Room A3141 
 
Members Present: Sonya Sidky, Craig Harper, Linda Harris for Kevin Moore, Steve Fernan,  
Norman Briggs, Joyce O’Donnell, Tina Virgil, Charlotte Rasmussen, Sue Shemanski, , Michael 
Waupoose, Rebecca Wigg-Ninham, Sandy Hardie, Douglas Englebert, Mary Rasmussen, Roger 
Frings, Duncan Shrout, Cory Bruce for Representative Garey Bies, Dennis Baskin 
 
Members Excused:  Sandy Pasch and Scott Stokes 
 
Members Absent: 
 
Ex-Officio Members Present:  Ray Luick, Matthew Sweeney, Katie Bland for Robert Williams, 
Raymond Perez, Anne Hoffmann, Don Pirozzoli, Randy Glysch  
 
Ex- Officio Members Excused:  
 
Ex- Officio Members Absent:  Thomas Heffron, Colleen Baird, Linda Preysz 
 
Staff:  Joyce Allen, Sarah Coyle, Michael Quirke, Lou Oppor, Lori Ludwig, Tanya Hiser, Faith 
Boersma, Arlene Baker, Lila Schmidt, Susan Endres, Christy Niemuth, Lee Ann Cooper, 
Bernestine Jeffers, Gail Nahwahquaw, Sarah Norberg, Bernestine Jeffers, Julianne Dwyer   
 
Guests: Francine Feinberg, Todd Campbell, Dave McMaster, Denise Johnson, Sue Gudenkauf, 
Jill Kenehan-Krey, Dave Macmaster, Nina Emerson, Bill McCulley, Keith Lang, Paul Krupski, 
Keith Lange, Mary Raina Haralampopoulos, Jacob Melson, Recovering guests: Kelly, Tyler and 
Mark Clark 
 
I. Introductions/ Welcome/ Pledge of Allegiance/Announcement Noise Level – Michael 

Waupoose  
 

25



 

Mr. Waupoose welcomed the group at 9:34 AM.  The group recited the Pledge of 
Allegiance.  Members, staff and guests introduced themselves. Mr. Waupoose reminded 
everyone to speak up and be clear so that all can be heard.  He welcomed as new 
members Sue Shemanski representing the Wisconsin County Human Service 
Association, Don Pirozzoli representing the Wisconsin Council on Mental Health, and 
Sarah Norberg the new Clinical Coordinator for the Bureau.  He recognized Francine 
Feinberg for her many contributions, a true pioneer in the field of women’s treatment 
who is retiring from Meta House after decades.  There was a round of applause.  She will 
continue to participate in SCAODA on the ITC Committee.  Ms. Feinberg wanted to 
mention two things to SCAODA: 1) What it takes to recover isn’t covered by insurance.  
Fifty minutes once a week is not adequate.  2) Substance abuse is driving child welfare as 
well as criminal justice.  She recommends bringing more people in from child welfare.  
She thanked the group for the recognition. 
 
Following Ms. Feinberg’s recognition, Lori Ludwig was also recognized for staffing 
SCAODA for the past nearly five years.  Lou Oppor announced that Ms. Ludwig was 
retiring and presented her (me) with a plaque.  I was completely surprised by the gesture.  
I thank-you so much for the opportunity, the challenges and the rewards of working with 
such a committed, accomplished group of experts.    

 
II.  Elections--Joyce O’Donnell 
 

Ms. O’Donnell thanked Lori Ludwig and Francine Feinberg.  She also recognized the 
Nominations Committee members Rebecca Wigg-Ninham and Roger Frings.  She then 
asked for any nominations from the floor for Chairperson, Vice Chairperson or Secretary.  
Hearing none, she made a motion to re-elect current SCAODA officers Michael 
Waupoose for Chairperson, Duncan Shrout for Vice Chairperson and Scott Stokes 
for Secretary.  Mary Rasmussen seconded the motion.  The vote was unanimous in 
favor and the three were re-elected.  

 
III. Review/Approval of June 8, 2012 Minutes—Michael Waupoose 
 

Joyce O’Donnell made a motion to approve the minutes of June 8, 2012 and Duncan 
Shrout seconded the motion.  The minutes were adopted unanimously. 

 
IV.  Public Input—Michael Waupoose 
 

There were no persons present interested in providing Public Comment. 
 

V.  Committee Reports: 
 

• Executive Committee—Michael Waupoose 
 
Mr. Waupoose reported that he, Duncan Shrout, and Scott Stokes held a 
teleconference on August 31, 2012 during which they reviewed the agenda of 

26



 

the upcoming (this) SCAODA meeting, the motions and the budget priorities 
from each of the Committees. 

 
• Prevention Committee—Lou Oppor 

 
Mr. Oppor reported that Scott Stokes was unable to attend today because of 
illness.  Mr. Oppor reported that the Prevention Committee met on May 24th 
and August 15th.  They have been reviewing membership trying to balance 
cultural diversity and the different geographical state regions.  If anyone is 
interested in joining, please let Mr. Oppor or Mr. Stokes know.  Mr. Oppor 
then went on to report on the Public Forum at the Prevention Conference.  
There were about 60 attendees.  The issues discussed were: the 20% set-aside 
from the Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant and how it 
is used; marijuana use; the Good Samaritan 911 Law and limited immunity to 
prevent overdoses.  The Epi Report has been completed and is at the printer.  
It should be out October 1st.  Also discussed was the Parents Who Host 
Campaign. 

 
• Diversity Committee—Rebecca Wigg-Ninham and Sandy Hardie 

 
Ms. Wigg-Ninham reported that the Diversity Committee has had a long 
conversation about the needs of the Deaf and Hard of Hearing community 
pertaining to alcohol and other drugs.  For example, prevention 
advertisements should be captioned.  She indicated that Denise Johnson would 
be presenting at SCAODA in December.  The Diversity Committee is also 
looking for more members from Diverse populations.  The Diversity 
Committee is also concerned about counselor certification and workforce 
issues.  There is a dire need for substance abuse counselors and educational 
programs for those who want additional information.  Minority Training funds 
are a concern for the Diversity Committee and what will happen to those 
funds.  Ms. Wigg-Ninham indicated she has spoken to Senator Hanson about 
an on-line learning program to enable counselors to become billable under 
Medicaid—to lift up the profession.  The Diversity Committee also updates 
the website regularly with items from the National Center for Cultural 
Competence.  Sandy Hardie indicated that she would only add in regards to 
the Scope of Practice issue, she is hearing that trying to get the hours needed 
and required under clinical supervision is very difficult.  Ms. Wigg-Ninham 
announced that she has gone back to school in Green Bay with a substance 
abuse major. 

 
• ITC—Norm Briggs and Roger Frings 

 
Norm Briggs indicated that there have been changes in staffing at ITC.   Lila 
Schmidt has done a sterling job for the past 2 years with Sarah Norberg now 
taking over.  Susan Endres has resigned and Sarah is taking over staffing the 
Child, Youth and Family Treatment (CYF) Sub-Committee, too.  Tami Bahr, 

27



 

the Chairperson of the CYF Sub-Committee has resigned and Jill Gamez will 
take over that position.  CYF is concerned about the number of providers in 
Wisconsin for adolescents.  They are diminishing.  It is not in the interest of 
Wisconsin families to have to go to Iowa for adolescent treatment.  Mr. Briggs 
reported that ITC facilitated the Public Forum at the Rural Institute.  Mr. 
Frings reported that the Public Forum was held at UW-Stout and it was the 
first he had ever attended.  The issues were: 1) access to care, North of  
Highway 10 is very different.  The cost of obtaining treatment is prohibitive.  
There was good Tribal representation at the Forum.  2)  Discussion occurred 
about the Native community and Tribal culture.  It is important to take culture 
into account during the certification process.  Mr. Frings found the Forum to 
be very interesting and looks forward to going back again.  Mr. Briggs 
mentioned that it is important to stick closely to the strategic plan and ITC 
continues to work towards decreasing tobacco use in the State.  He then 
referred the group to ITC’s motion on page 83 of the packet, and made the 
following motion.   
 
“The Intervention and Treatment Committee requests that SCAODA 
send a letter to the Governor’s office requesting an appointment from the 
substance abuse credentialed profession, including independent clinical 
supervisors to the Marriage Professional Counselors and Social Workers 
(MPSW) Board.”  Duncan Shrout seconded the motion.  Discussion:  
Douglas Englebert asked if there was a statute governing the composition of 
the Board.  Mr. Briggs didn’t know.  Mr. Englebert suggested if SCAODA 
does send a letter, it should ask interested candidates to submit an application 
on-line.  Michael Waupoose pointed out that Drug and Alcohol Counselors 
are not licensed, there is a significant difference between certification and 
licensure.  Mr. Briggs thought that was so, but was told yes, licensed.  Sue 
Shemanski indicated it was confusing; we are getting two answers.  Mr. 
Waupoose said there was a significant difference between licensed and 
certification.  Social Workers go to be licensed.  We are only certified.  Social 
Workers can do so much more.  His understanding was that the MPSW Board 
does not govern Drug and Alcohol Counselors in any way.  If there were a 
complaint against a Drug and Alcohol Counselor it would not go there; it 
would go to the Substance Abuse Counselor Advisor Board.  Two or three 
people oversee the applications and problems.  He sat on the Substance Abuse 
Advisory Board and there is a big difference.  That makes this motion 
complicated.  He didn’t know why they would welcome a Drug and Alcohol 
Counselor on the Board when they don’t have oversight of Drug and Alcohol 
Counselors.  He posed the question if Mr. Briggs knew whether or not anyone 
on the MPSW Board was certified for Alcohol and Drug Counseling.  Mr. 
Briggs replied that there is not.  Dave Macmaster argued that there is no 
substance abuse input into that Board at all.  He relayed that when he was 
there, there was no one from certified counselors positions.  There were 
physicians and PhD’s but no Addictionologist.  There was no mention of 
substance abuse issues.  He felt that the motion was a good one and there is a 

28



 

need for a voice on that Board from the substance abuse community.  Mr. 
Waupoose asked for any further discussion.  Hearing none, he called for the 
vote.  There were four votes in opposition (Sidky, Hardie, Englebert and 
Virgil); two abstentions (Mary Rasmussen and Wigg-Ninham); and 
eleven in favor.  The motion passed. 
 
Mr. Briggs then made the following motion:  “The Intervention and 
Treatment Committee requests that SCAODA convene a meeting with 
key representatives from the public and private educational institutions 
in Wisconsin to alert them to the critical need of the current work force of 
substance abuse treatment professionals as well as the need for new 
persons entering into the field for specific education and training 
necessary for them to maintain a viable career as a treatment 
professional.”  Duncan Shrout seconded the motion.  Discussion:  
Raymond Perez asked a question of Mr. Briggs about whether the educational 
institutions were working against the alcohol and other drug abuse 
community.  Mr. Briggs indicated that they were not in opposition but have 
not embraced the AODA curriculum.  Mr. Perez asked if we (SCAODA) sat 
down with the UW System or Technical College System, would they think 
this idea would be viable.  Joyce Allen responded that four years ago, they did 
sit down with the UW System.  The comment was that there were not enough 
people coming to them to seek the degree.  If people were there, they would 
implement the curricula.  Mr. Shrout felt that that was a spurious argument.  
(If they don’t build it, they won’t come.) He felt others should be at the table 
such as Michael Waupoose, Norm Briggs, a DSPS representative and also 
DHS.  Other schools have found a market in Wisconsin.  Our own State 
should have an interest in this.  He was befuddled that they don’t.  Linda 
Harris agreed that having everyone in the same room is imperative.  The 
course content must be accepted by DSPS.  Lou Oppor added that there is no 
training through the State for those who want to be certified prevention 
specialists.  There was a general discussion on how to proceed.  Gail 
Nahwahquaw pointed out that the Survey of substance abuse counselors 
reported on by Mike Quirke at the last meeting—74% of respondents were 
interested in returning to school.  Without further discussion Michael 
Waupoose called for the vote.  There were all “ayes” and no one in 
opposition or abstaining.  The motion passed. 

 
• Planning and Funding—Joyce O’Donnell 

 
Joyce O’Donnell reported that at the July meeting of the Planning and 
Funding Committee Joyce Allen reported on the Affordable Care Act.She 
indicated that Planning and Funding would like to hear from John Peacock or 
Brett Davis.  Please review the July Planning and Funding minutes for plenty 
of information to absorb.  Ms. Allen also brought two reports to the attention 
of the Planning and Funding Committee:  “Forward Health—Your 
Connection to Health Care Coverage and Nutrition Benefits” and “An 

29



 

Evaluation of the Medical Assistance Program.”  She then introduced Duncan 
Shrout and LeeAnn Cooper to report on the Intoxicated Driver Program 
Funding Sub-Committee, and Ad-hoc Committee of the Planning and Funding 
Committee.  Duncan Shrout reported that in 2007 SCAODA passed a motion 
to examine the Driver’s Surcharge Program.  The purpose of the surcharge 
was to assist counties with the cost of the Intoxicated Driver’s Program.  In 
2011 the Planning and Funding Committee formed an Ad-hoc Committee to 
look more closely at the Driver Surcharge Program and resulted in three 
motions being passed at SCAODA.  Again the goal was to increase funding to 
counties who would otherwise use County taxes or Substance Abuse 
Prevention and Treatment Block Grant funds to cover the costs of the 
Intoxicated Driver’s Program.  One of the three motions passed at SCAODA 
asked for a Legislative Audit Committee Report of the Driver’s Surcharge 
Funds Program.  The report of that Committee is in the SCAODA packet.  
LeeAnn Cooper reported that the focus of the study was on the 40% that the 
state receives from the Surcharge and not the 60% that counties receive.  Mr. 
Waupoose asked whether the recommendations address issues of the Tribes 
and Counties that refer Tribal members to counties for IDP assessments and 
Driver Safety Plans which may include treatment and the counties won’t pay.  
LeeAnn responded that the State’s Tribal Relations are talking about this.  
They are talking about strategic change to allow Tribes to get IDP funding.  
Joyce O’Donnell made a motion to accept the Legislative Audit Bureau’s 
“Driver Improvement Surcharge Funding Report,” Report 12-5 March 
2012.  Duncan Shrout seconded the motion.  Without further discussion 
Mr. Waupoose called for a vote.  There were all “ayes,” with no 
opposition and no abstentions.  The motion passed. 
 
Ms. O’Donnell went on to explain that the Planning and Funding Committee 
was interested in the funding that went to the Department of Transportation, 
the Safe Rides Program and the funding that went to the Department of Public 
Instruction to Driver’s Education programs.  How do they decrease the rate of 
OWIs in Wisconsin?  Ms. O’Donnell made the following motion:  The 
Planning and Funding Committee motions to 1) request that the 
Department of Transportation (DOT) provide any information they have 
on the effect of the Safe Rides Program and its impact on decreasing the 
number of people driving intoxicated in Wisconsin; and 2) requests the 
Department of Public Instruction (DPI) provide any information they 
have on the Driver’s Education Program and its impact on decreasing the 
number of people driving intoxicated in Wisconsin.  Duncan Shrout 
seconded the motion.  Discussion:  Steve Fernan agreed that greater visibility 
/transparency is fine.  He would have provided the data and won’t oppose the 
motion.  However, the next step is how SCAODA views the information.  If 
there is impact data, and it shows there is not an impact, are those funds then 
diverted back to the counties?  He is concerned.  There is a significant amount 
of state and federal dollars going to treatment but not prevention.  If we 
cannibalize prevention funds further (10 million dollars in prevention funding 

30



 

has been removed through the Safe and Drug Free Schools cuts), almost all 
remaining prevention funds would be removed from the schools.  Down the 
road Mr. Fernan indicated that DPI would have issues with motions to defund 
Driver’s Ed. Or Safe Rides.  Ms. O’Donnell explained that that was not the 
intent, to remove funding.  She suggested striking words in the motion.  
Duncan Shrout agreed that it was not the Planning and Funding Committee’s 
intent to remove funds.  DPI stood out—with its arguably prevention 
programs and DOT.  Planning and Funding is just asking for effectiveness 
data.  If it is not available, then so be it.  If it is available, it could be presented 
at the next SCAODA or Planning and Funding meeting.  Michael Waupoose 
called for a vote.  There were five abstentions (Fernan, Virgil, Sidky, 
Bruce for Bies, and Baskin).  The rest were “ayes” and the motion passed. 
Ms. O’Donnell added that 744 people could receive treatment with that 
funding (Safe Rides).   
 
Ms. O’Donnell informed the group that Planning and Funding reviewed a 
legal case involving “huffing.”  Nina Emerson explained that she was the 
Director of the Resource Center for Impaired Driving.  In the case mentioned 
the Court reversed a 3rd OWI conviction where the driver was under the 
influence of an intoxicant DFE1,1 and inhalant.  The Court determined that 
DFE1,1 doesn’t fall under the controlled substance list or the definition of a 
drug.  There is a gap in the law.  In 2007, a bill was proposed to broaden the 
definition to include household substances used in a manner not intended.  It 
would have covered this instance.  But, the bill never made it out of 
Committee.  Terese Burceau is involved in the bill and intends to reintroduce 
it.   
 
Ms. O’Donnell reported that Planning and Funding member Pamela Bean 
reported on Biomarkers during a meeting.  Also she recognized Bill McCulley 
for his effective work with the Portage County Coalition.   

 
VI.  2013 SCAODA Budget Priorities—Executive Committee 

 
Michael Waupoose explained that the plan was that each Committee submitted up to 
three priorities and the Executive Committee would then adopt 3-5 priorities.  
However, the Executive Committee decided to adopt them all.  Prevention had 
priorities for underage drinking reduction, strengthening prevention infrastructure and 
reducing OWIs.  Diversity’s priority was to create workforce sustainability (which 
was also a Planning and Funding priority).  ITC prioritized initiatives to increase 
alternative sanctions (also a Planning & Funding priority), improve the integration of 
mental health and substance abuse treatment and increase the capacity of women’s 
treatment (also a Planning and Funding priority).  SBIRT was a priority for Planning 
and Funding in terms of increasing its capacity and funding. Mr. Waupoose conveyed 
that the Executive Committee felt that they all warranted equal attention and support.  
Sandy Hardie felt that the Diversity Committee also identified the priority of having 
an AOD counselor on the MPSW Board.  Mr. Waupoose explained that the Executive 

31



 

Committee did not see it as a budget issue, the Board is not meeting and it just needs 
to be forced to meet.  Ms. Hardie continued that the Board is not meeting because 
staff are not available and budget is not available.  Mr. Waupoose agreed to put the 
issue in with the other budget priorities.  Mr. Shrout also agreed.  Without further 
discussion Mr. Waupoose called for a vote on the budget priorities as they 
appear in the packet under each Committee’s report.  The vote was unanimous 
in favor.   

 
 

VII.  Report on Combined Mental Health and Substance Abuse Needs Assessment 
Ad-hoc Committee—Rebecca Wigg-Ninham and Don Pirozzoli 

 
Ms. Wigg-Ninham reported that the Ad-hoc Committee on Needs Assessment has been 
encouraged to think about how to show a defendable need.  They have looked at over 20 
population groups and 51 indicators.  The framework of the analysis takes into account 
prevalence, access, service array, quality of services and outcomes.  One criteria used to help 
make decisions is when there is a difference between state and national rates.  For example, 
when the state has a 50% withdrawal from treatment rate and the national rate is 30%.  She 
reported that the Ad-hoc group learned that substance abuse is the fourth leading cause of death 
(including accidents).  40% of all accidents involving fatalities are due to alcohol.  She reported 
that the data people are fabulous.  The needs assessment is still a work in progress. 
 

VIII. State Agency Reports  
 
Department of Veteran Affairs (DVA)—Raymond Perez from the Department of Veterans 
Affairs reported on the Veterans Transitional Service and the Veterans Homeless program.  
Recently there has been the biggest deployment of vets since World War II.  They have been 
deployed to Iraq and Afghanistan.  Over 50% of these veterans have depression or PTSD.  30% 
have come forward as being victims of rape and sexual assault.  Even though there is “0” 
tolerance for alcohol and drug abuse, drinking is a way to deal with stress.  The rate of suicide is 
significantly high.  50% of vets think about or try suicide.  There are programs available to 
veterans: education and home loans and grants are available at the state level and they are 
eligible for federal help.  The Veterans Assistance Programs are for homeless or on the verge of 
homelessness veterans.  There they are assessed at intake to determine their needs, plans are 
developed to transition back to society.  The incidence of treatment is high, there are increases in 
problems.  Some judges see an increase in vets in the criminal justice system for AODA and 
mental health problems.  There are now Veteran Treatment Courts in Wisconsin.  To integrate 
vets into society there are job training programs.  The Governor wants to see increases in 
veterans employment and has made a Proclamation that this is the Year of the Veteran.  Because 
of the increase of all the problems, we are seeing an increase in hiring counselors.  The DVA’s 
needs are significant.  DVA is working with Edgewood to get trained in counseling.  Sue 
Shemanski indicated that Champus Insurance does not pay for AOD counseling and that is a big 
problem.  Mr. Perez agreed, that he would be working on that.  Joyce Allen reported that she had 
been invited to do strategic planning with Army One Source on how to improve services to vets, 
or returning active duty soldiers—anyone in uniform.  Julianne Dwyer is our representative on 

32



 

that task force.  There is a need to seek treatment from our networks but our networks don’t 
understand their stressors.  We need to do that.  There is a Dry Hooch Summit and a Warriors  
Summit with Mental Health America.  Ms. Allen indicated that collaboration is important, as is 
telemedicine.   
 
Office of Justice Assistance (OJA)—Ray Luick 
 
Mr. Luick wanted to update the group on the State Criminal Justice Coordinating Council.  There 
are twenty-two members with the Secretary of the Department of Corrections (DOC) and the 
Attorney General Co-Chairing.  They will be meeting on September 13th at 1 South Pinkney St.  
Public Comment is on the agenda.  The Council has four Sub-Committees: 1) Outreach 2) 
Benchmarks/Goals 3) Data Sharing 4) Treatment Alternatives.  He also announced that grants for 
funding specialty Courts are in the grants section of the OJA website (OJA@wisconsin.gov).  He 
reported on the effort of the Treatment Alternatives and Diversion program (TAD) to address the 
future of the programs and legislative activity.  The TAD project participated in drafting 
language to create the Community Corrections Act to guide and shape local programs and to 
move towards evidence-based programs that are measureable.  There are at least 30 local 
Criminal Justice Councils (nine have been given TAD grants).  Mr. Luick also informed the 
group that he had participated in a Great Lakes Inter Tribal Council meeting where 
pharmaceuticals, overdose deaths and addiction to pain killers were identified as a priority issue.   
 
 

IX.  Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorders (FASD) Proclamation and Awareness Day—
Bernestine Jeffers and Raina Haralampopoulos 

 
Ms. Jeffers introduced Ms. Haralampopoulos who presented a segment from a CD titled 
“Recovering Hope:  Mothers speak out about Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorders.”    Ms. Jeffers 
then made the point that in Wisconsin 67% of new mothers have consumed alcohol in the 
months before pregnancy compared to 54% nationally.  Nine percent of new moms in Wisconsin 
consume alcohol in the last three months of pregnancy whereas 7% do so on the national level.  
Dr. Georgiana Wilton at the University of Wisconsin  Department of Family Medicine in 
Madison is Director of the FASD Treatment outreach project.  Ms. Harlampopoulos pointed out 
that there was a copy of the Governor’s Proclamation that September 9, 2012 was Fetal Alcohol 
Spectrum Disorders Awareness (FASD) Day on page 128 of the packet.  Ms. Harlampopoulos 
then introduced an individual with an FASD who spoke of his life issues related to FASD.  He is 
a representative of the organization “Self Advocates with Fetal Alcohol Syndrome” or SAFAS.  
The group gave the presenters a warm round of applause. 
 

X. Review of By-Laws—Scott Stokes 
 
Lou Oppor quickly reviewed SCAODA’s By-laws from the packet.  He referred the group to 
page 143 containing Article V, Amendments—“The by-laws may be amended, or new by-laws 
adopted, after thirty days written notice to council members by a two-thirds vote of the full 
council membership present at a regularly scheduled meeting.”  Norm Briggs presented an 
argument that the Mental Health Council has lots of consumer input.  In the Substance Abuse 
field there is not nearly that kind of consumer input.  There was a concern expressed in the ITC 

33

mailto:OJA@wisconsin.gov


 

that we should maximize consumer input of individuals not employed by treatment agencies or 
the state, who would not otherwise be compensated from consumers who might have to take off 
from work. The By-laws say that  (Article III Section 8) “Members of a council shall not be 
compensated for their services…”  It does not say “Committee members.”  Lou Oppor pointed 
out that statute 15.04 (1) (c) “Members of councils and committees created under this general 
authority shall serve without compensation, but may be reimbursed for their actual and 
necessary expenses incurred in the performance of their duties…”  In addition, Mr. Oppor 
pointed out that SCAODA does not have a budget.  There is no statutory budget authority.  
However, he acknowledged that the proposal could be brought to the next SCAODA meeting 
and brought to a vote.  Discussion:  Mr. Shrout suggested that if authority is not in the By-laws 
perhaps this requires legislation.  Mr. Waupoose asked how the group got to the assumption that 
consumers don’t participate because there is not compensation.  Mr. Briggs offered that this has 
also been a concern of consumers on the Mental Health Council.  Mary Rasmussen pointed out 
that when she was employed by the school district she was unable to attend often because it was 
hard to get away.  The school would have to pay for a substitute.  Mr. Oppor recognized that in 
the Department of Safety and Professional Services (DSPS) Board members do receive stipends 
of about $25.  Mr. Shrout argued that if this change requires a legislative change, anyone not 
compensated could be; Council members as well as Committee members.  Mr. Waupoose 
suggested that they bring this to a vote at the next Council meeting.   
 

XI.   Recovery Presentation—Faith Boersma, Kelly Bentley, Camille Burnett, Tyler 
Lybert and Mark Clark 

 
Tyler and Kelly shared their personal stories of recovery.  The group warmly welcomed and 
congratulated them with applause.  Faith Boersma presented a handout with “SAMHSA’s 
Working Definition of Recovery.”  The working definition of recovery from mental disorders 
and/or substance use disorders is, “A process of change through which individuals improve  their 
health and wellness, live a self-directed life, and strive to reach their full potential.  Ms. Boersma 
reported that SAMHSA has delineated four major dimensions that support a life in recovery: 
health, home, purpose and community.  Recovery encompasses the belief that recovery is 
possible and the commitment to make it happen.  Recovery has many pathways and is supported 
by peers and allies.  It is culturally based and influenced and supported by addressing trauma.  It 
is not: “What’s wrong with you?”  It is: “What happened to you?”  Two organizations which 
focus on recovering people are: “The Alliance for Recovery Advocates,” (AFRA) and “The 
Recovery Implementation Task Force.”  Mark Cark was introduced as the Director of AFRA.  
He explained that he is focused on dual recovery for both youth and young adults.  He is trying 
to build a membership and trying to lift the veil of anonymity.  He announced that September is 
Recovery Month and that AFRA is sponsoring a “Recovery Walk” from Tellurian to Ahuska 
Park.  There will be a band and a cook out.  Ms. Linda Harris will be attending.  He pointed out 
fliers on the table in the back of the room.  Mr. Clark explained that a goal of AFRA is to reduce 
stigma, not just for people but for counselors, too.  Recovery is real.  It is a celebration!  There 
are peer leadership trainings.  More people in recovery are needed on our committees.  It is good 
to see SCAODA and the Mental Health Council working together.  Duncan Shrout expressed 
gratitude for the recovery movement.  He felt that people’s experience is so different.  Mr. 
Waupoose noted how important it is to have people come to tell their stories.  We get caught up 

34



 

in things like by-laws, but we shouldn’t lose sight of the effect on people’s lives.  Mr. Waupoose 
expressed thanks to all the presenters today. 
 

XII. Great Lakes Inter Tribal Council (GLITC) Strategic Prevention Enhancement 
Plan Presentation—Jacob Melson, Behavioral Epidemiologist for GLIT-Epi 
Center 

 
Jacob Melson introduced the topic by explaining that about one year ago, GLITC received an 
enhancement grant to develop an inter- tribal prevention plan.  There are 12 member tribes, all 
eleven Wisconsin Tribes plus one from Michigan.  He reviewed for the group key elements in 
the development of the plan. 

• Prescription drug abuse prevention focus 
• Policy consortium 
• Epidemiologic work groups 
• Multi-disciplinary 
• Tribal representatives 
• On-line survey 
• Strategic Prevention Framework 
• Traditional cultural beliefs 
• Strength-based traditional medicine wheels 

 
He explained that culture is prevention.  However the plan also included Strategic Prevention 
Framework components such as data collection and analysis, coordination of services, technical 
assistance, evidence-based practices and evaluation.  He referred the group to the publication of 
the plan document, “Great Lakes Inter-Tribal Council, Inc. Prevention Strategic Plan,” funded by 
SAMHSA, Strategic Prevention Enhancement Grant #18649.  In it, the traditional Medicine 
Wheel which is a holistic inter-tribal symbol is combined with the strategic prevention 
framework (SPF).  The medicine wheel involves mental physical, emotional and spiritual 
components.  The East of the wheel is infancy and in combination with the SPF represents data 
collection, analysis and reporting.  The South is capacity building, reimbursement and knocking 
down silos.  The West is implementation.  The model presents opportunities to address issues 
with secondary data; share relevant data, implement a shared data system and coordinate 
resources.  They are looking to increase reimbursement for screening and assessments from 
traditional healers.  Mr. Melson can be reached at 612 624-1322 or google GLITC for the 
documents.   
 
 

XIII. Agenda Items for December 14, 2012 Meeting 
 
Michael Waupoose summarized agenda items for the December 14th meeting.  They are: 

• Deaf and Hard of Hearing Presentation 
• 2012 Epidemiological Study 
• Affordable Care Act 
• Workforce Development 
• Drug Endangered Children presentation 
• Department of Children and Families Update 

35



 

• DPI/DOT Update on Surcharge (through Executive Committee or Planning                 
        and Funding) 
 

XIV. Announcements—Joyce Allen and Lou Oppor 
 

• Joyce Allen reported that DHS has entered into contracts for two regional 
pilots.  There will be two grants of $200,000 per year for three years.  Both are in the 
Western regions:  1) Chippewa, Eau Claire, Pierce, Barron and Dunn counties are 
teaming up to develop shared services and 2) La Crosse, Monroe and Jackson counties 
are also collaborating on the development of core services and shared services. 

• Nina Emerson reported that “Paula’s Story” the video of a woman with an 
impaired driving history is on CD and there is an electronic version, too.  Ms. Emerson 
has four CDs with her or you can email her if you want more copies. 

• Lou Oppor announced that the Bureau has received approval to fill Lori’s 
position. 

• The Alcohol and Other Drug and Mental Health Conference will be held at 
Chula Vista on October 24th and 25th. 

• Mr. Oppor announced that the Bureau has applied for a “Partnership for 
Success Grant,” which is a prevention grant targeting hi-risk counties for prescription 
drug abuse.   

• Denise Johnson was impressed with the captioning on the DVD.  She asked if 
an electronic version was available to share.  Bernestine Jeffers has CDs and the 
electronic version. 

 
XV. Adjournment – Michael Waupoose 
 
Duncan Shrout made a motion to adjourn.  Norm Briggs seconded the motion.  The meeting 
adjourned at 3:30 p.m.  The next SCAODA meeting is scheduled for December 14, 2012 from 
9:30am to 3:30 pm in room A3151 of the American Family Complex.  

 
 
 

 
 

36



 
 
Scott Walker 
Governor 
 
 
 
 

   
 

State of Wisconsin 
 

State Council on Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse 
1 West Wilson Street, P.O. Box 7851 

Madison, Wisconsin  53707-7851 

 
 

Michael Waupoose 
Chairperson 

 
Duncan Shrout    

Vice-Chairperson 
 

Scott Stokes 
Secretary 

 

www.scaoda.state.wi.us 

Minutes  
July 13, 2012 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING AGENDA 
3:00 p.m.– 4:00 p.m. 

Teleconference Dial-In Number:  877-336-1828 
Access Code:  4878507 

Please call Lori Ludwig at (608)267-3783 or e-mail Lori.Ludwig@wisconsin.gov 
to advise if you or your designee will not attend the meeting. 

 
I.  Call Meeting to Order—Michael Waupoose 

 
Michael Waupoose called the meeting to order at 3:13 p.m. 
Mr. Waupoose, Mr. Shrout and Mr. Stokes in attendance.  Lori Ludwig and Lou Oppor 
staff present. 

 
II. Review Motions from June 8th  SCAODA meeting – Michael Waupoose 
• ITC motion that the State Council develop a set of priorities for the 2013 budget 

and take appropriate steps to inform key decision makers; including State 
agencies and members of the Legislature about the priorities. 

 
Mr. Waupoose asked how we should move forward regarding the budget priorities.  Mr. 
Oppor suggested if Mr. Waupoose would ask the Committees to develop budget 
priorities—we could get a letter out before the January meeting of the Legislature.  Mr. 
Waupoose agreed.  Leave it up to the Committees but limit it to the identification of the 
top three budget priorities.  Mr. Stokes agreed that it made sense.  Mr. Shrout pointed 
out that if each Committee comes up with three priorities, that would be 12 altogether 
and that’s a lot!  Mr. Oppor suggested that there may be duplicates.  Mr. Shrout asked 
how SCAODA would vote on this.  Mr. Waupoose thought that if brought forth at 
SCAODA, it could result in lengthy discussions.  Mr. Shrout suggested that the 
Committees could submit their choices to Michael Waupoose and let the Executive 
Committee decide.  Mr. Waupoose liked the idea.  He reiterated.  Let’s ask the 
Committees to be thoughtful about this.  We need to plan 6-9 months in advance.  The 
last State Plan was a laborious process.  If the Committees select their top three choices 
and return them to the Executive Committee, then the Executive Committee could pick 
the top 5 and take them to SCAODA for approval.  Mr. Waupoose asked what the 
timeline would be.  Mr. Oppor thought that we should get notice out to the Committees 
right away.  Committees should get their budget priorities to Lori Ludwig by August 
16th.  Lori will send the priorities to the Executive Committee members by August 22nd.  
Thursday August 23rd is the next Executive Committee meeting.   

37

mailto:Lori.Ludwig@wisconsin.gov


The Planning and Funding Committee meets July 20th.  The Diversity Committee meets 
July 16th and ITC meets August 14th.  The next Prevention Committee meeting has not 
been scheduled.  Lori Ludwig will follow-up with the Committees.   

 
III.  Follow-up on Legislators appointments—Group 

 
Mr. Shrout reported that he is following-up on a lead from Senator Harsdorf’s assistant 
to contact Senator Leah Vukmir.  He will contact her next week.  Mr. Waupoose 
indicated that he will follow-up with Senator Mark Miller’s assistant and stop in their 
office next week. 
 

IV.  Other Issues—Group 
• P & F suggestion that “Committee Reports” (a standard agenda item on the 

SCAODA agenda)  be moved to the morning part of the SCAODA agenda 
 

Mr. Shrout presented his argument on behalf of the Planning and Funding Committee to 
move “Committee Reports” to the morning half of the SCAODA agenda and then the 
guest presentations would have to be moved to the afternoon.  He felt that moving 
“Committee Reports” is timelier and may precipitate more discussion since many 
members leave after the guest presentations now.  Mr. Stokes indicated that it was not 
an issue for him and he could work with it.  Mr. Waupoose agreed.  They asked staff to 
make the changes for the September meeting. 

 
• Elections 

 
Mr. Waupoose asked for clarification on how to ask to be on the ballot in September.  
Mr. Shrout thought that Joyce O’Donnell (Chairperson of the Nominations Committee) 
already knew that Mr. Waupoose wanted to re-run.  Mr. Waupoose indicated he would 
touch base with Joyce O’Donnell.  Mr. Stokes indicated that he has already spoken to 
Joyce O’Donnell about re-running.   

 
Mr. Waupoose asked the group if there were any other issues or concerns.   

• Duncan Shrout reported that the SBIRT Ad-hoc Committee would be meeting 
two weeks from today with eight members:  Shel Gross, Steve Dakai, Dave 
Macmaster, Duncan Shrout, Pamela Bean, Tom Fuchs, Dr. Rich Brown and a 
representative of from the Employee Assistance Programs field.   

• Mr. Oppor reported that he has just submitted a federal grant application on 
prevention of prescription drug abuse.  Wisconsin’s nine highest risk counties 
have been identified and if selected they could receive approximately $100,000 
per year for three years.  Mr. Waupoose asked how they determined the rates of 
prescription drug abuse.  Mr. Oppor replied that there are risk factors such as 
hospital admissions, depression and anxiety diagnoses, dropout rates, and 
Medicaid data on those in the “Lock-In” program (a Medicaid designation for 
those who appear to be Dr. shopping or pharmacy shopping).  Then factors are 
weighted and through a statistical analysis the highest risk rates were identified.  

•  Mr. Oppor also announced that a new Treatment Coordinator in the Bureau 

38



has been selected and will be starting in August and taking over staffing ITC. 
•  Mr. Oppor also discussed the fact that the Child, Youth and Family Sub-

Committee currently does not have staff since Susan Endres has resigned. 
 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 3:52 p.m.—Michael Waupoose 
 
 
 

 
 

 

39



40



 
 
Scott Walker 
Governor 
 
 
 
 

   
 

State of Wisconsin 
 

State Council on Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse 
1 West Wilson Street, P.O. Box 7851 

Madison, Wisconsin  53707-7851 

 
 

Michael Waupoose 
Chairperson 

 
Duncan Shrout    

Vice-Chairperson 
 

Scott Stokes 
Secretary 

 

www.scaoda.state.wi.us 

Diversity Committee Meeting 
Monday July 16, 2012  

9AM-11:00AM 
Teleconference  

 
Attendees: 

1. Steve Dakai 
2. Denise Johnson 
3. Rebecca Wigg-Ninham 
4. Gail Kinney 

 
Excused Absent: 

1. Michael Waupoose 
2. Angela Rivera 
3. Jerry Kaye 
4. Sandy Hardie 

 
Unexcused Absent 

1. Angela McAlister 
 

State Staff: 
 Gail M. Nahwahquaw 
 
Diversity Committee Meeting Minutes: 

I. Call to Order: 
Meeting was called to order at 9:10AM.  There was not a quorum present to approve the 
minutes. 
                   

II. SCAODA Update: 
Rebecca offered the update, new members to SCAODA include; Representative Garey 
Bies-Rebulican, District 1, Raymond Perez (Veterans Administration), Dr. Ann 
Hoffmann (UW Systems-Steven’s Point). 
 
Recognition of Sue Gadacz and Mark Seidl for their service to the SCAODA. Steve 
Fernan, DPI offered a presentation on the Youth Risk Behavior Survey (YRBS) noting 
90% of prevention funds have been cut from the schools. There are no longer dedicated 
AODA prevention funds for the schools.  
 

41



Tami Barr-provided an adolescent treatment presentation, noting adolescents are 
underserved in the public sector system. Rebecca co-chairs an ad-hoc committee working 
to develop a needs assessment for the 2013-2015 combine Mental Health and Substance 
Abuse Block Grant. The committee is made up of members from both the Mental Health 
Council and the SCAODA and state staff. SAMHSA have offered guidance on priorities 
and a mission statement this committee is interested in working on data that defines 
services or gaps in services by diversity, military issues, trauma justice, health 
information/technology and recovery. The committee is actively meeting, reviewing data 
and surveys; family satisfaction surveys, recovery oriented risk indicators. Recently the 
emphasis was on the Deaf, Deaf-Blind and Hard of Hearing community with a report out 
of the Deaf Summit earlier in 2012. Rebecca will let the ad hoc committee know of 
Denise’s interest in the committee.  
 
Mike Quirk-Provided a follow-up presentation on the Workforce Survey report. Mike 
compared the recent survey to one conducted in 1995. The 2012 survey revealed that 
56% of those responding possess a master’s degree. 75% of WI Substance Abuse 
Counselors desire to advance their education. Survey revealed disparity in Native 
Americans with master’s degree and Hispanics in the field and Medicaid reimbursable. 
Also Wisconsin’s hours of experience required exceeds the national scope of practice 
recommendations. Mike suggests recommending that the DSPS require an education 
update as part of the recertification process. ITC and Diversity Committees are working 
together and sent an email to Kevin Moore, DHS Executive Assistant to advocate his 
support to get a DSPD representative to the SCAODA. Steve recommends a discussion 
with the education providers to advocate for a bachelor’s degree in behavioral health 
counseling combining mental health and AODA education in one four year degree. 
Rebecca is aware UW-Milwaukee’s Master’s in Social Work program has an AODA 
emphasis. It’s noted that the National Association for Alcoholism and Drug Abuse 
Counselors (NAADAC) makes a strong case for on-line education. Not everyone agree 
on-line training is any cheaper, and the socialization factor is important for adult learning. 
Steve asked about the Minority Counselor Training Program what will happen? Gail N-
the goal is to get an RFP of the training dollars out by this summer yet.  
 
Ray Luick mentioned the Criminal Justice Coordinating Committee and Sonya Sudki 
gave a report of the DOT-Safe Ride Program.  
 
There could be impacts from the President’s budget if passed; with a 13% decrease in 
Prevention and decreases in treatment estimated as well.   

 
III. By-Laws:  

Denise recommends the SCAODA increase the participation of consumers on the 
Council. Rebecca will bring this message to the SCAODA. 
                

IV. Budget Priorities: 
Steve-More treatment dollars overall. Gail K-Social Work and AODA Counselor training 
are two different skill sets in terms of who provides treatment. The prevention issue came 
out of substance abuse treatment shield, but really fits better in public health. Substance 

42



abuse treatment keeps trying to own prevention, but it and treatment are on opposite ends 
of the spectrum. Gail agrees that marginalized members of the community have poor 
access to money for education. Recommend adding substance abuse counselor training as 
eligible for loan repayment programs, i.e. working in underserved communities for up to 
2 years, including rural areas. Denise-where do people go if they don’t have insurance 
and are deaf and hard of hearing? Gail K.-51.42 County Boards fund treatment and help 
to link to treatment programs. Every county has something, it may not be enough but 
there are resource links. Note if someone has a legal history they may or may not be 
eligible for treatment courts. People with special needs may qualify for a court process 
that brings them into treatment. Eligibility may differ between counties.  
 
Diversity budget priority recommendations are;  

• More money overall for mental health and substance abuse services,  
• Treatment services  
• Education: investment in workforce; low interest loans, seed money and expand 

loan repayment programs to include behavioral health providers. 
• Financial support for the DSPS-AODA Advisory Committee/Board.  

 
Rebecca and Norm Briggs have written a letter to Kevin Moore, DHS to ask his 
assistance to get a representative appointed to SCAODA from DSPS and DWD. Kevin 
helped get a meeting of the SCAODA Executive Committee with the Governor’s Office.          
 

V. Diversity Workplan: 
Gail K. is drafting a letter to treatment agencies noting cultural competency 
recommendations.  
          

VI. Announcements: 
Rebecca brought forward the suggestion to have Denise present to the SCAODA in 
December 2012. 
 
Membership-Steve suggests getting the questions out to the committee for review. 
Rebecca contacted Ray Perez, Veterans Administration about participating on the 
Diversity Committee. Gail N. also sent meeting information to Thai Vue and Tisha 
Minor, both voiced interest in participating on the Diversity Committee. 
 
Intoxicated Driver Program-Legislative Council Special Committee on State Tribal 
Relations has taken up this issue convening a fact finding meeting in June of tribal 
behavioral health, tribal prosecutor and county IDP assessors. A meeting is set for July 
18, 2012. The Legislative Council-Special Committee will draft legislative language 
change to include tribes as eligible recipients of the supplemental funds and tribal 
colleges to provide the education for group dynamics. 
 
Public Forums: The Diversity Committee has not hosted a SCAODA public forum since 
the DHS & Tribal Conference is no longer occurring. If committee members are aware of 
an event and would like to host a public forum let Gail N know. Gail K-If an event is 
identified let’s be sure to invite tribal leaders and ask them how the Diversity Committee 

43



can work for them. Steve is aware of a two-day conference in Hayward in October he 
will get the logistics from Lori Goeser.  
SCAODA Nominations Committee will convene to accept nominations for the SCAODA 
Chair, Vice Chair and Secretary seats prior to the September meeting-Gail K. is 
interested pending the calendar and time commitment involved. 
 
Steve is now a certified Peer Specialist 
 

 Meeting was adjourned 11AM.      

44



 
 
Scott Walker 
Governor 
 
 
 
 

   
 

State of Wisconsin 
 

State Council on Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse 
1 West Wilson Street, P.O. Box 7851 

Madison, Wisconsin  53707-7851 

 
 

Michael Waupoose 
Chairperson 

 
Duncan Shrout    

Vice-Chairperson 
 

Scott Stokes 
Secretary 

 

www.scaoda.state.wi.us 

Diversity Committee Meeting 
Monday August 20, 2012  

9AM-11:00AM 
Teleconference  

 
Attendees: 

1. Denise Johnson 
2. Rebecca Wigg-Ninham 
3. Sandy Hardie 

 
Excused Absent: 

1. Angela Rivera 
2. Jerry Kaye 

 
Unexcused Absent 

1. Angela McAlister 
2. Steve Dakai 
3. Michael Waupoose 
 

State Staff: 
 Gail M. Nahwahquaw 
 
Diversity Committee Meeting Minutes: 

I. Call to Order: 
Meeting was called to order at 9:10AM.  There was not a quorum present to approve the 
minutes. 
                   

II. Budget Priorities 
Members of the Diversity Committee prioritized budget items as follows during the July 
meeting.  

• More money overall for mental health and substance abuse services,  
• Treatment services  
• Education: investment in workforce; low interest loans, seed money and expand 

loan repayment programs to include behavioral health providers. 
• Financial support for the DSPS-AODA Advisory Committee/Board.  

 
Since the July Diversity Committee meeting, Lou Oppor created a template for all budget 
priority items for consistency. Based on the discussion last month how do members 
propose submitting the priorities using the template. Sandy-we need more clarification on 

45



1 and 2 items are they the same or how do they differ? Rebecca will contact Steve as he 
proposed the items. Rebecca-the discussion at the August ITC meeting included 
workforce. Sue Gadacz was invited to give a county perspective and approach to meet 
any service gap needs based on workforce. Sue suggested that the Health Resource 
Services Administration (HRSA) has funds available to help in Health Professional 
Shortage Areas (HPSA) of which numerous counties and agencies in WI qualify. Sue 
mentioned Milwaukee County is using Southern New Hampshire University (SNHU) a 
graduate program in Community Mental Health as a means to help get staff to complete 
graduate degrees. SNHU is a DSPS approved SAC program, and it offers a graduate 
program for working adults which is appealing to those who work. Denise-Is concerned 
community education is getting lost in all the discussion. Who is talking to parents about 
the risks of prescription drug abuse for their youth? Sandy-The Prevention Committee is 
working on this issue as well as the ITC-Children, Youth and Families Subcommittee. 
Sandy-there is a gap when targeting prevention/education messages to the Deaf and Hard 
of Hearing (DHH), such as budget allowances for captioning, or increasing access to 
anonymous groups with interpreters.               
 
Sandy had to leave the meeting for work. 
 

III. Workforce Discussion: Gail N-Would like the Diversity Committees input on the 
Minority Counselor Training RFP. The committee has heard from Flo Hilliard as she 
summarized the work she did on the AODA Program Survey and Mike Quirk provided 
two reports to the SCAODA on the Counselors Survey. Based on this information what 
direction should the RFP lead a training program toward? Is it targeted recruitment of 
minority and tribal community members in a program that links them to an associate 
degree and higher or offer those certified counselors without a degree financial assistance 
to compete degree programs, or financial assistance to licensed practitioners without the 
substance abuse specialty certification? Rebecca-The recommended Scopes of Practice is 
moving the (substance abuse counselor) field to a higher level of professionalism, but 
using the funds similar to the most recent MCTI doesn’t make sense. Hearing from Sue 
Gadacz during a recent ITC meeting, she is encouraging counselors in Milwaukee 
County to complete master’s level programs, and is utilizing Southern New Hampshire 
University-graduate program in Community Mental Health as the means. One 
recommendation is to work with the four year colleges/universities to ultimately get 
counselors moving toward a bachelors degree. Rebecca-it seems a natural progression of 
education attainment after high school is starting at a technical college, transferring to a 
four year to complete a bachelors degree and potentially moving onto a graduate degree. 
The RFP should follow this educational track. Encouraging Program staff at two-year 
institutions to develop the linkages to four year programs for the completion of degrees. 
Steve D. has suggested colleges and universities consider creating Behavioral Health 
Programs to help meet pending workforce shortages. Rebecca is aware the Northwest 
Technical College (NWTC) in Green Bay has put together a bachelors program in this 
area. Denise-for the DHH community where English is a second language, many students 
may need to leave the state for internship opportunities.     
                

46



IV. Diversity Workplan: Denise shared where and how Deaf, Deaf-Blind and Hard of 
Hearing access services now. Deaf Unity located in Madison is one agency with a focus 
on the prevention of domestic violence and all forms of abuse primarily. DHH 
community has little access to AODA services. Denise can offer education to service 
entities about AODA services and how and where to access what is available. She also 
provides insight to various organizations about the gaps in service for the DHH 
community. The Deaf Summit that occurred last spring was one means to get all the 
service entities together and discuss better coordination of services. Denise will keep the 
Diversity Committee updated on coming activities.   
          

V. Announcements: Densie will present at the December SCAODA meeting on the 
substance abuse issues and challenges for the DHH community. 
 
Membership: Gail N. has been in touch with Latitia (Tisha) Minor and Thai Vue about 
their interest in participating on the Diversity Committee. Tisha is waiting to hear from 
her supervisor about participating and Thai Vue is still interested and just needs to be 
notified of the dates and times of the meetings.  
 
Rebecca will follow-up with Dr. Perez to see if he’s still interested in participating. Gail 
N. will check with Angela McAlister and Jerry Kaye to learn if they’re still interested in 
the committee.  
 
Next meeting is October 15, 2012, 9-11AM 
 

 Meeting was adjourned 11AM.      

47



 
 
Scott Walker 
Governor 
 
 
 
 

   
 

State of Wisconsin 
 

State Council on Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse 
1 West Wilson Street, P.O. Box 7851 

Madison, Wisconsin  53707-7851 

 
 

Michael Waupoose 
Chairperson 

 
Duncan Shrout    

Vice-Chairperson 
 

Scott Stokes 
Secretary 

 

www.scaoda.state.wi.us 

DIVERSITY COMMITTEE MEETING 
Monday, October 15, 2012 
9am-11am 
DHS,  
1 W. Wilson St., Room 850B 
Madison, WI 53703 
 
Please call Gail M. Nahwahquaw at (608) 261-8883 or e-mail Gail.Nahwahquaw@wisconsin.gov to 
advise whether you will be attending the meeting.  
 
Call-in information:  888-251-2909, Access Code 7513925# 
 
Agenda 
9AM-9:15AM   
15 Minutes     
 

I.   Welcome, Call to Order 
Minutes, May and July 2012 

 
9:15AM-9:45AM 
30 Minutes 
 

 
II. 

 
SCAODA Overview 
Educational Summit 

   
9:45AM-10:15AM 
30 Minutes 

III. Workforce Discussion:  
Minority Counselor Training RFP  
 

 
10:15AM-10:25AM 
10 Minutes 
 
10:25AM-10:45AM 
20 Minutes 

 
IV. 
 
 
V. 

 
SAMHSA Technical Review Update 
 
 
Marshfield Clinic Proposal 
 
 

10:45AM-11AM 
 
  
 

VI. 
 
 

Announcements 
2012 Meeting Dates: Oct. 15, Nov. 19 
 

   
 

48



 
 
Scott Walker 
Governor 
 
 
 
 

   
 

State of Wisconsin 
 

State Council on Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse 
1 West Wilson Street, P.O. Box 7851 

Madison, Wisconsin  53707-7851 

 
 

Michael Waupoose 
Chairperson 

 
Duncan Shrout    

Vice-Chairperson 
 

Scott Stokes 
Secretary 

 

www.scaoda.state.wi.us 

 
INTERVENTION AND TREATMENT COMMITTEE (ITC) MEETING 

Tuesday, October 9, 2012 
10:00am – 2:30pm 

Department of Corrections 
3099 E. Washington Ave. 

Room 1M-M 
Madison, WI 

 
MINUTES 

 
Present: Roger Frings, Norm Briggs, Nina Emerson, Francine Feinberg, Dan Nowak, Jill  
Gamez, Dave Macmaster, Steve Dakai (phone), Sheila Weix (phone), Sarah Norberg (staff) 
Absent:  Dennis Baskin, Sheri Graeber, Shel Gross, Staci McNatt, Kevin Moore 
Guests: Flo Hilliard (Division of Continuing Studies), Lorie Goeser (St. Joseph’s Hospital) 
 
Welcome, Introductions, and Review of Minutes – Norm Briggs/Roger Frings 
Norm brought the meeting to order at 10:10am with introductions.  The August meeting minutes 
were reviewed and approved as written (motion by Dan and seconded by Francine).  
 
September SCAODA Meeting Updates –Norm Briggs/Roger Frings 
Budget Priorities: Norm stated that all the budget priorities from each committee were accepted 
by SCAODA. 
Motion-Public and Private Educational Institutions: At the SCAODA meeting, Joyce Allen 
indicated that based on past experience with trying to ensure the availability and completion of 
necessary education for substance abuse professionals, this motion would be difficult to see 
through. However, there are places that are addressing the educational needs of AODA 
counselors. There continues to be significant interest in the 2-year Human Services Program 
(with AODA concentration) that is offered in Marshfield, both on-site or with interactive, online 
options.     
Motion-Substance Abuse Credentialed Professional Assigned to MPSW Board: There was some 
confusion at the SCAODA meeting about whether or not the MPSW Board oversees the 
certification of AODA counselors. Sheila stated that her understanding was that the Board isn’t 
involved with AODA credentialing, but that there were experts in the field (Sheri and Lorie) that 
review the applications. Sheila brought Lorie in on the discussion to help clarify, and Lorie 
confirmed that the MPSW Board does not have oversight in regards to AODA certification, and 
that substance abuse professionals only have an advisory committee. She outlined the following 
process for AODA certification applications: (1) All 360 required hours are done in an approved 
program; (2) Applications go to DSPS; (3) After the application has been approved by DPS, the 

49



 

counselor goes through IC&RC to obtain their actual certification. Lorie also added that there are 
members of the MPSW Board who are dually licensed, so although it makes sense to have 
someone who is AODA certified, that role may already be filled. Norm brought up a concern 
about the difference between “license” and “certification” as AODA counselors can only be 
certified whereas other mental health professionals are licensed. It was stated by Lorie that DPS 
uses the two interchangeably, but the actual differentiation criteria would have to be searched for 
online. At the end of the discussion, everyone was still unsure about whether or not to contact 
Michael Waupoose and “call off” the motion. Jill wondered if there was a list of designated 
members of the Board, so equal representation would be assured if someone was replaced (i.e. if 
someone who was dually licensed with an AODA certification left their position, they would be 
replaced by someone who also had the AODA certification, so the substance abuse field 
wouldn’t lose their representation). 
By-laws: Norm briefly discusses what SCAODA concluded regarding the reimbursement for 
committee members. According to a statute that Lou brought up, there would need to be a statute 
and by-law change in order to be reimbursed for time. The challenge is this is a lengthy and 
difficult task and may not be feasible. 
 
Children, Youth and Families Subcommittee/Adhoc Work Group Update – Jill Gamez 
Originally, there was some concern about the future of the sub-committee based on past 
participation; however, the concern has dissipated some after the September 20th meeting via 
teleconference as there were 8 people who called in. The purpose of the last meeting was to 
review the goals and plans of the group. It was decided that they would like to expand the group 
by including representation from other areas such as DPI, DOC, the Judicial System, and 
consumers. 
 
There were two main concentrations of the sub-committee meeting:  
 
SCAODA Goal #2; CYFT Objective #1; Task #1: The need for a provider directory that would be 
distributed throughout the state and used for referrals. Jill would like to propose a work group, 
which would function more like a project than a committee, be put together to formulate and 
assemble recommendations regarding how to accomplish this as well as develop a plan for 
sustainability; she asked for thoughts on this idea from ITC. Francine suggested that DFS be 
included in this process because in the foster care system, the county is required to provide 
treatment to those that are identified as needing help. She believed they could be a valuable 
resource in terms of finding out what’s available; there aren’t a lot of treatment options for 
adolescents in the state. Norm stated that his interpretation of the directory was that it would be 
for the public; something parents could use to look up where to send their child if the child was 
doing drugs. The proposal for CYF to create a work group was approved (motion by Dan and 
seconded by Steve). 
 
SCAODA Goal#4; CYFT Objective #2; Task#1: The issue of opiate use. Susan Endres and Tami 
Bahr, former members, were working diligently on this matter when they were a part of the sub-
committee. Jill stated that without their expertise, she feels as though the group no longer has the 
capacity to continue their work. Mac had concerns about the issue possibly being lost if they 
aren’t working on it, and Sheila stated that opiate use is rapidly increasing, and there are 
additional challenges when treating this addiction in adolescents. However, Norm asserted that 

50



 

there is an awareness of this problem at the state level where much effort has been put into 
decreasing overdose deaths. It was decided based on a suggestion by Nina, that the sub-
committee be open to addressing the issue, but perhaps not at this time. 
 
WiNTiP Updates – Dave Macmaster  
Mac read through the WiNTiP update handout that was given to everyone pointing out that he 
had a productive session with Kevin Moore concerning the history of the program, strategic 
plans, and what’s coming up next. WiNTiP will be working with Dane County Chemical 
Dependencies Consortium on a tobacco integration work plan at the county level with the goal of 
becoming statewide in the future. A $10,000 grant has been awarded for this partnership and the 
task force will have its first meeting on October 12th in Madison. WiNTip is hoping to increase 
membership to 500 by spring and is looking to find funding for a director position, but has been 
unsuccessful thus far.  
 
Mac also discussed the WiNTiP Advocacy Resolution handout that was passed around. He 
presented the argument that those who are diagnosed solely with nicotine dependence should 
have the option for a full range of care, just as they would if they were diagnosed with alcohol 
dependence or cocaine dependence. In response, Sheila pointed out that this would be an 
extremely difficult task because it doesn’t hit the mark for medical necessity, to which Dan and 
Francine agreed. A motion was made by Mac to propose his idea to the Council. It was seconded 
by Dan. Francine requested to rewrite the advocacy resolution to make it clear that he was 
looking for parity; it wasn’t evident what exactly Mac wanted in the original version. Further 
discussion on this was tabled until the November meeting. 
 
Review of Course Offerings within UW System for Counselor Certification – Flo Hilliard 
Flo gave a brief background on a state-wide survey that she conducted from the Division of 
Continuing Studies regarding the Minority Training Project Grant. When Sue Gadacz was with 
the Bureau, she approached Flo about conducting this survey to assess what institutes offer in 
terms of required courses for AODA. They found 22 DRL approved colleges, most were 
community colleges and some were private colleges, that had course offerings, and all but three 
responded to their inquiries. Their findings concluded that most of the institutions were located 
in the southern part of the state (approximately 16 out of the 22), and only a couple of the 
colleges offered Bachelor’s degrees. Most were 2-year programs that offered students the ability 
to graduate and go on to receive their Bachelor’s degree somewhere else. All the participants in 
the survey said more resources would be helpful. Sue had discussed the results with Gail 
Nahwahquaw, and it was decided that there was a need for a state-wide accessible Bachelor’s 
program, perhaps something available in-person and online, where students would come out with 
their required 360 hours completed. Initially, the program would only be available as an 
opportunity for minorities as this was developed for the Minority Training Project, but hopefully 
it would be opened up to everyone down the road. The grant is now going out for bid, and if the 
Division of Continuing Studies receives the grant, they would be working with DSPS and the 
School of Social Work to complete the curriculum and meet the necessary criteria. The RFP 
should be out the end of October. 
 

51



 

Norm mentioned that SAMHSA had offered some technical assistance in the area of getting 
people into the field efficiently and asked if Flo thought that would be beneficial. Flo agreed that 
it definitely would. 
 
 
SCAODA and ITC Strategic Planning 
Section Updates: 

A. Access to Treatment for Older Population – Sheila Weix 
Sheila has been researching surveys that have been done on what is out there for 
services for this population. There is evidence that the number of services 
available is up compared to past years, but the 2012 data isn’t out yet. There is an 
increase in co-occurring disorders with this population, and there are different 
needs as well, such as Hepatitis C screening, because the baby boomers are now 
included. Sheila is currently having TIP 26 downloaded and bound. 

B. Parity and Health Care Reform – Shel Gross 
This topic was not discussed as Shel was not present for the meeting. 

C. Nicotine Dependence Treatment – Dave Macmaster 
This topic was not discussed as Mac was not present for this portion of the 
meeting. 

D. Access To and Retention in Treatment of Women and Their Children – Norm 
Briggs 
Norm mentioned that previously there had been some work being done on a 
directory for women’s treatment, but the work has continued but with some 
difficulty. He presented the idea of having a consortium to find out who is 
providing treatment. Francine wasn’t sure a consortium was the way to go for this 
task, but suggested Bernestine take this on as there are many national things going 
on with respect to women’s treatment. She thought something like this could 
perhaps start with grantees and maybe have a bigger agenda such as problem 
solving, training, or legislative.   

Task Assignment: 
No one knows who is hosting the SCAODA forum at the 3rd Annual Northern Wisconsin 
Conference. Call Lou about this. 
 
Review of Women’s Treatment Core Values – Norm Briggs 
Norm referenced the packet that was handed out of the women’s core values, and indicated that 
the values had already been looked over and updated by the ITC members last year, but he 
wanted to give them another look to identify any new changes that might be necessary. Francine 
identified that these core values are used by people or agencies that are receiving funding from 
DHS, and they are embedded in everything the state does. The time limit on this is unknown, but 
Norm wanted to make sure ITC looked at them more recently than last year. The core values are 
also part of the development of curriculum for women’s specific treatment priorities, but that has 
been put on hold until these values are reviewed.  
 
Legislation/Miscellaneous Updates/Future Agenda – Norm Briggs/Roger Frings 
SBIRT Update: Nina volunteered and has been appointed as the new ITC representative.  

52



 

Adhoc Needs Assessment: Meetings have slowed down. The committee is now meeting every 6 
weeks and will report to the council in December. 
Gender Responsive AODA Certificate Program: Previously discussed. 
Other: 
Steve reported that an initial proposal was made to the Joint Legislative Council from the Special 
Committee on State Tribal Relations that there be a change in state legislature allowing for an 
amendment to Rule HSF 62. This amendment would allow tribes to do their own assessments 
and treatment for Natives who receive an OWI offense as opposed to the county providing the 
assessment and keeping the money as Tribes do not have access to apply for supplemental 
funding.  
 
Adjourn 
The meeting was adjourned by Norm. 
 
Next meetings and dates: 
1. ITC  

November 13, 2012; 10:00 am – 2:30 pm. Department of Corrections, Madison 
 

2. Children, Youth and Families Treatment Sub-committee 
November 15, 2012; 10:30pm – 3:00pm. Vel Phillips Juvenile Justice Center, Milwaukee 

      Tele-conference  
 
3.   SCAODA 

December 14, 2012; 9:30 am – 3:30 pm; American Family Insurance Conference Center, 
Madison.  For more information, visit the SCAODA web site at: 
http://www.scaoda.state.wi.us/meetings/index.htm 

53

http://www.scaoda.state.wi.us/meetings/index.htm


 
 
Scott Walker 
Governor 
 
 
 
 

   
 

State of Wisconsin 
 

State Council on Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse 
1 West Wilson Street, P.O. Box 7851 

Madison, Wisconsin  53707-7851 

 
 

Michael Waupoose 
Chairperson 

 
Duncan Shrout    

Vice-Chairperson 
 

Scott Stokes 
Secretary 

 

www.scaoda.state.wi.us 

 
 

INTERVENTION AND TREATMENT COMMITTEE (ITC) MEETING 
Tuesday, November 13th, 2012 

10:00am – 2:30pm 
Department of Corrections 
3099 E. Washington Ave. 

Room 1M-M 
Madison, WI 

 
AGENDA 

  
I. Welcome, Introductions and Review of October Minutes–  10:00am – 10:10am 

Norm Briggs/Roger Frings  
    
II. Children Youth and Families Subcommittee/Adhoc Work   10:10am – 10:30am 

Group Updates – Jill Gamez  
 

III. WiNTiP Updates – Dave Macmaster      10:30am – 10:40am 
• Motion to Adopt Resolution 

 
IV. Discussion of Status of Motion Regarding MPSW Board  10:40am – 10:50am 

 
V. 3rd Annual Northern Wisconsin Conference (Sheila Weix)  10:50am – 11:00am 

 
VI. Legislative Agenda (Roger Frings/Kevin Moore)   11:00am – 12:00pm 

 
VII. Lunch on your own       12:00pm – 12:30pm 

 
VIII. Presentation: Statewide AIDS Action Planning Group    12:30pm – 1:15pm 

(Barbara Nehls-Lowe)  
 

IX. SCAODA and ITC Strategic Planning – Norm Briggs/Roger Frings 1:15pm – 1:45pm 
• Section Updates 

o Parity and Health Care Reform (Shel Gross) 
o Women’s Treatment and Core Values (Norm Briggs/Francine Feinberg) 

• Task Assignment  
 

X. Legislation/Miscellaneous Updates/Future Agenda –    1:45pm – 2:30pm 
 Norm Briggs/Roger Frings  

• SBIRT Mtg Update (Nina/Shel/Steve) 

54



• Committee Members (Norm) 
• SCAODA Goals Review 
• Adhoc Needs Assessment Committee (Norm Briggs/Shel Gross) No Report 
• Other 

 
XI. Adjourn 

 
 
Next meetings and dates: 
 
1. ITC  
      January 8th, 2012; 10:00 am – 2:30 pm. Department of Corrections, Madison   
 
2.   Children, Youth and Families Treatment Subcommittee 
      November 15th, 2012; 10:30am – 3:00pm.  Vel Phillips Juvenile Justice center, Milwaukee 
 
3.   SCAODA 

December 14th, 2012; 9:30 am – 3:30 pm.  American Family Insurance Conference Center, 
Madison.  For more information, visit the SCAODA web site at: 
http://www.scaoda.state.wi.us/meetings/index.htm 

 

55

http://www.scaoda.state.wi.us/meetings/index.htm


SCAODA Motion Introduction 
 

Committee Introducing Motion:  Intervention and Treatment (ITC) 
Motion:   “It is a policy goal of SCAODA that people seeking treatment for Nicotine Use 
Disorders shall have access to the same range of treatment services as those offered for the 
treatment of other substance use disorders.”     
 
Related SCAODA Goal:  SCAODA goal 4.b. Wisconsin has adequate, sustainable infrastructure 
and fiscal, systems, and human resources and capacity: for effective outreach, and effective, 
accessible treatment and recovery services for all in need. ITC strategic plan Objective #2: 
Increase the number of treatment programs that offer integrated nicotine dependence services. 
 
Background:  Although nicotine dependence (305.10) is a listed, treatable SUD, those with this 
disorder have not had equal access to Wisconsin's range of levels of treatment readily accessible 
to those with alcohol and other drug dependence. WINTIP,  an ITC member,  has advocated for 
increased access and treatment for this population. This is evidenced by the WINTIP  tobacco 
integration objectives in the SCAODA/ITC strategic plan. 
 
 Previously SCAODA adopted WINTIP'S Tobacco Integration Resolution encouraging policies 
that lead to integrating evidence-based nicotine treatment into AODA and mental health services. 
This equity resolution is regarded by ITC as being a philosophical policy position that leads to 
access to the state's AODA services identifying nicotine dependence as a drug of equal concern 
as alcohol and other drugs.      
 
• Positive impact:  This resolution/ policy provides a vision for increasing access to our AODA 

programs for those currently unable to receive the benefits from our AODA levels of care. It 
motivates AODA leaders to find the pathway to improved services for nicotine dependent 
individuals. It demonstates the ethical and clinical standards for which Wisconsin public 
health stands. It will save lives and improve the quality of life for this nicotine dependent 
population.  

 
• Potential Opposition:  Treatment providers are expected to require appropriate training and 

system change support to address this issue. Funding issues have been identified but can be 
addressed successfully.  

Rationale for Supporting Motion:   Nicotine dependence leads  to tobacco-caused and related 
diseases that take the lives of more than 3,000 Wisconsin tobacco users with AODA and mental 
health disorders annually, affecting the lives of 12,000 innocent family victims of these deaths.  
Tobacco deaths are far more than death from alcohol and other drugs combined.  Wisconsin has 
AODA programs and counselors trained in the skills of producing abstinence and harm reduction 
treatment and recovery outcomes already in place.  AODA clinicians are capable of treating 
nicotine dependence with additional training that expands their scopes of practice. Wisconsin has 
model tobacco integrated programs that are successfully treating nicotine dependence while 
other SUD treatment is provided.  

 

56



 
 
Scott Walker 
Governor 
 
 
 
 

   
 

State of Wisconsin 
 

State Council on Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse 
1 West Wilson Street, P.O. Box 7851 

Madison, Wisconsin  53707-7851 

 
 

Michael Waupoose 
Chairperson 

 
Duncan Shrout    

Vice-Chairperson 
 

Scott Stokes 
Secretary 

 

www.scaoda.state.wi.us 

STATE COUNCIL ON ALCOHOL & OTHER DRUG ABUSE 
Planning and Funding Committee Meeting Minutes  

Friday August 17, 2012 9:00 A.M. – 2:30 P.M. 
ARC CENTER FOR WOMEN & CHILDREN 

1409 EMIL STREET, MADISON 
608 283-6426 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Joyce O’Donnell, Duncan Shrout, Norman Briggs, William McCulley, 
Todd Campbell, 
 
EXCUSED: Manny Scarbrough, Tom Fuchs, Mark Seidl, Blinda Beason, Steve Fernan, Pamela 
Bean, Sally Tess and Karen Kinsey 
  
STAFF:  Lori Ludwig  
 
I.  Call to Order – Joyce O’Donnell    
 
Joyce O’Donnell called the meeting to order at 9:35 A.M.   
 
II. Review /Approval of July 20, 2012 Committee Minutes—Joyce O’Donnell 
 
Bill McCulley made a motion to approve the minutes of July 20, 2012.  The motion was 
seconded by Duncan Shrout. Norm Briggs made two corrections to the July 20th minutes.  They 
were on page 4 line 5, adding “at ARC” after the word “treatment;” and line 27, the sentence 
beginning on line 27 should read, “There is demand and unmet need, and sufficient service, at 
the right intensity and at the right duration at the right time.”  The same line was inserted into 
page 8, item XIII, last sentence.  With these corrections, the motion passed unanimously. 
 
III.  Update on SBIRT—Duncan Shrout 
 
Duncan Shrout reported that the Ad-hoc Committee on SBIRT met at the end of July during 
which an update was given by Dr. Rich Brown.  The group will meet again on August 20th in 
room 950 of 1 West Wilson St. in Madison.  There are two elements of the Committee:  1) 
Expanding “screening” from primary care settings into other potential sites, e.g., school settings, 
critical care settings, college campuses, etc. 2) Understanding how to finance the expansion.  He 
suggested that one could google WIPHL to get statistics, the newsletter, and other information.  
The goal of screening is to educate people on AOD use and if they want assistance, they will be 
given assistance.  Members of the group are Jay Ford from NIATX; Mike Davis from IMPACT; 
and a representative of the public health sector.  Rich Brown is a resource and not a member.  
The project will continue to meet with state staff Scott Caldwell.  Mr. Shrout indicated that 

57



  

anyone can participate and should contact Scott Caldwell for meeting information.  Ms. 
O’Donnell thanked Mr. Shrout.  Todd Campbell asked a question about possible sites.  Would 
University health settings be considered?  Mr. Shrout indicated that screening was occurring at 
UW-Milwaukee.  Mr. Briggs indicated that hospitals could be another potential site.  Yes, but 
there are a series of requirements from JCAHO (Joint Commission on Accreditation of 
Healthcare Organizations).  Mr. Shrout reported that they are not working with hospitals right 
now.  That effort would require a different Committee make-up.  Mr. Briggs reported that 50-
70% of people seen in hospitals for injuries have something to do with AOD use.   Mr. Shrout 
informed the group that hospitals don’t get reimbursed from insurance companies if alcohol and 
drugs are involved.   
 
IV.   Update on Ad-Hoc Needs Assessment Committee—Todd Campbell, Sally Tess, 
Duncan Shrout and Norman Briggs 
 
Mr. Briggs brought handouts from the last meeting of the Ad-hoc Needs Assessment Committee.  
The handouts were developed by Mike Quirke showing drug and alcohol trends.  Mr. Briggs 
reported that the group discussed the results of the three item survey on mental health and 
substance abuse needs.  He pointed out that there was a big difference between providers and 
consumers in their identification of needs.  In the final analysis, consumers will be given greater 
weight.  Mr. Shrout felt that there is an unproven belief that consumers are driving changes in the 
field.  However, AOD consumers don’t identify themselves.  Wisconsin has fallen into a trap of 
“been there, know that.”  It is not true that consumers know it all.  For people seeking AODA 
treatment, it is not significantly helpful to have peer coaches or peer services.  It is an unbalanced 
approach to have a consumer driven process.  He continued that it is not, not important but 
neither should it be a dominant factor given the millions of dollars spent on research, evidence-
based practices, etc.  Mr. Campbell agreed.  We need evidence-based practices.  Consumers 
should have input but their’s is not the only perspective.  Mr. Shrout added that it is a flawed 
process.  Ms. O’Donnell asked what the next step would be.  Mr. Briggs responded that the 
Committee is not developing a plan based on this survey.  Ms. O’Donnell wanted to know how 
the concerns could be advanced.  Todd Campbell referred the group to the next page in their 
handout.  He went through Mike Quirke’s example of opiate dependence.  Overall rates of use 
haven’t increased, but the number of deaths has increased.  Mr. Quirke had developed a method 
for weighting problem or use prevalence data to allow for the most serious problems to emerge.  
Ms. O’Donnell asked if there were an alternative to using this tool.  Mr. Shrout asked if the same 
criteria were used with mental health disorders.  Mr. Briggs reported that he had only seen this 
methodology used with substance abuse data.  There was a longer discussion about how the 
criteria are used.  Mr. Briggs revealed that the methodology supports identifying those problems 
with high impact; or those with low access to the treatment system; or those with highly positive 
outcomes.  Mr. Shrout expressed concern about the timeliness of the data.  The next graph in the 
handout was “Prevalence of AOD by Population Group.” For example, 14,000 AOD abusing 
individuals were found to be in Department of Corrections Institutions.  They represented 60% 
of all inmates, and the greatest percentage of individuals with alcohol or other drug abuse among 
all population groups represented on the graph.  By comparison, 350,000 individuals of age 18 or 
over had AODA problems.  Mr. Briggs pointed out that Mike Quirke would add Community 
Corrections as well as the actual numbers for each group in addition to the prevalence rates 
among groups to the Table.  There is significant discrimination in the perception of people with 

58



  

substance use disorders.  It is a different set of circumstances.  Mr. Briggs pointed out that 
substance abuse is often an acute problem while mental health issues are persistent and managed 
over a lifetime.   Mr. Shrout felt there are inconsistencies in the data.  Ms. O’Donnell felt that the 
stigma of mental illness is much greater than with alcohol use.  Mr. Briggs continued that mental 
health disorders are seen as not your fault, it is a brain disorder.  With substance abuse, it is seen 
as willful misconduct.  These are the public perceptions.  Referring to the chart on deaths due to 
mood-altering drugs as reported on death certificates, Mr. Briggs pointed out that we didn’t pay 
attention to this until maybe 5 years ago, that was when the change was happening.  It was only 
after individuals saw the deaths in their family and friends did treatment admissions increase.  
Also conferences also tend to weigh toward the mental health side.   
 
V. Safe-Rides Program—Duncan Shrout 
 
Mr. Shrout was not sure if SCAODA is in a position to change how the funds are distributed in 
the Driver Surcharge Funding Program.  The relationship between the Safe Ride program and a 
decrease in alcohol related deaths and crashes could be one possible motion.  The Safe Ride 
program is only one of nine allocations.  The Safe Rides program is fourth largest.  Mr. Shrout 
motioned that the Planning and Funding Committee ask the Department of Transportation (DOT) 
through SCAODA to provide any information they have about the effect of the Safe Rides 
program and its impact on decreasing the number of people driving intoxicated in Wisconsin.  
Norman Briggs seconded the motion.  Joyce O’Donnell asked for any discussion.  Todd 
Campbell asked if the Committee should ask the same question of each of the state Departments 
outside of DHS.  Mr. Shrout pointed out that some of the allocations pertain to activities 
occurring after the fact with the exception of the Driver’s Education program through the 
Department of Public Instruction (DPI).  Are they decreasing the number of “Operating While 
Intoxicated” drivers in Wisconsin?  Todd Campbell argued that the intent of the Driver’s 
Education Program is to decrease the number of teens drinking and driving.  Mr. Shrout thought 
that we should add DPI to the motion.  Todd Campbell and Norm Briggs agreed.  Mr. Shrout 
accepted the amendment and Mr. Briggs seconded the amendment.  Mr. Shrout motioned that 
the Planning and Funding Committee ask the Department of Transportation (DOT) and 
the Department of Public Instruction (DPI) through SCAODA to provide any information 
they have about the effect of the Safe Rides program and the Driver’s Education program 
on decreasing the number of people driving intoxicated in Wisconsin.  There were all ayes 
during the vote.  The motion passed. 
 
VI. Budget Priorities and Template—Joyce O’Donnell 
 
Mr. Briggs pointed out that the language regarding the Women’s Treatment priority should be 
changed from 43% to 17.8%.  Todd Campbell referred to the fourth priority, proposing adding 
that northern and rural areas of Wisconsin seem to be high areas of need for access to treatment.  
Ms. Ludwig agreed to make the changes to the priorities.  Mr. Briggs informed the group that 
ITC will be making a proposal at SCAODA to convene a meeting with educational facilities to 
gain model programs so people in the AODA field can develop degrees necessary at a reasonable 
price.  This proposal relates to a Planning and Funding budget priority to increase the number of 
certified AODA counselors prepared to practice under the requirements of insurance companies 
(Scopes of Practice).  There was a discussion about the University of Southern New Hampshire’s 

59



  

program which is advertised in Wisconsin.  Courses are held nights and weekends.  The cost is 
$400 per credit hour.  Mr. Shrout reported there are courses in Milwaukee and Waukesha.  Mr. 
Campbell felt that access is an issue.  Mr. Briggs reported that ITC felt SCAODA should go 
forward with this.   
 
VII. Driver Improvement Surcharge Funding Legislative Audit Report—Duncan Shrout 
 
Mr. Shrout made a motion that SCAODA accept the Driver Improvement Surcharge 
Funding Legislative Audit Report.  The motion was seconded by Bill McCulley.  All voted 
“aye.”  The motion passed. 
 
 
VIII. P & F Accomplishments for Executive Summary  
 
Mr. Shrout made a motion to approve the “Planning and Funding Committee Highlights 
from 2011Accomplishments” (document dated August 17, 2010).  With the addition in item 
#3, line 3, “…that there wasn’t a quorum (adding “at SCAODA”) ….”  Ms. O’Donnell 
indicated that she would present the document as a report from Planning and Funding at 
SCAODA.  Todd Campbell seconded the motion.  All voted in the affirmative and the 
motion passed. 
 
 
IX. Huffing/Aerosol Can Intoxicant—Group Discussion 
 
Joyce O’Donnell introduced the subject of “Huffing” reporting that there is a fine line as to how 
to go about declaring “huffing chemicals” an intoxicant.  The subject arose following a case 
wherein a defendant appealed a conviction of OWI based on the fact that the Huffing chemical 
had not been classified as an intoxicant.  The Supreme Court of Wisconsin agreed and threw out 
the conviction.  Ms. O’Donnell asked if the Planning & Funding Committee or SCAODA could 
have any influence.  Do we need to further study this?  Perhaps we should call in Nina Emerson?  
Todd Campbell asked why a reckless driving conviction wasn’t enough.  Mr. Shrout pointed out 
that it is double jeopardy.  One can’t be arrested twice for the same offense.  Ms. O’Donnell 
wondered if the Committee should consult with the Office of Justice Assistance (OJA).  Mr. 
Shrout indicated that the original prosecutors should have charged the driver with reckless 
driving—it was a bad choice.  He suggested to Ms. O’Donnell that as Chair of the Committee 
report back to state staff that the issue should be more correctly looked at or acted upon by the 
Department of Justice (DOJ) or the Office of Justice Assistance (OJA).  Mr. Briggs thought that 
the statute for the definition of an intoxicant should be amended.  Mr. Shrout pointed out that the 
DOJ has access to legislators.  Ms. O’Donnell felt that she could suggest this issue is more 
appropriate for DOJ or OJA. 
 
X. Scopes of Practice—Norman Briggs 
 
Norman Briggs reported that he has been working with Rebecca Wigg-Ninham, Co-Chair of the 
Diversity Committee.  They asked Kevin Moore for advice on how to proceed with the issue of 
the shrinking workforce of certified substance abuse counselors.  Mr. Briggs reported that Kevin 

60



  

Moore met with the executive staff at the Department of Safety and Professional Services 
(DSPS).  The purpose of the meeting was to see that a licensed substance abuse counselor could 
be appointed to the Advisory Board, that is the Marriage and Family Therapist, Professional 
Counselor and Social Work Board--MPSW.  The Advisory Board currently does not include a 
certified substance abuse counselor.  We need to get representation there and then, work with 
DSPS to get the Department of Workforce Development (DWD) to offer incentives to encourage 
substance abuse counselors to be reimbursable.   
 
XI. Report on Women’s Services—Norman Briggs 
 
Mr. Briggs reported that UW-Madison is developing a curriculum for Women-specific services.  
Also, Bernestine Jeffers is conducting a review of all the women’s services programs grantees. 
 
XII. Committee Reports-Group 
 
Joyce O’Donnell brought copies of reports mentioned in last month’s Health Care Reform 
presentation by Bureau Director, Joyce Allen.  One report was titled, “Forward Health,” and the 
other a report on “Medical Assistance Programs.’  Ms. O’Donnell also announced that Francine 
Feinberg is retiring from Meta House, a residential women’s-specific program.  She is a member 
of the Intervention and Treatment Committee.  It would be appropriate to forward  
congratulations to her.  Mr. Briggs reported that SCAODA Chairperson, Michael Waupoose will 
be recognizing her at the next SCAODA meeting. 
 
Norm Briggs reported that the Intervention and Treatment Committee will be submitting a 
suggestion for revision of the By-laws regarding compensation.  See Article III Section 8 of the 
By-laws:  “Members of the Council shall not be compensated…”  Mr. Briggs felt that there 
should be an option for individuals who are not with an organization, that they may receive 
stipends.  It could encourage consumers to participate on Committees.  Mr. Shrout felt that it was 
a good idea for consumers and suggested making the recommendation as specific as possible; 
perhaps a modest proposal of $25-$50.  Bill McCulley pointed out that jurors get $7.00 per day.  
Mr. Shrout pointed out that if we are requesting their presence because of their expertise, their 
status as a consumer needs to be defined.  Ms. O’Donnell felt that the Chair of the Council 
should have a stipend because of the amount of work.  Lori Ludwig reported on the process 
outlined in the By-laws for voting on a change to the By-laws:  “The by-laws may be amended, 
or new by-laws adopted, after thirty days written notice to council members by a two-thirds vote 
of the full council membership present at a regularly scheduled meeting.”  Mr. Shrout shared that 
he thought this is a good way to decrease barriers to consumers to participate.  Ms. O’Donnell 
felt that the idea needs lots of clarification.   
 
Bill McCulley reported on Prevention efforts in Portage County.  The Justice Committee meeting 
includes the support of the Court and Judges.  There are mentor programs and diversion 
programs, which are picking up steam.  They are doing excellent work.  Two police officers have 
been very successful.  Of 90 individuals having gone through their first OWI charge, there has 
not been one reoffender.  Fifty-four have had no drinking.  There is a 13th OWI offender who is 
out of control.  He got a hold of a friend’s car and crashed with two kids in the car.  One of the 
children died.  The Alliance in Stevens Point is doing well—there are lots of new young people.  

61



  

Compliance checks from last year were 67% in compliance; usually it is 90%--this year it is  
90% of bars and grocery stores in compliance.  Bartender training is very well attended.  One 
training is for bar owners regarding compliance checks.  The Tavern League is very much 
involved through local tavern owners.  The High School picnic has a beer tent.  They are 
thinking about not having a beer tent this year.  The Annual Report will probably be out in 
January or February.  The Sheriff and the Chief of Police each Chair a Committee. 
 
Ms. O’Donnell announced that Realtors should be aware that during an open house, people will 
take drugs from the medicine cabinets.  She also reported on Settler’s Weekend in Milwaukee 
where there are no beer tents.  It is a re-enactment of how life used to be in the pioneer days.  
Todd Campbell wondered if not having alcohol caused a decrease in revenue from the event. 
 
Duncan Shrout reported that five of the nine Community Coalitions of SE Wisconsin will 
participate in the SBIRT project.  
 
XIII. Future Agenda Items 
 

• SBIRT Update 
• Safe Ride/Driver Improvement Surcharge Legislative Report 

 
XIV. Adjourn 
 
The next meeting is scheduled for October 19, 2012 
 
 
PLANNING AND FUNDING COMMITTEE MEETING 
October 19, 2012, 9:30 A.M. – 2:30 P.M. 
ARC CENTER FOR WOMEN & CHILDREN 
1409 EMIL STREET 
MADISON, WI 
608/283-6426 
 
 

62



 
 
Scott Walker 
Governor 
 
 
 
 

   
 

State of Wisconsin 
 

State Council on Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse 
1 West Wilson Street, P.O. Box 7851 

Madison, Wisconsin  53707-7851 

 
 

Michael Waupoose 
Chairperson 

 
Duncan Shrout    

Vice-Chairperson 
 

Scott Stokes 
Secretary 

 

www.scaoda.state.wi.us 

PLANNING AND FUNDING COMMITTEE MEETING 
Friday November 16, 2012 – 9:30 A.M. – 2:30 P.M. 

ARC CENTER FOR WOMEN & CHILDREN 
1409 EMIL STREET, MADISON 

608/283-6426 
 

Please call LeeAnn Cooper at (608) 266-2453 or e-mail leeann.cooper@wisconsin.gov  to advise 
if you will not attend. 
 
9:30  a.m.   I. Call to Order – Joyce O’Donnell 
 
9:35 a.m.  II. Review of August 17, 2012 Minutes – Joyce O’Donnell 
 
9:40 a.m.  III. Update on SBIRT—Duncan Shrout 
 
10:00 a.m. IV.  Update on Ad-hoc Needs Assessment Committee—Todd  
  Campbell, Sally Tess, Duncan Shrout and Norman Briggs  
 
10:30 a.m.  V. SAMHSA Technical Review – Lou Oppor 
 
11:00 a.m.  VI. Scope of Practice – Norman Briggs 
 
11:30 a.m.  VII. Accomplishments on budget priorities, Alcohol Tax, Joyce O’Donnell 
 
12:00 p.m..   VIII. Lunch (on your own) 
 
12:30 p.m.  IX. DPI Prevention funding grants and DOJ – Steve Fernan 
 
1:00 p.m.  X Public Forum Report – Joyce O’Donnell, Todd Campbell, Tom  
   Fuchs, Pamela Bean 

 
1:15 p.m.  XI. Report on Women’s Services—Norm Briggs 

 
1:30 p.m.  XII. Review SCAODA draft December 14, 2012 agenda. 
 
1:40 p.m.  XIV. IDP Funding review – Duncan Shrout 
 
2:00 p.m.  XIII. Committee Reports—Group   
 
2:15 p.m.  XV. Set meeting dates for 2013 
 
2:25 p.m.  XVI. Agenda Items for Next Meeting—Joyce O’Donnell 
 
2:30 p.m.  XVII. Adjourn 
 

63

mailto:leeann.cooper@wisconsin.gov


 
 
Scott Walker 
Governor 
 
 
 
 

   
 

State of Wisconsin 
 

State Council on Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse 
1 West Wilson Street, P.O. Box 7851 

Madison, Wisconsin  53707-7851 

 
 

Michael Waupoose 
Chairperson 

 
Duncan Shrout 

Vice-Chairperson 
 

Scott Stokes 
Secretary 

 

www.scaoda.state.wi.us 

October 23, 2012 
PUBLIC FORUM1 

Meeting Notes 
4:45 p.m. – 5:45 p.m. 

8th Annual Mental Health & Substance Abuse Services Training Conference 
Chula Vista Resort 
2501 River Road 

Wisconsin Dells, WI 53965 
 

I. Introductions/Welcome/Agenda 
 
Planning and Funding Committee members in attendance: Joyce O’Donnell, Steve 
Fernan, Todd Campbell, Pamela Bean, Tom Fuchs 
 
Twenty-two people were in attendance. 
 

II. Grant funding for school substance abuse prevention services - Steve Fernan, DPI 
 
Steve Fernan reported that DPI awards grants to schools for prevention programming on 
topics such as, bullying, mental health, substance use, and suicide and works with 
schools to assist in developing health class curricula, to provide training to staff who 
facilitate student assistance programs and to train students as peer mentors.  Mr. Fernan 
reported that funding has been cut over the last 3 years from $15 million annually to the 
current level of $1 million.  This funding is obtained through a surcharge on offenders 
that is distributed to state agencies for a variety of purposes.  Mr. Fernan reported that the 
Department of Justice (DOJ) is seeking to redirect all those surcharge funds to be 
retained for funding of law enforcement and other prevention programs.  DPI will oppose 
that effort. 
 
Mr. Fernan reported that DPI has collected a lot of data through the Wisconsin Youth 
Risk Behavior Survey and now has a 20 year trend line that shows a reduction in drug 
and alcohol use among youth.  DPI feels it is important to continue to work on 
prevention and to provide a level of support for schools to be successful.  He reported 
that DPI is not asking for any action at this time but may in the future.  
 
One attendee asked whether we can get mentors back in schools.  Mr. Fernan replied that 
there is concern about the lack of resources to maintain programs.  He stated that mentors 
have been in schools for 30 years.  Another attendee asked whether Wisconsin has 

                                                           
 

64



applied for any grants.  Mr. Fernan replied that DPI has applied for and received a small 
grant. 
 

III. Substance Abuse Block Grant Priorities and SAMHSA Technical Review - Lou Oppor, 
Bureau of Prevention, Treatment and Recovery  
 
Lou Oppor, section chief of the Bureau of Prevention, Treatment and Recovery, reported 
that beginning in 2013, the bureau will require verification that counties are spending 
20% of their Substance Abuse Block Grant (SABG) for primary prevention services and 
the use of evidence based practices.  The bureau is holding 2 trainings for counties: 
Minocqua on November 7, 2012, and Madison on November 8, 2012.   
 
Mr. Oppor reported the 2010 epi profile Alcohol & Drug data shows the consequences 
and consumption level of alcohol and drugs in Wisconsin.  For 2012, a new chapter will 
be added listing risk factors, both individual and community risk factors. 
 
Mr. Oppor reported that Wisconsin was awarded a 3 year prescription drug abuse grant 
to work with counties with the highest prescription drug abuse rates.  Based on data, the 
Bureau will be working with Kenosha, Racine, Milwaukee, Langlade, Forest, Oneida, 
Lincoln, Adams and Menominee counties. 
 
Mr. Oppor identified the 8 goals for the Substance Abuse Block Grant.  He also 
summarized the outcome of the Federal Technical Review of Wisconsin’s $28 million 
block grant which was concluded in October 2012.  No compliance problems were 
identified.  Technical assistance was recommended in the areas of workforce 
development, consolidation of the bureau’s 500 contracts, the increase use of electronic 
medical records, and development of policies for on-site review of agencies that 
subcontract with counties for substance use disorder treatment.   
 

IV. Scopes of Practice - Lou Oppor, Bureau of Prevention, Treatment and Recovery 
 
Lou Oppor reported that the decision about reimbursement qualifications rests with the 
Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional Services.  He reported that Medicaid is 
not going to recommend increasing the level of required training at this time.  It is still 
unknown how the Affordable Care Act (ACA) will impact the substance abuse field and 
our Federal block grant.  He assured that the bureau will work with staff to qualify them 
as MA reimbursable.   
 

V. Testimony from the Public: Other areas of concern are also welcome to the discussion. 
 
None 
 

VI. Question and Answer 
 
Attendee: There is a requirement that agencies do tb testing.  Does the agency need a 
nurse to do this testing?   

65



Lou Oppor: There is already a requirement in administrative code that agencies offer tb 
testing.  One of the bureau’s priorities is that 100% of all certified AODA treatment 
agencies in Wisconsin will screen patients for TB and provide them with referral 
information about TB testing and treatment if the screen is positive. 
 
Attendee: if the Affordable Care Act goes away in January, what happens to the Scopes 
of Practice?  If clinics are required to have master’s prepared staff, the price of treatment 
will go up.  
 
Lou Oppor: the bureau has taken no position on this.  The Scopes of Practice are only 
guidelines, not a mandate.  States have to look at how the workforce is developed.  There 
is a move toward integrating mental health and substance use disorder treatment with 
primary care.   
 
Attendee: If you look at the field nationally, there is a push to increase professionalism. 
 
Joyce Allen: Insurance companies’ best practice is moving that way but the state does not 
want to lose the valuable services of those in the field.  The issues are how we move 
forward as insurance companies require master degrees and how we utilize those 
currently in the field. 
 
Attendee: stated he has lived through the transition from Associate degree to Bachelor 
degree and it does work.  The field needs to move in that direction. 
 
Attendee: there was a pilot for supported employment and peer specialist training.  Is the 
bureau looking at funding more training through the SABG? 
 
Joyce Allen: The bureau has already funded peer support training.  She reported a 
possible 8-12% cut to the block grant in 2013.  She stated we are waiting for committee 
recommendations for recovery coaches.   
 
Attendee: Where do you get training for peer specialists? 
 
Joyce Allen: Contact Lalena Lampe or Faith Boersma in the Bureau of Prevention, 
Treatment and Recovery.   
 
Attendee: thanked the council for integrating nicotine support into treatment services.  
He reported that the state collects $760 million/year on tobacco and only $55 million on 
alcohol.  He noted that smoking has been cut by 20% while the use of alcohol remains 
high. 
 
Joyce O’Donnell stated that Planning and Funding has gone on record supporting the 
increase in the alcohol tax and will plan to put it forward as a ‘user fee.’  Lou Oppor 
reported that Health First has expanded its scope from tobacco to include alcohol and 
obesity.  They are working to change the alcohol culture in Wisconsin, doing focus 
groups and are talking to key legislative leaders to see if there is any interest in 

66



increasing alcohol taxes or in allowing sobriety checkpoints.  Health First employs its 
own lobbyist. 
 
Pamela Bean: commented that there has been work on increasing alcohol tax over the last 
5 years and that the barrier is usually in the legislature.  They will continue to work on 
this. 
 
Joyce O’Donnell: individuals can look for candidates who support this. 
 
Attendee:  Are we doing anything with aging physicians (addictionologists)?   
 
Tom Fuchs: reported they have a hospital based residency program where they do a 2 
week internship which he hopes will spark their interest in entering this field 
 
Joyce Allen: We can support it but can’t create it.  Whose responsibility is it?  The 
University, Dept. of Safety and Professional Services or DHS? 
 

VII.   Adjourn – Joyce O’Donnell 
 
Meeting adjourned at 5:45 p.m. 

 

67



SCAODA Motion Introduction 
 

Committee Introducing Motion:  Planning and Funding 
Motion:  The Planning and Funding Committee supports the Department of Public Instruction 
(DPI) in retaining the current $1.3 million allocation received from the Penalty Surcharge into 
the next biennium and for the foreseeable future.  
Related SCAODA Goal:  2.Wisconsin cultural norms change to people vehemently rejecting 
social acceptance of the AODA status quo and demand and support methods to transform the 
state’s AODA problems into healthy behavioral outcomes.  3.There will be educated Wisconsin 
citizens regarding the negative fiscal, human and societal impacts of AODA in WI (e.g., risk and 
addiction, prevention, stigma, treatment and recovery, including the racial and gender disparities 
and inequities relative to these issues). 4.Wisconsin will have adequate, sustainable infrastructure 
and fiscal, systems, and human resources and capacity:  a.For effective prevention efforts across 
multiple target groups including the disproportionately affected   
Background:  Generally, whenever a court imposes a fine or forfeiture for a violation of state law 
or local ordinance, the court is required to impose a penalty surcharge on the defendant and 
transfers it to the State.  In each year of the current biennium, $4,889,100 is scheduled to be 
transferred to 15 programs in 5 agencies.  DOJ, as part of its 13-15 Biennial Budget, has 
requested that it retain 100% of this surcharge for its programming.  DPI currently receives 
approximately $1.3 million per year which is used to award competitive grants to school districts 
and for funding for CESAs that provide school districts with technical assistance .   
• Positive impact:  DPI will retain funding to provide grants to school districts that provide 

alcohol and drug prevention services 
• Potential Opposition:  Department of Justice 
Rationale for Supporting Motion:  DPI provides financial assistance to school districts for 
prevention-related activities and to CESAs that provide technical assistance.  Without this source 
of revenue, this funding will be eliminated resulting in the last cuts to school district prevention 
programs.   

 

68



SCAODA Motion Introduction 
 

Committee Introducing Motion:  Planning and Funding 
Motion:  to support the addition of the definition of intoxicant (“any alcohol beverage, substance 
used contrary to s. 941.316, controlled substance, controlled substance analog or other drug, or 
any combination thereof”) to the vehicle statutes that apply to the OWI laws 
Related SCAODA Goal:  SCAODA with its committees  will effectively fulfill the statutory 
dictate to provide leadership and direction on AODA issues in Wisconsin.  
Background:  Planning and Funding reviewed a memorandum from Nina J. Emerson, J.D., 
Director of the Resource Center on Impaired Driving, dated October 23, 2012, regarding a recent 
Huffing case followed by discussion of needed law changes.  A woman was arrested for OWI 
after nearly hitting a mini-van and crashing her car into a ditch.  No alcohol was found.  1, 1-
Difluoroethane (DFE), was found in the driver.  The case was dismissed after the court found 
that this chemical was not an 'intoxicant' for purposes of the OWI statute.  2007 Assembly Bill 
608 proposed a definition of "intoxicant for the Vehicles Chapter under ss 340.01(25d) to mean: 
"any alcohol beverage, substance used contrary to s. 941.316, controlled substance, controlled 
substance analog or other drug, or any combination thereof."  That bill never made it out of 
committee.  It is likely that something similar to 2007 AB 608 will be introduced in the next 
legislative session which begins in January.   
• Positive impact:  Individuals who ingest or inhale these additional substances that may 

impair driving could be charged with Operating While Intoxicated.  
• Potential Opposition:  unknown 
Rationale for Supporting Motion:  Increasing highway safety to reduce death and injuries in 
Wisconsin.   

 

69



James E. Causey - Treatment is the best way to fight crime

http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/treatment-is-the-best-way-to-fight-crime-id7pj86-181082581.html[11/29/2012 2:25:25 PM]

Home News Watchdog Opinion Sports Business Food Entertainment Lifestyle Photo/Video Moms Marketplace Jobs Cars Homes Rentals

Main Page Editorials Local Perspectives Editorial Board Blog Crossroads Causey Nichols Letters National Columnists

Home » News » Opinion

Tweet 6 0

E-mail | Twitter | FacebookJames E. Causey | In My Opinion

Blog Updates

Updates from from James E.
Causey's blog, Uncommon
Causey.

Sure, let athletes use
sexual performance drugs

(2)

The creative class is faring
pretty well (7)

Metal detectors and our
children (30)

View All Blog Posts

 Opinion

Treatment is the best way to fight crime

EMAIL PRINT (23) COMMENTS

When it comes to incarceration, law enforcement officials know that the
"lock 'em up and throw away the key" approach is too outdated and
expensive.

No one wants to be perceived as being soft on crime so the status quo
has remained. As a result, our prison system is packed with people who
have mental health issues and drug and alcohol addictions.

Their problems are not adequately addressed behind bars, and when
they get out, it's usually only a matter of time before they violate their
probation and end up back in a cell.

It's time to change the way we address criminality. Instead of a
continued investment into mass incarceration that we can no longer
afford, the state should reallocate more money into problem-solving
courts and diversion programs that treat low-risk, non-violent
offenders.

I'm not soft on crime. Prisons are the right place for those deemed too
violent to live in society. But for those who are struggling with drug and
alcohol addictions and mental illness, a smarter approach would be to
treat their problems so that they don't end up in the prison system in
the first place.

Contrary to popular belief, the Wisconsin prison system is not packed
with killers. Since 1996, 80% of the growth in the prison population in
Wisconsin has been attributed to drug and alcohol use. This figure
mirrors national statistics.

Here's the problem: The state average cost of putting someone behind
bars for a year is $32,000, while the most expensive treatment program
costs less than $8,000.

I'm not a financial whiz, but it makes more sense to spend $8,000 on
people and turn them into a productive member of society, rather than
pay $32,000 to incarcerate them.

Every dollar spent on treatment programs saves almost $2 in criminal
justice costs, according to the Wisconsin Office of Justice Assistance.
Using that yardstick, an investment of $75 million on the front end in
alternatives to prison programs would lead to annual savings of almost
$150 million. These findings are outlined in a report released
Wednesday by Human Impact Partners and WISDOM.

"Healthier Lives, Stronger Families, Safer Communitie s" looks at the
impact of drug and alcohol and mental health treatment courts, based
on the principle that public health issues are at the root of many crimes.

Since 2006, after the state Legislature put $1 million per year into the
Treatment Alternatives and Diversion programs, there has been a
decline in the recidivism rates in the seven piloted locations.

ACROSS THE BOARD

The Journal Sentinel Editorial
Board’s blog on the day’s
happenings as they happen.

Walker's same-day voter registration ban
is bad politics, not good policy (105)

Walker should reconsider (31)

Historic moment for county? (1)

View All Blog Posts

TOP STORIES

Former Walker aide
pleads guilt to
embezzlement charge
in John Doe

Nordstrom opening
department store at
Mayfair mall by 2015

Feds delay Head Start
contracts, giving SDC
new worries

Final state numbers
show Nov. 6 voter
turnout set record

Nicolet National to
acquire Mid-Wisconsin
Bank for $10 million

MORE NEWS

UW System unveils
first flexible degrees
for working adults

Donating, one tree at
a time, to brighten
troops' spirits

Iron mine still alive,
Walker says

JS Everywhere Subscription: Login | Subscribe | Manage Subscription| E-Edition| Help

Hot Topics: Holiday TV  | Nominate Christmas art  | Officer's act of kindness  | Powerball
 

Nov. 27, 2012

Recommend
66

 enlarge photo

Journal Sentinel files
A new report by Human Impact
Partners and Wisdom says it’s time
to be smarter on crime.

70

http://www.jsonline.com/
http://adclick.g.doubleclick.net/aclk%253Fsa%253DL%2526ai%253DBKH61psS3UPYUjtarAd2agMAL14nY1AIAAAAQASAAOABYn_bNoXBgydbZjfyk-BSCARdjYS1wdWItMzg4MzI2MjE3MTEzNTYxObIBEHd3dy5qc29ubGluZS5jb226AQlnZnBfaW1hZ2XIAQnaAWRodHRwOi8vd3d3Lmpzb25saW5lLmNvbS9uZXdzL29waW5pb24vdHJlYXRtZW50LWlzLXRoZS1iZXN0LXdheS10by1maWdodC1jcmltZS1pZDdwajg2LTE4MTA4MjU4MS5odG1swAIC4AIA6gIcNjM4Mi9leHQudGFnLmNhcnNvdXAvc3RhdGlvbvgCgtIegAMBkAPoApgD6AKoAwHgBAGgBh8%2526num%253D0%2526sig%253DAOD64_1oFvcS7llEEa0ymL-2DA8ZTy03Uw%2526client%253Dca-pub-3883262171135619%2526adurl%253Dhttp://www.carsoup.com?utm_source=jsonline.com&utm_medium=Banner&utm_term=&utm_content=728x90&utm_campaign=SearchFuel
http://www.jsonline.com/
http://www.jsonline.com/
http://www.jsonline.com/news
http://www.jsonline.com/news
http://www.jsonline.com/watchdog
http://www.jsonline.com/watchdog
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion
http://www.jsonline.com/sports
http://www.jsonline.com/sports
http://www.jsonline.com/business
http://www.jsonline.com/business
http://www.jsonline.com/features/food
http://www.jsonline.com/features/food
http://www.jsonline.com/entertainment
http://www.jsonline.com/entertainment
http://www.jsonline.com/multimedia/28472744.html
http://www.jsonline.com/multimedia/28472744.html
http://www.milwaukeemoms.com/
http://www.milwaukeemoms.com/
http://www.jsonline.com/marketplace
http://www.jsonline.com/marketplace
http://www.jobnoggin.com/
http://www.jobnoggin.com/
http://www.carsoup.com/jsonline/home/Milwaukee-Wisconsin/
http://www.carsoup.com/jsonline/home/Milwaukee-Wisconsin/
http://www.jsonline.com/homes
http://www.jsonline.com/homes
http://www.jsonline.com/rentals
http://www.jsonline.com/rentals
http://clicks.beap.ad.yieldmanager.net/c/YnY9MS4wLjAmYnM9KDE1ZWlsY3U4YShnaWQkZGVjNTgxZWEtM2E2Mi0xMWUyLWI4NzAtNmY4YmI1YjU1NTM0LHN0JDEzNTQyMjA3MDkyMjE5OTIsc2kkMTMzODU1MSxjciQzMDI5MjYxMDUxLHYkMi4wLGFpZCQySWF6aFdLSVZTay0sY3QkMjUseWJ4JDRHRURKVy5UWVNiaERrazF6Z093TGcsYmkkMTU1MzU0NjA1MSxyJDAscmQkMTEzZGRjNGZlKSk/1/*http://shopping.jsonline.com/?p=mjs#!/flyers/shopko-specials?flyer_run_id=3567
http://clicks.beap.ad.yieldmanager.net/c/YnY9MS4wLjAmYnM9KDE1ZWlsY3U4YShnaWQkZGVjNTgxZWEtM2E2Mi0xMWUyLWI4NzAtNmY4YmI1YjU1NTM0LHN0JDEzNTQyMjA3MDkyMjE5OTIsc2kkMTMzODU1MSxjciQzMDI5MjYxMDUxLHYkMi4wLGFpZCQySWF6aFdLSVZTay0sY3QkMjUseWJ4JDRHRURKVy5UWVNiaERrazF6Z093TGcsYmkkMTU1MzU0NjA1MSxyJDAscmQkMTEzZGRjNGZlKSk/1/*http://shopping.jsonline.com/?p=mjs#!/flyers/shopko-specials?flyer_run_id=3567
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/#editorials
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/#editorials
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/#perspectives
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/#perspectives
http://www.jsonline.com/blogs/news/acrosstheboard.html
http://www.jsonline.com/blogs/news/acrosstheboard.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/#crossroads
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/#crossroads
http://www.jsonline.com/columns/james_E_causey.html
http://www.jsonline.com/columns/james_E_causey.html
http://www.jsonline.com/columns/mike_nichols.html
http://www.jsonline.com/columns/mike_nichols.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/#letters
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/#letters
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/#nationalcolumnists
http://www.jsonline.com/
http://www.jsonline.com/news
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?original_referer=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.jsonline.com%2Fnews%2Fopinion%2Ftreatment-is-the-best-way-to-fight-crime-id7pj86-181082581.html&text=James%20E.%20Causey%20-%20Treatment%20is%20the%20best%20way%20to%20fight%20crime&tw_p=tweetbutton&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.jsonline.com%2Fnews%2Fopinion%2Ftreatment-is-the-best-way-to-fight-crime-id7pj86-181082581.html
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?original_referer=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.jsonline.com%2Fnews%2Fopinion%2Ftreatment-is-the-best-way-to-fight-crime-id7pj86-181082581.html&text=James%20E.%20Causey%20-%20Treatment%20is%20the%20best%20way%20to%20fight%20crime&tw_p=tweetbutton&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.jsonline.com%2Fnews%2Fopinion%2Ftreatment-is-the-best-way-to-fight-crime-id7pj86-181082581.html
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?original_referer=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.jsonline.com%2Fnews%2Fopinion%2Ftreatment-is-the-best-way-to-fight-crime-id7pj86-181082581.html&text=James%20E.%20Causey%20-%20Treatment%20is%20the%20best%20way%20to%20fight%20crime&tw_p=tweetbutton&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.jsonline.com%2Fnews%2Fopinion%2Ftreatment-is-the-best-way-to-fight-crime-id7pj86-181082581.html
http://twitter.com/search?q=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.jsonline.com%2Fnews%2Fopinion%2Ftreatment-is-the-best-way-to-fight-crime-id7pj86-181082581.html
mailto:jcausey@journalsentinel.com
http://twitter.com/jecausey
https://www.facebook.com/profile.php?id=787906387
http://www.jsonline.com/blogs/news/181412241.html
http://www.jsonline.com/blogs/news/181412241.html
http://www.jsonline.com/blogs/news/181412241.html?page=1
http://www.jsonline.com/blogs/news/181044991.html
http://www.jsonline.com/blogs/news/181044991.html
http://www.jsonline.com/blogs/news/181044991.html?page=1
http://www.jsonline.com/blogs/news/180615291.html
http://www.jsonline.com/blogs/news/180615291.html
http://www.jsonline.com/blogs/news/180615291.html?page=1
http://www.jsonline.com/blogs/news/uncommoncausey.html
http://www.jsonline.com/rss?c=y&path=/news/opinion
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/treatment-is-the-best-way-to-fight-crime-id7pj86-181082581.html?page=1
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/treatment-is-the-best-way-to-fight-crime-id7pj86-181082581.html?page=1
http://prayforjusticeinwi.org/wp-content/uploads/2012/11/11x15_Health_Impact_Assessment_Summary.pdf
http://www.jsonline.com/blogs/news/180222071.html
http://www.jsonline.com/blogs/news/180222071.html
http://www.jsonline.com/blogs/news/180222071.html?page=1
http://www.jsonline.com/blogs/news/179695021.html
http://www.jsonline.com/blogs/news/179695021.html?page=1
http://www.jsonline.com/blogs/news/179318101.html
http://www.jsonline.com/blogs/news/179318101.html?page=1
http://www.jsonline.com/blogs/news/acrosstheboard.html

http://www.jsonline.com/news/milwaukee/former-walker-aide-pleads-guilt-to-embezzlement-charge-in-john-doe-iq7rgfb-181418561.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/milwaukee/former-walker-aide-pleads-guilt-to-embezzlement-charge-in-john-doe-iq7rgfb-181418561.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/milwaukee/former-walker-aide-pleads-guilt-to-embezzlement-charge-in-john-doe-iq7rgfb-181418561.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/milwaukee/former-walker-aide-pleads-guilt-to-embezzlement-charge-in-john-doe-iq7rgfb-181418561.html
http://www.jsonline.com/blogs/business/181400891.html
http://www.jsonline.com/blogs/business/181400891.html
http://www.jsonline.com/blogs/business/181400891.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/milwaukee/feds-delay-head-start-contracts-giving-sdc-new-worries-817rhe7-181401741.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/milwaukee/feds-delay-head-start-contracts-giving-sdc-new-worries-817rhe7-181401741.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/milwaukee/feds-delay-head-start-contracts-giving-sdc-new-worries-817rhe7-181401741.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/statepolitics/final-state-numbers-show-nov-6-voter-turnout-set-record-9v7rhaf-181398001.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/statepolitics/final-state-numbers-show-nov-6-voter-turnout-set-record-9v7rhaf-181398001.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/statepolitics/final-state-numbers-show-nov-6-voter-turnout-set-record-9v7rhaf-181398001.html
http://www.jsonline.com/business/nicolet-national-to-acquire-midwisconsin-bank-for-10-million-dc7rf7u-181366061.html
http://www.jsonline.com/business/nicolet-national-to-acquire-midwisconsin-bank-for-10-million-dc7rf7u-181366061.html
http://www.jsonline.com/business/nicolet-national-to-acquire-midwisconsin-bank-for-10-million-dc7rf7u-181366061.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/education/uw-system-unveils-first-flexible-degrees-for-working-adults-o57qs51-181182651.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/education/uw-system-unveils-first-flexible-degrees-for-working-adults-o57qs51-181182651.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/education/uw-system-unveils-first-flexible-degrees-for-working-adults-o57qs51-181182651.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/wisconsin/donating-one-tree-at-a-time-to-brighten-troops-spirits-6g7r0f0-181280981.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/wisconsin/donating-one-tree-at-a-time-to-brighten-troops-spirits-6g7r0f0-181280981.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/wisconsin/donating-one-tree-at-a-time-to-brighten-troops-spirits-6g7r0f0-181280981.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/wisconsin/iron-mine-still-alive-walker-says-m97r8b7-181281491.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/wisconsin/iron-mine-still-alive-walker-says-m97r8b7-181281491.html
http://www.jsonline.com/?subscriber_login=y
https://subscriberservices.jsonline.com/subscribe
https://subscriberservices.jsonline.com/
http://milwaukeejournalsentinel.wi.newsmemory.com/?token=bd5ad9aa482ec3007c721dec65c5cac3_1373_&selDate
http://www.jsonline.com/help
http://www.jsonline.com/entertainment/tvradio/2012-holiday-tv-schedule-t47j74i-180227721.html
http://www.jsonline.com/blogs/entertainment/179318691.html
http://hosted.ap.org/dynamic/stories/U/US_NYPD_ACT_OF_KINDNESS?SITE=WIMIL&SECTION=HOME&TEMPLATE=DEFAULT
http://www.jsonline.com/news/wisconsin/jackpot-goes-to-arizona-missouri-players-1-million-powerball-prize-in-west-allis-i87renr-181356691.html
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);


James E. Causey - Treatment is the best way to fight crime

http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/treatment-is-the-best-way-to-fight-crime-id7pj86-181082581.html[11/29/2012 2:25:25 PM]

23 Comments »
Read and share your thoughts on this story.

E-mail Newsletter
The latest local news delivered to your inbox Monday-Friday during the 2 p.m. hour – or
whenever there’s big breaking news.

Enter your e-mail address above and click "Sign Up Now!" to begin receiving your e-mail
newsletter
Login or Register to manage all  your newsletter preferences.

In Milwaukee, for example, crime decreased 23% since 2007, the year TAD programs went into effect.
Specifically, homicide and rape have decreased between 4% and 5%, and theft and auto theft dropped
17% and 27%, respectively.

Most notably, Milwaukee had a 14% decline in inmate population at the county jail and County Correctional
Facility-South between 2008 and 2010.

John Chisholm, the Milwaukee County district attorney, said cutting crime rates while reducing the number
of those incarcerated should be the goal.

"But it can only be done if we can change a person's behavior, and that starts with treatment," he said.

Gov. Scott Walker's Criminal Justice Coordinating Council should draft new language to expand TAD
programming statewide.

Walker created the council to facilitate the best criminal justice practices because he knew he was dealing
with limited resources. Expanding TAD works because it addresses people's addictions and mental illness,
and by doing so it keeps them from harming innocent people.

The Legislature can design the program to hold counties accountable based on how low they can reduce
the recidivism rate and prison populations.

The prison population has significantly higher rates of substance and alcohol abuse, and only 61% of state
prisons provide substance abuse treatment, the report shows.

That statistic alone suggests that we need to be more focused on the treatment side of things.

Since the War on Drugs, the nation's prison population has tripled from 1983 to 1999. The War on Drugs
failed because the focus was more on locking up people, not treating their addictions. The focus should
have been on treating people's addictions to prevent them from participating in destructive behavior.

In some inner city neighborhoods, it's easier to find a liquor store than it is to find a grocery store selling
fresh foods. That's a problem.

We tried being tough on crime, and the only thing that did was pack our prisons. Now it's time to be
smarter on crime, and that starts with treatment. We can't afford not to do this. 

LIKELIHOOD OF IMPRISONMENT
African-American: Men, 1 in 3; women, 1 in 18.
Hispanic: Men, 1 in 6; women, 1 in 45
White: Men, 1 in 17; women, 1 in 111.

James E. Causey is a Journal Sentinel editorial writer, columnist and blogger. Email jcausey@jrn.com.
Twitter: @jecausey

  Buy a link here  

NFL Extra Points Card
Get Unbeatable Rewards & No Annual Fee w/
Your Official NFL Team Credit Card. Apply
Today.
http://www.nflextrapoints.com

A Super Pill to Burn Fat?
Hailed as a Miracle Diet Aid -- But Is It Right for
You?
www.HLifestyles.com

ARCHIVES

Nov. 24, 2012 | Treating our kids like suspects
Nov. 20, 2012 | Overhaul needed to help boys
Nov. 17, 2012 | Illiteracy is a crime waiting to happen
Nov. 10, 2012 | Minority issues must be addressed
Nov. 6, 2012 | The next four years Collaboration is simply a must
Nov. 3, 2012 | A year after state concealed-carry law, gun sales stay red hot
Oct. 27, 2012 | HIV home kit gives fast results
Oct. 23, 2012 | An intervention was needed

most read commented e-mailed

Abele talks county
government overhaul

John Doe investigation
still open, judge says

Educators consider
impact of character

Accused man says
stabbing in Milwaukee
was in self-defense

Corrections reforms
would cut crime, save
money, advocates say

ABOUT THE EDITORIAL BOARD

Editorial Board: Who we are and what
we do
David D. Haynes: Our job - Keep the
marketplace of ideas stocked 

SUBMISSION GUIDELINES

Write a letter to the editor
Submit an opinion piece to Perspectives or
Crossroads

MOST POPULAR - NEWS

Car hits, kills pedestrian in Bay View

UW System unveils first flexible degrees for
working adults

John Doe investigation still open, judge says

Judge temporarily halts tribes' push for night
deer hunting

Iron mine still alive, Walker says

more most popular content...

Sponsored Links

NFL Extra Points Card
Get Unbeatable Rewards & No Annual Fee w/
Your Official NFL Team Credit Card. Apply...
http://www.nflextrapoints.com

A Super Pill to Burn Fat?
Hailed as a Miracle Diet Aid -- But Is It Right for
You?
www.HLifestyles.com

1 Must-Own Gold Stock
Ride This Stock to a Precious Metals Investing
Fortune.

Recommend

Recommend

You and 66 others
recommend this.66 people
recommend this. Sign Up to
see what your friends

71

http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/treatment-is-the-best-way-to-fight-crime-id7pj86-181082581.html?page=1
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/treatment-is-the-best-way-to-fight-crime-id7pj86-181082581.html?page=1
http://www.jsonline.com/s?action=login&rurl=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.jsonline.com%2Fnews%2Fopinion%2Ftreatment-is-the-best-way-to-fight-crime-id7pj86-181082581.html
http://www.jsonline.com/s?action=reg&rurl=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.jsonline.com%2Fnews%2Fopinion%2Ftreatment-is-the-best-way-to-fight-crime-id7pj86-181082581.html
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/code/executive_orders/2011_scott_walker/2012-65.pdf
http://www.jsonline.com/blogs/news/130209423.html
mailto:jcausey@jrn.com
http://www.twitter.com/jecausey
https://jsonline.sl.advertising.com/admin/advertisers/regWizard1.jsp?plid=165051
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/treating-our-kids-like-suspects-hr7n5re-180641531.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/overhaul-needed-to-help-boys-827napg-180252881.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/illiteracy-is-a-crime-waiting-to-happen-6q7k0i7-179749071.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/one-last-look-at-2012-election-minority-issues-must-be-addressed-8i7i20g-178214971.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/the-next-four-years-collaboration-is-a-must-8p7f55g-177564721.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/a-year-after-state-concealedcarry-law-gun-sales-stay-red-hot-4o7cbak-177034411.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/hiv-home-kit-gives-fast-results-717athd-176045141.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/an-intervention-was-needed-4j7abp1-175509811.html
javascript:nullFunction();
javascript:nullFunction();
javascript:nullFunction();
javascript:nullFunction();
javascript:nullFunction();
javascript:nullFunction();
http://www.jsonline.com/news/milwaukee/abele-talks-county-government-overhaul-jh7r5kh-181273641.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/milwaukee/abele-talks-county-government-overhaul-jh7r5kh-181273641.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/milwaukee/john-doe-investigation-still-open-judge-says-jh7r5ku-181283631.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/milwaukee/john-doe-investigation-still-open-judge-says-jh7r5ku-181283631.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/education/educators-consider-impact-of-character-mg7r8go-181289011.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/education/educators-consider-impact-of-character-mg7r8go-181289011.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/crime/accused-man-says-stabbing-in-milwaukee-was-in-selfdefense-5a7r7ho-181263671.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/crime/accused-man-says-stabbing-in-milwaukee-was-in-selfdefense-5a7r7ho-181263671.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/crime/accused-man-says-stabbing-in-milwaukee-was-in-selfdefense-5a7r7ho-181263671.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/crime/reforms-would-cut-crime-save-money-advocates-say-587qlnv-181200341.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/crime/reforms-would-cut-crime-save-money-advocates-say-587qlnv-181200341.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/crime/reforms-would-cut-crime-save-money-advocates-say-587qlnv-181200341.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/35632969.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/35632969.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/35632969.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/113104069.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/113104069.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/113104069.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/30627794.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/36034024.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/36034024.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/milwaukee/car-hits-kills-pedestrian-in-bay-view-ic7rbv1-181299621.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/education/uw-system-unveils-first-flexible-degrees-for-working-adults-o57qs51-181182651.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/education/uw-system-unveils-first-flexible-degrees-for-working-adults-o57qs51-181182651.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/milwaukee/john-doe-investigation-still-open-judge-says-jh7r5ku-181283631.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/wisconsin/judge-temporarily-halts-tribes-push-for-night-deer-hunting-m97r7h9-181272651.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/wisconsin/judge-temporarily-halts-tribes-push-for-night-deer-hunting-m97r7h9-181272651.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/wisconsin/iron-mine-still-alive-walker-says-m97r8b7-181281491.html
http://www.jsonline.com/popular_content
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
http://www.facebook.com/campaign/landing.php?campaign_id=137675572948107&partner_id=jsonline.com&placement=like_plugin&extra_1=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.jsonline.com%2Fnews%2Fopinion%2Ftreatment-is-the-best-way-to-fight-crime-id7pj86-181082581.html&extra_2=US


James E. Causey - Treatment is the best way to fight crime

http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/treatment-is-the-best-way-to-fight-crime-id7pj86-181082581.html[11/29/2012 2:25:25 PM]

Oct. 20, 2012 | We must protect the vulnerable
Oct. 16, 2012 | A big-time threat to diversity
Oct. 13, 2012 | She's seeing a bright future
Oct. 9, 2012 | When cops become jaded
Oct. 2, 2012 | Not another Dahmer film
Sept. 28, 2012 | MPD needs to rebuild trust in the city's neighborhoods
Sept. 25, 2012 | I've had enough of Ed Flynn
Sept. 22, 2012 | School lunch is healthier
Sept. 18, 2012 | A stable, loving home is sexy
Sept. 8, 2012 | Obama's passion for middle class
Sept. 5, 2012 | Better off? Yes, we are is the answer
Sept. 4, 2012 | Preaching to the choir at the DNC

  Buy a link here  
www.StockSpecialists.com

Education

UW System unveils
flexible degrees

Theater

New director hopes to
make 'Carol' bright

Books

How government spun
the UFO tale

Food

Christmas meal can
be cooked in advance

On Tap for Today

The Cudahy gang a-
caroling

Holiday TV

Schedule for holiday
TV programs

Elsewhere on JSOnline

JSOnline | MyCommunityNOW | Living Lake Country | MilwaukeeMoms | Today's TMJ4 | Newsradio 620 | 94.5 Lake FM
UPDATED PRIVACY POLICY/YOUR CALIFORNIA PRIVACY RIGHTS 

| Updated Terms of Use | Contact Us | Journal Careers | Subscription Services | Place an Ad | About Our Ads | Advertise with Us | PR Hub
© 2012, Journal Sentinel Inc. All rights reserved.

Powered by Clickability.
Produced and Managed by Journal Interactive.

72

http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/we-must-protect-the-vulnerable-vm78jap-175017731.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/a-bigtime-threat-to-diversity-g676o19-174494151.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/shes-seeing-a-bright-future-n175n4p-173974431.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/when-cops-become-jaded-kf75c7u-173393241.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/not-another-dahmer-film-qi6vpd1-172382771.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/milwaukee-police--two-views-mpd-needs-to-rebuild-trust-in-the-citys-neighborhoods-3k70r26-171864411.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/ive-had-enough-of-ed-flynn-h3709of-171251561.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/school-lunch-is-healthier-md6u2m8-170773956.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/a-stable-loving-home-is-sexy-q46sugm-170253506.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/obamas-passion-for-middle-class-jr6oov4-168984226.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/better-off-yes-we-are-is-the-answer-jr6ojci-168691476.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/preaching-to-the-choir-at-the-dnc-bf6o341-168533596.html
https://jsonline.sl.advertising.com/admin/advertisers/regWizard1.jsp?plid=165051
javascript:void(0);
http://www.jsonline.com/news/education/uw-system-unveils-first-flexible-degrees-for-working-adults-o57qs51-181182651.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/education/uw-system-unveils-first-flexible-degrees-for-working-adults-o57qs51-181182651.html
http://www.jsonline.com/news/education/uw-system-unveils-first-flexible-degrees-for-working-adults-o57qs51-181182651.html
http://www.jsonline.com/entertainment/arts/new-director-new-scrooge-hope-to-make-reps-christmas-carol-bright-ce7n45e-181244231.html
http://www.jsonline.com/entertainment/arts/new-director-new-scrooge-hope-to-make-reps-christmas-carol-bright-ce7n45e-181244231.html
http://www.jsonline.com/entertainment/arts/new-director-new-scrooge-hope-to-make-reps-christmas-carol-bright-ce7n45e-181244231.html
http://www.jsonline.com/entertainment/arts/how-us-government-spun-the-ufo-tale-cs7ljrk-181244271.html
http://www.jsonline.com/entertainment/arts/how-us-government-spun-the-ufo-tale-cs7ljrk-181244271.html
http://www.jsonline.com/entertainment/arts/how-us-government-spun-the-ufo-tale-cs7ljrk-181244271.html
http://www.jsonline.com/features/food/christmas-meal-can-be-cooked-in-advance-qg7k209-180843921.html
http://www.jsonline.com/features/food/christmas-meal-can-be-cooked-in-advance-qg7k209-180843921.html
http://www.jsonline.com/features/food/christmas-meal-can-be-cooked-in-advance-qg7k209-180843921.html
http://www.jsonline.com/blogs/entertainment/180999201.html
http://www.jsonline.com/blogs/entertainment/180999201.html
http://www.jsonline.com/blogs/entertainment/180999201.html
http://www.jsonline.com/entertainment/tvradio/2012-holiday-tv-schedule-t47j74i-180227721.html
http://www.jsonline.com/entertainment/tvradio/2012-holiday-tv-schedule-t47j74i-180227721.html
http://www.jsonline.com/entertainment/tvradio/2012-holiday-tv-schedule-t47j74i-180227721.html
http://www.jsonline.com/
http://www.mycommunitynow.com/
http://www.livinglakecountry.com/
http://www.milwaukeemoms.com/
http://www.todaystmj4.com/
http://www.620wtmj.com/
http://www.945lakefm.com/
http://www.jsonline.com/privacy/
http://www.jsonline.com/privacy/
http://www.jsonline.com/termsofuse/
http://www.jsonline.com/contact/
http://www.jobsatjournalsentinel.com/
http://www.jsonline.com/services/
http://www.jsonline.com/placeanad/
http://www.jsonline.com/general/31308799.html#trackingTechnology
http://www.jsonline.com/advertise/
http://www.jsonline.com/business/pressrelease
http://www.jsonline.com/copyright.html
http://www.clickability.com/
http://www.journalinteractive.com/
http://www.journalinteractive.com/


Groups say state should fund treatment over incarceration

http://host.madison.com/wsj/news/local/govt-and-politics/groups-say-state-should-fund-treatment-over-incarceration/article_5f1d939a-38b1-11e2-a1a3-001a4bcf887a.html[11/29/2012 2:18:16 PM]

 

48°
Clear

sponsored by
Advanced Search  | Privacy  | About Our Ads

Web Search powered by YAHOO! SEARCH

5 0 19 Print  Email

November 27, 2012 7:45 pm  •  DEE J. HALL | Wisconsin State Journal | dhall@madison.com | 608-
252-6132

(16) Comments

Inmates play cards and watch television
in the dayroom of the Jefferson unit of
the Racine Correctional Institution on
Christmas Day 2002. Two groups say
the state should spend more money on
treatment for offenders with drug and
alcohol addictions or mental health
issues.

Enlarge Photo

Summary of findings
A new report is recommending that
Wisconsin spend $75 million a year
on treatment programs that keep
offenders out of prison. It projects:

• 3,100 fewer prison admissions.

• 21,000 fewer jail admissions.

• 1,000 fewer crimes over five

Groups say state should fund
treatment over incarceration

Wisconsin should dramatically increase the amount of
money it spends on treatment programs that keep offenders
with drug and alcohol addictions and mental illness out of
prison, two groups said Tuesday.

The call is receiving a warm reception from some
Republicans and Democrats weary of forking over roughly
$1.3 billion a year to lock up Wisconsin offenders — about
half of whom land back in prison after release.

WISDOM, a faith-based organization that includes 145
congregations from 19 faiths in Wisconsin, and Human
Impact Partners, an Oakland, Calif.-based nonprofit that
studies the effects of public policies on community well-
being, are recommending that the state spend $75 million a
year on treatment programs and an additional $20 million a
year on other supportive services.

The state currently spends just under $1 million a year on
such diversion programs, according to the two groups, which
conducted a yearlong study on the cost and effectiveness of
so-called problem-solving courts in Wisconsin and beyond.

Most such efforts are paid for by local communities, said
Milwaukee County District Attorney John Chisholm, whose

Most Popular

Unsealed warrants provide details of massive
investigation into Rising Sun bathhouse

Stadium Bar near Camp Randall may make
way for student apartments

About 50 Meriter employees losing jobs; total
of 140 full-time positions cut

Epic's growth has been a boon for Madison
as well as Verona

Radio personality Sly, others out of work at
WTDY

Breaking News Ex-Walker aide Russell pleads guilty to charge stemming from John Doe investigation

WSJ Subscriber Services WSJ E-Edition Login Archives Obituaries More Join the conversation Log In Register Subscribe

Weekly Forecast

News

Sites News Business Opinion Weather Communities Get It CarSoup Jobs Homes Rentals

Trending Fan Frenzy: High school Facebook contest! Rising Sun investigation Donate to Kids Fund Empty Stocking Club John Doe investigation

Recommend
169

Articles Comments Shared

What we're saying on Twitter

73


http://host.madison.com/search/advanced/?
http://host.madison.com/privacy/
http://host.madison.com/privacy/index.html#advertising
http://host.madison.com/content/tncms/live/#
http://ct5.addthis.com/static/r07/tweet025.html?AcrobatWebCapTID14#
http://twitter.com/#search?q=http%3A%2F%2Fhost.madison.com%2Fwsj%2Fnews%2Flocal%2Fgovt-and-politics%2Farticle_5f1d939a-38b1-11e2-a1a3-001a4bcf887a.html
http://twitter.com/#search?q=http%3A%2F%2Fhost.madison.com%2Fwsj%2Fnews%2Flocal%2Fgovt-and-politics%2Farticle_5f1d939a-38b1-11e2-a1a3-001a4bcf887a.html
http://host.madison.com/content/tncms/live/#
http://host.madison.com/content/tncms/live/#
http://host.madison.com/news/local/govt-and-politics/groups-say-state-should-fund-treatment-over-incarceration/article_5f1d939a-38b1-11e2-a1a3-001a4bcf887a.html?print=true&cid=print
http://host.madison.com/news/local/govt-and-politics/groups-say-state-should-fund-treatment-over-incarceration/article_5f1d939a-38b1-11e2-a1a3-001a4bcf887a.html?print=true&cid=print
javascript:return addthis_sendto('email');
http://host.madison.com/search/?l=50&sd=desc&s=start_time&f=html&byline=DEE%20J.%20HALL%20%7C%20Wisconsin%20State%20Journal%20%7C%20dhall%40madison.com%20%7C%20608-252-6132
http://host.madison.com/search/?l=50&sd=desc&s=start_time&f=html&byline=DEE%20J.%20HALL%20%7C%20Wisconsin%20State%20Journal%20%7C%20dhall%40madison.com%20%7C%20608-252-6132
http://host.madison.com/news/local/govt-and-politics/groups-say-state-should-fund-treatment-over-incarceration/article_5f1d939a-38b1-11e2-a1a3-001a4bcf887a.html#comments
http://host.madison.com/news/local/govt-and-politics/groups-say-state-should-fund-treatment-over-incarceration/article_5f1d939a-38b1-11e2-a1a3-001a4bcf887a.html#comments
http://host.madison.com/news/local/govt-and-politics/groups-say-state-should-fund-treatment-over-incarceration/article_5f1d939a-38b1-11e2-a1a3-001a4bcf887a.html#comments
http://host.madison.com/content/tncms/live/#
http://host.madison.com/content/tncms/live/#
http://host.madison.com/content/tncms/live/#
http://clicks.beap.ad.yieldmanager.net/c/YnY9MS4wLjAmYnM9KDE1ZTExODAwayhnaWQkZDBmODc4YTItM2E2MS0xMWUyLWFmNzAtN2JjZjBlNDBhZmQzLHN0JDEzNTQyMjAyNTY2NzEwMzEsc2kkMjAyMjU1MSxjciQzMDM2MDMxNTUxLHYkMi4wLGFpZCRyRjlINVdLSVZTdy0sY3QkMjUseWJ4JEh4cEJTdnRKcmN3VHgzaFhpNHY0cHcsYmkkMTU1NjUzMTA1MSxyJDAscmQkMTF0b3R1bGk2KSk/1/*http://madison.upickem.net/engine/Splash.aspx?contestid=20287
http://host.madison.com/news/local/crime_and_courts/unsealed-warrants-provide-details-of-massive-investigation-into-rising-sun/article_3d5fe5ce-34c3-11e2-8234-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/news/local/crime_and_courts/unsealed-warrants-provide-details-of-massive-investigation-into-rising-sun/article_3d5fe5ce-34c3-11e2-8234-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/business/biz_beat/stadium-bar-near-camp-randall-may-make-way-for-student/article_d8c4f8ca-32a1-11e2-9b1e-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/business/biz_beat/stadium-bar-near-camp-randall-may-make-way-for-student/article_d8c4f8ca-32a1-11e2-9b1e-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/news/local/health_med_fit/about-meriter-employees-losing-jobs-total-of-full-time-positions/article_3534d5d4-38de-11e2-84a1-001a4bcf887a.html
http://host.madison.com/news/local/health_med_fit/about-meriter-employees-losing-jobs-total-of-full-time-positions/article_3534d5d4-38de-11e2-84a1-001a4bcf887a.html
http://host.madison.com/business/epic-s-growth-has-been-a-boon-for-madison-as/article_97fbb2d0-34c1-11e2-929c-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/business/epic-s-growth-has-been-a-boon-for-madison-as/article_97fbb2d0-34c1-11e2-929c-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/business/radio-personality-sly-others-out-of-work-at-wtdy/article_82dc7696-3417-11e2-9b31-001a4bcf887a.html
http://host.madison.com/business/radio-personality-sly-others-out-of-work-at-wtdy/article_82dc7696-3417-11e2-9b31-001a4bcf887a.html

http://host.madison.com/wsj
http://host.madison.com/wsj/news/local/crime_and_courts/ex-walker-aide-russell-pleads-guilty-to-charge-stemming-from/article_df30ec10-3a5c-11e2-a737-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/circulation
http://wisconsinstatejournal.wi.newsmemory.com/
http://host.madison.com/archives
http://host.madison.com/news/local/obituaries/
https://host-dot-madison-dot-com.bloxcms.com/users/signup/?referer_url=/wsj/news/local/govt-and-politics/groups-say-state-should-fund-treatment-over-incarceration/article_5f1d939a-38b1-11e2-a1a3-001a4bcf887a.html
http://host.madison.com/subscribe/
http://host.madison.com/wsj
http://host.madison.com/sites
http://host.madison.com/sites
http://host.madison.com/wsj/local/
http://host.madison.com/wsj/local/
http://host.madison.com/wsj/business/
http://host.madison.com/wsj/business/
http://host.madison.com/wsj/opinion/
http://host.madison.com/wsj/opinion/
http://host.madison.com/weather/
http://host.madison.com/weather/
http://host.madison.com/communities/
http://host.madison.com/communities/
http://host.madison.com/get-it/
http://host.madison.com/get-it/
http://www.carsoup.com/madison/home/Central-Wisconsin
http://www.carsoup.com/madison/home/Central-Wisconsin
http://host.madison.com/classifieds/jobs/
http://host.madison.com/classifieds/jobs/
http://host.madison.com/classifieds/real_estate/
http://host.madison.com/classifieds/real_estate/
http://host.madison.com/classifieds/real_estate/apartments/
http://host.madison.com/classifieds/real_estate/apartments/
http://host.madison.com/app/sports/contest-fb-likes/
http://host.madison.com/search/?l=25&skin=/branding/wsj&k=%22%23wsj%22&sd=desc&s=start_time&f=html&q=%22rising%20sun%22&t=article&c=news/local/crime*&sForm=false&sHeading=Rising%20Sun%20police%20investigation
http://host.madison.com/ct/html_7d5bd0fe-d092-11de-a946-001cc4c03286.html
https://www.madison.com/empty-stocking/
http://go.madison.com/johndoe
http://host.madison.com/content/tncms/live/#
http://host.madison.com/content/tncms/live/#
http://host.madison.com/content/tncms/live/#
http://host.madison.com/content/tncms/live/#
http://host.madison.com/content/tncms/live/#
http://host.madison.com/weather/


Groups say state should fund treatment over incarceration

http://host.madison.com/wsj/news/local/govt-and-politics/groups-say-state-should-fund-treatment-over-incarceration/article_5f1d939a-38b1-11e2-a1a3-001a4bcf887a.html[11/29/2012 2:18:16 PM]

years.

• Up to 1,619 parents staying in
their communities.

Source: "Healthier Lives, Stronger
Families, Safer Communities: How
Increasing Funding for Alternatives
to Prison Will Save Lives and
Money in Wisconsin," WISDOM and
Human Impact Partners, November
2012.

county has used treatment and diversion programs to keep
about 3,000 offenders out of prison since 2006.

If the groups' recommendations are adopted, Chisholm said,
"We're going to increase public safety and we're going to do
it in a way that reduces costs," Chisholm said. "It's a win-
win."

The authors of the report project that the benefits would
include 3,100 fewer prisoners a year, 21,000 fewer jail
admissions, a reduction in repeat crimes and between 1,150

and 1,619 parents who remain in the community and not separated from their children.

"We seek to change the focus of the
incarceration debate in Wisconsin — away from
punishment of low-risk non-violent offenders to
improvement of health and community safety,"
the authors said.

Although $95 million a year may sound like a lot
of money, the report estimates that's just half the
cost of keeping such non-violent offenders in
prison.

Sen. John Lehman, D-Racine, outgoing
chairman of the Senate Education and
Corrections Committee, supports the
recommendation. He hopes Republican
lawmakers will feel the same way when they
regain control of the Senate in January.

Senate Majority Leader-elect Scott Fitzgerald, R-
Juneau, declined comment on the idea. But the

incoming Assembly speaker, Robin Vos, R-Burlington, said he would consider the
recommendations, adding, "We're always looking for cost-saving ideas."

State Rep. Garey Bies, R-Sister Bay, chairman of the Assembly Criminal Justice and Corrections
Committee and a former sheriff's deputy, said he supports the idea of increasing so-called
Treatment Alternative Diversion (TAD) programs.

"The data shows that TAD participants have a high level of success following program discharge,
and that money invested in TAD programs yields a much greater return and could reduce our
criminal justice system costs," Bies said. "The report may be a catalyst to a discussion on how
Wisconsin invests money in our criminal justice system."

Gov. Scott Walker has indicated he wants to find ways to save money by reducing the state prison
population, currently at 21,700, But spokesman Cullen Werwie declined to endorse any
recommendations, saying only that the governor will submit his proposed corrections budget early
next year.

The Republican governor formed the Criminal Justice Coordinating Council to, among other things,
find ways to cut Wisconsin's ballooning prison population.

The council's chairman, Republican Attorney General J.B. Van Hollen, has been a strong advocate
of drug courts that provide treatment instead of prison for some offenders. Van Hollen said he
supports exploring alternatives to incarceration "so long as public safety is the paramount
consideration."

View More...

I'm looking for:

Latest Local Offers

Bring in 10 shirts to have
cleaned and get two items of

your choice cleaned free!

Elite Package Bring in 10 shirts at the regular price of
$2.29…

Free Appraisal at Jim's Coins
& Stamps

Receive a FREE Appraisal

Do you suffer from Planter
Fasciitis?

We specialize in neuromuscular massage
treatments to reduce pa…

Air Duct Cleaning & Dryer
Vent Cleaning

Call us today to schedule an appointment and check out our
Web…

This week at Farm & Fleet

Great Gifts, Great Prices! 

Featured Businesses

First Weber Group

Keyman Lawncare, LLC

Tim O'Brien Homes

Oak Knoll Neuromuscular
Massage Therapy

A & L Limited Landscaping

Find a local business

Join the conversation

74

http://host.madison.com/search/?c=places/offers&t=article&sd=desc&s=start_time&sHeading=Get%20It%20Madison%20Latest%20Offers&skin=/get-it&D=business
http://host.madison.com/search/?c=places/offers&t=article&sd=desc&s=start_time&sHeading=Get%20It%20Madison%20Latest%20Offers&skin=/get-it&D=business
http://host.madison.com/places/offers/bring-in-shirts-to-have-cleaned-and-get-two-items/article_c16d0fe8-38cb-11e2-937a-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/places/offers/bring-in-shirts-to-have-cleaned-and-get-two-items/article_c16d0fe8-38cb-11e2-937a-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/places/offers/bring-in-shirts-to-have-cleaned-and-get-two-items/article_c16d0fe8-38cb-11e2-937a-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/places/offers/free-appraisal-at-jim-s-coins-stamps/article_969e2772-624b-11e1-aabc-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/places/offers/free-appraisal-at-jim-s-coins-stamps/article_969e2772-624b-11e1-aabc-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/places/offers/do-you-suffer-from-planter-fasciitis/article_be1f7b66-2f73-11e2-ba65-001a4bcf887a.html
http://host.madison.com/places/offers/do-you-suffer-from-planter-fasciitis/article_be1f7b66-2f73-11e2-ba65-001a4bcf887a.html
http://host.madison.com/places/offers/air-duct-cleaning-dryer-vent-cleaning/article_1ebcfa7e-0b0e-11e1-8acd-001cc4c002e0.html
http://host.madison.com/places/offers/air-duct-cleaning-dryer-vent-cleaning/article_1ebcfa7e-0b0e-11e1-8acd-001cc4c002e0.html
http://host.madison.com/places/offers/this-week-at-farm-fleet/article_6e6bef38-eadf-11e1-8aa9-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/places/first-weber-group/business_4000005241.html
http://host.madison.com/places/keyman-lawncare-llc/business_1111327980.html
http://host.madison.com/places/tim-o-brien-homes/business_4000004200.html
http://host.madison.com/places/oak-knoll-neuromuscular-massage-therapy/business_1111105118.html
http://host.madison.com/places/oak-knoll-neuromuscular-massage-therapy/business_1111105118.html
http://host.madison.com/places/a-l-limited-landscaping/business_4000001594.html
http://host.madison.com/places/taylors-one-price-cleaners/business_4000005909.html
http://host.madison.com/places/jim-s-coins-stamps/business_4000002712.html
http://host.madison.com/places/oak-knoll-neuromuscular-massage-therapy/business_1111105118.html
http://host.madison.com/places/specialized-cleaning-services/business_4000001603.html
http://host.madison.com/places/farm-fleet/business_4000001579.html
http://host.madison.com/places/first-weber-group/business_4000005241.html
http://host.madison.com/places/keyman-lawncare-llc/business_1111327980.html
http://host.madison.com/places/tim-o-brien-homes/business_4000004200.html
http://host.madison.com/places/oak-knoll-neuromuscular-massage-therapy/business_1111105118.html
http://host.madison.com/places/a-l-limited-landscaping/business_4000001594.html
https://twitter.com/
https://twitter.com/MadWebdesk/favorites


Groups say state should fund treatment over incarceration

http://host.madison.com/wsj/news/local/govt-and-politics/groups-say-state-should-fund-treatment-over-incarceration/article_5f1d939a-38b1-11e2-a1a3-001a4bcf887a.html[11/29/2012 2:18:16 PM]

Tags

Legislators listen
to testimony
about potential
changes to
mining laws

Ex-Walker aide Russell
pleads guilty to charge
stemming from John
Doe investigation

Man mugged
walking on east
side, police say

Woman charged with
felony child neglect
leading to death of 2-
year-old daughter

Recommendations
Former Madison truck company employee
charged with stealing more than $85,000
(Madison.com)

Never Throw These 5 Items in the Trash
(HowStuffWorks)

10 Worst Cars of All Time (TheStreet)

Republican-Heavy Counties Eat Up Most Food-
Stamp Growth (Bloomberg)

Burglars sexually assault, rob East Side woman,
police say (Madison.com)

Sponsored Links

1 Tip to Lose Stomach Fat
This interesting article shows 1 fruit that fights
stomach fat.
www.ConsumerSavingToday.com

Buy Stocks for $4
No Account or Investment Minimums. No Inactivity
Fees - $100 Bonus.
www.sharebuilder.com

Gold US Eagles Coin 1oz
$75.00 over Spot! Prices Will Not Be Beat!
www.UniversalBullion.com

Ads by Yahoo!

"For some offenders, monitored treatment is best for society and best for the offender, in terms of
both reducing recidivism and cost," Van Hollen said. "For others, incarceration is best."

Lehman said he particularly likes the recommendation that the state focus on keeping parents out
of prison.

The report cited numerous studies showing that children of incarcerated parents are less
successful in school and in the workplace and significantly more likely to land in foster care — or
prison.

"As a retired school teacher, I know the effects of incarcerated parents on kids," he said, adding,
"It's important for people of faith and people who are interested in their fellow human beings to be
looking at this."

The Rev. Dennis Jacobsen, pastor of Incarnation Lutheran Church on Milwaukee's crime-plagued
north side, said the report offers a way out of the "mass incarceration" that has ripped apart the
community he has served for 25 years. He said treatment for non-violent offenders will cut crime
and help troubled neighborhoods better than the lock-'em-up approach.

"Police are trying to make these communities safer," Jacobsen said, "but it's not working."

John Lehman, Garey Bies, J.b. Van Hollen, Scott Walker, Criminal Justice Coordinating
Council, Kim Gilhuly, Human Impact Partners, John Chisholm, Robin Vos, Dennis Jacobsen,
Scott Fitzgerald, Cullen Werwie

View (16) Comments

More News Stories

Located near:

View Results

Hint: Enter a keyword that you are looking for
like tires, pizza or doctors or browse the full
business directory, powered by Local.com

For Sale

$24939
2011 GMC Terrain SLT-2
Zimbrick Inc. at Fish Hatchery
Road

$10995
2004 Toyota Highlander AWD
AWD
DeSmet Auto Sales

$25916
2012 Nissan Pathfinder SV
Zimbrick Eastside

$10490
2002 Toyota Highlander
Don Miller Subaru West

$6990
2006 Ford Taurus SE
Don Miller Subaru West

Vote!

What are your spending plans for holiday
shopping this year?

 Spend about the same I did last year.

 Spend more than I did last year.

 Spend less than I did last year.

Get daily email news
alerts
E-Mail:

First Name:

Last Name:

Carsoup Stuff Homes

75

http://host.madison.com/news/local/govt-and-politics/groups-say-state-should-fund-treatment-over-incarceration/article_5f1d939a-38b1-11e2-a1a3-001a4bcf887a.html?mode=comments
http://host.madison.com/wsj/news/local/govt-and-politics/legislators-listen-to-testimony-about-potential-changes-to-mining-laws/article_d5c765a2-3a5f-11e2-a5a0-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/wsj/news/local/govt-and-politics/legislators-listen-to-testimony-about-potential-changes-to-mining-laws/article_d5c765a2-3a5f-11e2-a5a0-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/wsj/news/local/govt-and-politics/legislators-listen-to-testimony-about-potential-changes-to-mining-laws/article_d5c765a2-3a5f-11e2-a5a0-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/wsj/news/local/govt-and-politics/legislators-listen-to-testimony-about-potential-changes-to-mining-laws/article_d5c765a2-3a5f-11e2-a5a0-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/wsj/news/local/govt-and-politics/legislators-listen-to-testimony-about-potential-changes-to-mining-laws/article_d5c765a2-3a5f-11e2-a5a0-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/wsj/news/local/crime_and_courts/ex-walker-aide-russell-pleads-guilty-to-charge-stemming-from/article_df30ec10-3a5c-11e2-a737-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/wsj/news/local/crime_and_courts/ex-walker-aide-russell-pleads-guilty-to-charge-stemming-from/article_df30ec10-3a5c-11e2-a737-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/wsj/news/local/crime_and_courts/ex-walker-aide-russell-pleads-guilty-to-charge-stemming-from/article_df30ec10-3a5c-11e2-a737-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/wsj/news/local/crime_and_courts/ex-walker-aide-russell-pleads-guilty-to-charge-stemming-from/article_df30ec10-3a5c-11e2-a737-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/ct/news/local/crime_and_courts/man-mugged-walking-on-east-side-police-say/article_b86cdcce-3a4d-11e2-8cb5-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/ct/news/local/crime_and_courts/man-mugged-walking-on-east-side-police-say/article_b86cdcce-3a4d-11e2-8cb5-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/ct/news/local/crime_and_courts/man-mugged-walking-on-east-side-police-say/article_b86cdcce-3a4d-11e2-8cb5-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/wsj/news/local/crime_and_courts/woman-charged-with-felony-child-neglect-leading-to-death-of/article_5ad1a1b4-3a55-11e2-baf5-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/wsj/news/local/crime_and_courts/woman-charged-with-felony-child-neglect-leading-to-death-of/article_5ad1a1b4-3a55-11e2-baf5-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/wsj/news/local/crime_and_courts/woman-charged-with-felony-child-neglect-leading-to-death-of/article_5ad1a1b4-3a55-11e2-baf5-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/wsj/news/local/crime_and_courts/woman-charged-with-felony-child-neglect-leading-to-death-of/article_5ad1a1b4-3a55-11e2-baf5-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/news/local/crime_and_courts/former-madison-truck-company-employee-charged-with-stealing-more-than/article_9e0ef856-399b-11e2-bf99-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/news/local/crime_and_courts/former-madison-truck-company-employee-charged-with-stealing-more-than/article_9e0ef856-399b-11e2-bf99-0019bb2963f4.html
http://tlc.howstuffworks.com/home/dangerous-trash-items.htm
http://www.thestreet.com/story/11381094/1/10-worst-cars-of-all-time.html
http://www.bloomberg.com/news/2012-11-05/republican-heavy-counties-eat-up-most-food-stamp-growth.html
http://www.bloomberg.com/news/2012-11-05/republican-heavy-counties-eat-up-most-food-stamp-growth.html
http://host.madison.com/news/local/crime_and_courts/burglars-sexually-assault-rob-east-side-woman-police-say/article_c94964e4-f8ef-11e1-8802-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/news/local/crime_and_courts/burglars-sexually-assault-rob-east-side-woman-police-say/article_c94964e4-f8ef-11e1-8802-0019bb2963f4.html
http://info.yahoo.com/services/us/yahoo/ads/details.html
http://host.madison.com/search/?k=%22john lehman%22&t=&l=20&d=&d1=&d2=&f=html&s=start_time&sd=desc&sHeading=John Lehman
http://host.madison.com/search/?k=%22garey bies%22&t=&l=20&d=&d1=&d2=&f=html&s=start_time&sd=desc&sHeading=Garey Bies
http://host.madison.com/search/?k=%22j.b. van hollen%22&t=&l=20&d=&d1=&d2=&f=html&s=start_time&sd=desc&sHeading=J.b. Van Hollen
http://host.madison.com/search/?k=%22scott walker%22&t=&l=20&d=&d1=&d2=&f=html&s=start_time&sd=desc&sHeading=Scott Walker
http://host.madison.com/search/?k=%22criminal justice coordinating council%22&t=&l=20&d=&d1=&d2=&f=html&s=start_time&sd=desc&sHeading=Criminal Justice Coordinating Council
http://host.madison.com/search/?k=%22criminal justice coordinating council%22&t=&l=20&d=&d1=&d2=&f=html&s=start_time&sd=desc&sHeading=Criminal Justice Coordinating Council
http://host.madison.com/search/?k=%22kim gilhuly%22&t=&l=20&d=&d1=&d2=&f=html&s=start_time&sd=desc&sHeading=Kim Gilhuly
http://host.madison.com/search/?k=%22human impact partners%22&t=&l=20&d=&d1=&d2=&f=html&s=start_time&sd=desc&sHeading=Human Impact Partners
http://host.madison.com/search/?k=%22john chisholm%22&t=&l=20&d=&d1=&d2=&f=html&s=start_time&sd=desc&sHeading=John Chisholm
http://host.madison.com/search/?k=%22robin vos%22&t=&l=20&d=&d1=&d2=&f=html&s=start_time&sd=desc&sHeading=Robin Vos
http://host.madison.com/search/?k=%22dennis jacobsen%22&t=&l=20&d=&d1=&d2=&f=html&s=start_time&sd=desc&sHeading=Dennis Jacobsen
http://host.madison.com/search/?k=%22scott fitzgerald%22&t=&l=20&d=&d1=&d2=&f=html&s=start_time&sd=desc&sHeading=Scott Fitzgerald
http://host.madison.com/search/?k=%22cullen werwie%22&t=&l=20&d=&d1=&d2=&f=html&s=start_time&sd=desc&sHeading=Cullen Werwie
http://host.madison.com/news/local/govt-and-politics/groups-say-state-should-fund-treatment-over-incarceration/article_5f1d939a-38b1-11e2-a1a3-001a4bcf887a.html?mode=comments
http://www.carsoup.com/madison/used-vehicles/detail/Car-Truck/Central-Wisconsin/GMC/Other-Model/2011/23825749/
http://www.carsoup.com/madison/used-vehicles/detail/Car-Truck/Central-Wisconsin/Toyota/Highlander/2004/23388952/
http://www.carsoup.com/madison/used-vehicles/detail/Car-Truck/Central-Wisconsin/Nissan/Pathfinder-S-LE-SE/2012/23792902/
http://www.carsoup.com/madison/used-vehicles/detail/Car-Truck/Central-Wisconsin/Toyota/Highlander-Limited/2002/23289242/
http://www.carsoup.com/madison/used-vehicles/detail/Car-Truck/Central-Wisconsin/Ford/Taurus-SE/2006/23188907/
http://host.madison.com/content/tncms/live/#
http://host.madison.com/content/tncms/live/#
http://localdirectory.madison.com/
http://localdirectory.madison.com/
http://localdirectory.madison.com/
http://www.carsoup.com/madison/used-vehicles/detail/Car-Truck/Central-Wisconsin/GMC/Other-Model/2011/23825749/
http://www.carsoup.com/madison/used-vehicles/detail/Car-Truck/Central-Wisconsin/Toyota/Highlander/2004/23388952/
http://www.carsoup.com/madison/used-vehicles/detail/Car-Truck/Central-Wisconsin/Nissan/Pathfinder-S-LE-SE/2012/23792902/
http://www.carsoup.com/madison/used-vehicles/detail/Car-Truck/Central-Wisconsin/Toyota/Highlander-Limited/2002/23289242/
http://www.carsoup.com/madison/used-vehicles/detail/Car-Truck/Central-Wisconsin/Ford/Taurus-SE/2006/23188907/
http://host.madison.com/app/pages/email/
http://host.madison.com/app/pages/email/
http://host.madison.com/wsj/news/local/crime_and_courts/ex-walker-aide-russell-pleads-guilty-to-charge-stemming-from/article_df30ec10-3a5c-11e2-a737-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/wsj/news/local/crime_and_courts/woman-charged-with-felony-child-neglect-leading-to-death-of/article_5ad1a1b4-3a55-11e2-baf5-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/content/tncms/live/#
http://host.madison.com/content/tncms/live/#
http://host.madison.com/content/tncms/live/#
http://host.madison.com/content/tncms/live/#


Groups say state should fund treatment over incarceration

http://host.madison.com/wsj/news/local/govt-and-politics/groups-say-state-should-fund-treatment-over-incarceration/article_5f1d939a-38b1-11e2-a1a3-001a4bcf887a.html[11/29/2012 2:18:16 PM]

Eric Schmidt: I’m Not Joining the Obama
Administration (BusinessWeek)

Mount Horeb teen arrested in alleged attack with
baseball bat; man critically injured (Madison.com)

Three victims identified in fatal crash on Highway
51 (Madison.com)

About 50 Meriter employees losing jobs; total of
140 full-time positions cut (Madison.com)

Treatment center client charged with felony child
neglect for baby's skull fractures (Madison.com)

Who Is Holly Petraeus? The Scorned General's
Wife Isn't All She Seems (CafeMom)

A treasonous timeline of the most notorious
information security breaches in history. (DeVry

University)

Copyright 2012 madison.com. All rights reserved. This material may not be published, broadcast, rewritten or redistributed.

More Services
Contact Wisconsin State Journal staff
Newspaper archives
Newspapers in Education

Resources
Healing Arts Directory - Fall 2012
77 Square dining guide
Site information
Madison area births
Teachers: Check out the News Game
How to contact elected officials

Win!
ZAPPA PLAYS ZAPPA -- "a chip off the old
block"
SILVERSUN PICKUPS -- "stretching the
boundaries of their exhilarating psychedelia
with confidence, invention, and undeniable
ambition"
WILLY PORTER -- "a Wisconsin-based guitar
legend"
MAD MEN HOLIDAY SOIREE!
ASTRONAUTALIS -- "rhythm and revelations"
HIGH ON FIRE -- "sky-shredding squalls of
thunder"
'ZERO DARK THIRTY' -- "terrifically imposing
and unshakable"
FAN FRENZY HIGH SCHOOL FAN PAGE
CONTEST -- win gift cards from Best Buy!
JERRY'S HOT PICKS - BUMP 'N' RUN
Win free movie tickets and stay on top of
Madison's movie scene!

 

FEATURES

News
Sports
Entertainment
Events
Weather
Communities
Obituaries
Games, Puzzles
E-mail
Archives
Blogs

GET IT

Classifieds
Coupons
Deals
Sell it Madison
Newspaper Ads
Business Directory
Place an Ad
Homes
Jobs
Carsoup
Rentals

ADVERTISER SERVICES

Download a media kit (PDF)
Photoshop Color Settings
BW Guidelines
Color Guidelines
Submit a celebration
Legal Notices
Submit digital files for ads
Place a classified ad for print or online

CAPITAL NEWSPAPERS

Madison.com
Wisconsin State Journal
Capital Times
Sports
Wisconsin Prep Zone
77 Square
Daily Cardinal
Nursing Matters
WiscNews

© Copyright 2012, madison.com, 1901 Fish Hatchery Rd Madison, WI | Terms of Service and Privacy Policy  | Find Area Businesses

76

http://host.madison.com/content/tncms/live/#
http://www.businessweek.com/articles/2012-11-09/eric-schmidt-im-not-joining-the-obama-administration
http://www.businessweek.com/articles/2012-11-09/eric-schmidt-im-not-joining-the-obama-administration
http://host.madison.com/news/local/crime_and_courts/mount-horeb-teen-arrested-in-alleged-attack-with-baseball-bat/article_68322bf0-38aa-11e2-bb8f-001a4bcf887a.html
http://host.madison.com/news/local/crime_and_courts/mount-horeb-teen-arrested-in-alleged-attack-with-baseball-bat/article_68322bf0-38aa-11e2-bb8f-001a4bcf887a.html
http://host.madison.com/news/local/crime_and_courts/three-victims-identified-in-fatal-crash-on-highway/article_0e9233b6-1f59-11e2-b12e-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/news/local/crime_and_courts/three-victims-identified-in-fatal-crash-on-highway/article_0e9233b6-1f59-11e2-b12e-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/news/local/health_med_fit/about-meriter-employees-losing-jobs-total-of-full-time-positions/article_3534d5d4-38de-11e2-84a1-001a4bcf887a.html
http://host.madison.com/news/local/health_med_fit/about-meriter-employees-losing-jobs-total-of-full-time-positions/article_3534d5d4-38de-11e2-84a1-001a4bcf887a.html
http://host.madison.com/news/local/crime_and_courts/treatment-center-client-charged-with-felony-child-neglect-for-baby/article_6c1e4e46-38e7-11e2-ae2f-001a4bcf887a.html
http://host.madison.com/news/local/crime_and_courts/treatment-center-client-charged-with-felony-child-neglect-for-baby/article_6c1e4e46-38e7-11e2-ae2f-001a4bcf887a.html
http://thestir.cafemom.com/in_the_news/146665/who_is_holly_petraeus_the
http://thestir.cafemom.com/in_the_news/146665/who_is_holly_petraeus_the
http://www.devry.edu/know-how/top-information-security-breaches-in-history/
http://www.devry.edu/know-how/top-information-security-breaches-in-history/
http://host.madison.com/circulation
http://host.madison.com/wsj/contact-wisconsin-state-journal-staff/article_8231547a-9f12-11de-97f4-001cc4c002e0.html
http://madison.newspaperarchive.com/
http://host.madison.com/nie
http://host.madison.com/siteinformation/
http://epaperflip.com/aglaia/viewer.aspx?docid=1894cd22c0424fae807ca6f229a00bb0
http://host.madison.com/entertainment/dining/guide/
http://host.madison.com/siteinformation
http://host.madison.com/data/births/
http://www.factorium.com/default.asp?stationID=wsj
http://host.madison.com/answer_book/elected_officials/
http://host.madison.com/promo/promotions/
http://host.madison.com/promo/promotions/zappa-plays-zappa----a-chip-off-the/article_425a00de-2cfb-11e2-ad4f-001a4bcf887a.html
http://host.madison.com/promo/promotions/zappa-plays-zappa----a-chip-off-the/article_425a00de-2cfb-11e2-ad4f-001a4bcf887a.html
http://host.madison.com/promo/promotions/silversun-pickups----stretching-the-boundaries-of-their/article_3cf4053a-2cf7-11e2-be05-001a4bcf887a.html
http://host.madison.com/promo/promotions/silversun-pickups----stretching-the-boundaries-of-their/article_3cf4053a-2cf7-11e2-be05-001a4bcf887a.html
http://host.madison.com/promo/promotions/silversun-pickups----stretching-the-boundaries-of-their/article_3cf4053a-2cf7-11e2-be05-001a4bcf887a.html
http://host.madison.com/promo/promotions/silversun-pickups----stretching-the-boundaries-of-their/article_3cf4053a-2cf7-11e2-be05-001a4bcf887a.html
http://host.madison.com/promo/promotions/willy-porter----a-wisconsin-based-guitar-legend/article_1fff2852-398f-11e2-aad8-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/promo/promotions/willy-porter----a-wisconsin-based-guitar-legend/article_1fff2852-398f-11e2-aad8-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/promo/promotions/mad-men-holiday-soiree/article_a0d36e9c-3990-11e2-b9aa-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/promo/promotions/astronautalis----rhythm-and-revelations/article_36a737ce-38be-11e2-be28-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/promo/promotions/high-on-fire----sky-shredding-squalls-of/article_89a06dec-38b9-11e2-9b47-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/promo/promotions/high-on-fire----sky-shredding-squalls-of/article_89a06dec-38b9-11e2-9b47-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/promo/promotions/zero-dark-thirty----terrifically-imposing-and-unshakable/article_c45cb566-3991-11e2-804b-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/promo/promotions/zero-dark-thirty----terrifically-imposing-and-unshakable/article_c45cb566-3991-11e2-804b-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/promo/promotions/fan-frenzy-high-school-fan-page-contest---/article_437e40ec-38c2-11e2-bfd9-0019bb2963f4.html
http://host.madison.com/promo/promotions/fan-frenzy-high-school-fan-page-contest---/article_437e40ec-38c2-11e2-bfd9-0019bb2963f4.html
http://madison.profootball.upickem.net/profootball/registration/login.asp?action=logoff&contestid=3
http://host.madison.com/promo/promotions/win-free-movie-tickets-and-stay-on-top-of-madison/article_71a2e2e2-68a3-11e1-a396-001871e3ce6c.html
http://host.madison.com/promo/promotions/win-free-movie-tickets-and-stay-on-top-of-madison/article_71a2e2e2-68a3-11e1-a396-001871e3ce6c.html

http://host.madison.com/site-menus/footer-nav/madison/a-features/
http://host.madison.com/news/
http://host.madison.com/sports/
http://host.madison.com/entertainment/
http://host.madison.com/entertainment/calendar/
http://host.madison.com/weather/
http://my.madison.com/community/home.htm
http://host.madison.com/news/local/obituaries/
http://host.madison.com/games/
http://host.madison.com/email/subscribe/
http://host.madison.com/archives/
http://host.madison.com/blogs/
http://host.madison.com/get-it/
http://host.madison.com/classifieds/
http://host.madison.com/coupons
http://host.madison.com/get-it/
http://sellitmadison.kaango.com/
http://advault.wsj.madison.com/ROP/Categories.aspx
http://localdirectory.madison.com/madison+wi.z.html
http://www.madison.com/advertiser
http://host.madison.com/classifieds/real_estate/
http://jobsearch.local-jobs.monster.com/jobs/?where=Madison__2cWI&re=130&wt.mc_n=hjnpsearch&ch=madison&cy=us&brd=1
http://www.carsoup.com/madison/home/Central-Wisconsin
http://host.madison.com/classifieds/real_estate/apartments/
http://host.madison.com/site-information/advertising
http://host.madison.com/download-a-media-kit-pdf/pdf_11066746-30a7-11df-af40-001cc4c002e0.html
http://host.madison.com/online/photoshop-color-settings/pdf_4202c550-5951-11e0-a04a-001cc4c03286.html
http://host.madison.com/online/bw-guidelines/pdf_575ab5de-5951-11e0-a62f-001cc4c03286.html
http://host.madison.com/online/color-guidelines/pdf_6c34995c-5951-11e0-ad46-001cc4c03286.html
https://new.madison.com/celebrations-order/
http://new.madison.com/legal-notices
http://host.madison.com/capital_newspapers/article_aa3ab6d6-be80-11de-afc3-001cc4c002e0.html
http://new.madison.com/advertiser
http://host.madison.com/capital_newspapers/
http://host.madison.com/
http://host.madison.com/wsj/
http://host.madison.com/ct/
http://host.madison.com/sports/
http://host.madison.com/sports/high-school/
http://host.madison.com/entertainment/
http://host.madison.com/daily-cardinal/
http://host.madison.com/nursingmatters/
http://www.wiscnews.com/
http://host.madison.com/
http://host.madison.com/terms/
http://host.madison.com/privacy/
http://host.madison.com/content/tncms/live/#


 
 
Scott Walker 
Governor 
 
 
 
 

   
 

State of Wisconsin 
 

State Council on Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse 
1 West Wilson Street, P.O. Box 7851 

Madison, Wisconsin  53707-7851 

 
 

Michael Waupoose 
Chairperson 

 
Duncan Shrout    

Vice-Chairperson 
 

Scott Stokes 
Secretary 

 

www.scaoda.state.wi.us 

Prevention Committee Meeting 
August 15, 2012 

9:30 a.m. – 1:00 p.m. 
 

UltraTech Building 
5901 Research Park Blvd. 

Madison WI, 53719 
 
Members Present: Scott Stokes (SCAODA), Ronda Kopelke (Marshfield Clinic), Jane Larson 
(Human Development Center), Francie McGuire-Winkler (RCYC), Julia Sherman (UWAPP), 
Nancy Kendall (WCH), Paula Brown (DCF), Katie Bland(DCF), Paul Krupski (Health First WI), 
and Mary Rassmussen (SCAODA) 
 
Staff Present: Louis Oppor, Christy Niemuth, Arlene Baker, Robin Lecoanet 
 
Call to Order, Welcome & Introductions & Approval of Minutes 
The meeting was called to order at 9:35 a.m. Scott Stokes (chairman) welcomed those in 
attendance and asked members and guests to introduce themselves. Minutes from the 5/24/12 
meeting were reviewed. Francie McGuire-Winkler moved to approve the minutes, seconded by 
Julia Sherman. Minutes were approved as drafted. 
 
Review Prevention Committee Membership 
In light of several retirements, committee membership was reviewed. Need for representation 
from the following areas were identified:  

• Milwaukee and Tribal representation  
o Ask Bob Kovar to identify someone from the tribes – possibly Ken Ninham from 

Lac du Flambeau.   
• DPI, DOJ and Law enforcement representatives need to be replaced 

o Ask the Dane Co Sheriff  
• Brenda Rooney from La Crosse was suggested as someone who could represent the 

Western region.  
In addition: Mary Rasmussen from SCAODA and Annie Short from Manitowoc need to be 
added to the membership list. 
 
Prevention Conference and Public Forum Follow-Up    
Evaluation results from the June Prevention Conference are not in yet, but attendance was over 
450 and initial feedback was very positive. The committee discussed the possibility of holding a 
mid-year conference in the Northern part of the state, with a rural/tribal focus or a one day 
“share-shop” where representatives from state departments such as DCF, DPI, DHS, DOT would 
share what is happening in their departments. Better communication as to what conferences are 
available would also be helpful.  

77



 

 
The public forum held at the prevention conference was well attended. Oppor reported out on 
the discussion and provided minutes from the forum. A representative from Wisconsin 
United Coalition (a Southeast Asian Organization, representing 20 statewide coalitions) 
spoke about serving the refugee population in Wisconsin.  He has been asked to participate in 
the SCAODA diversity committee.   

 
Prevention Budget Recommendations for SCAODA 
SCAODA is asking each of the four standing subcommittees to develop three budget initiative 
recommendations for their review. SCODA’s goal is to be more proactive in submitting budget 
initiatives to DOA which are then submitted to the Governor for developing the state’s next 
biennial budget (July 2013– June 2015). Oppor provided a template for writing up each 
initiative. After discussion the following initiative ideas were identified:  

• Alcohol policy priorities that Health First’s State Leadership Team has identified 
o Allowing Sobriety Check Points/Saturation Patrols  
o Raise the Alcohol Tax – Paul would suggest staying away from this right now, 

there is still work to be done to get a campaign ready to go.  
o Person under 21 should not be served alcohol in bars – This is a no-cost initiative 

that the tavern league supports. 
• State funding for alcohol age compliance checks. – They’re evidence-based and WI has 

never put money towards it.  
• Support the 911 Good Samaritan Committee recommendations and prevent fatal opioid 

overdoses.  
• Provide more resources to WPN and the Alliance Regional Center Model in order to 

make resources more available for larger statewide work groups.   
• Need for workforce development. There is a shortage of public health and prevention 

specialists.   
• Establishing a training infrastructure.  
• Prevent substance use among pregnant women in order to reduce the poor health 

outcomes in children.   
Discussion of the above points narrowed the budget recommendations down to the following 
groups:  

1. Initiatives to prevent underage drinking, including: funding for alcohol age compliance 
checks and not allowing persons under the age of 21 to be served in bars with their 
parents.  

2. Improve Prevention infrastructure including; providing additional funding to support 
AWY and establishing a prevention training infrastructure.  

3. Reduce drunk driving and OWI, including; authorizing sobriety checkpoints, and 
improving funding for saturation patrols 

4. Reduce alcohol and drug abuse among pregnant women, including; reducing substance 
abuse impacts on infants and children, reducing unborn child abuse, reducing infant 
mortality and ill effects in children by reducing alcohol and drug use among pregnant 
women and testing newborns for substances.   

Committee members voted on their top three initiatives with items 1-3 getting the most votes. 
These three initiatives will be sent to SCAODA as the prevention committee’s recommendations.    
 
Federal Budget Update 
If the feds do not pass a budget by the end of the calendar year, everyone will get an 8% cut, 
there has been a continuing resolution passed, which extends current budget through May. 

78



 

SAMHSA still has the separate block grants in their budget, but it is unlikely that this will pass 
in the legislature. The Block Grant application will therefore be for the same amount as last year.  
 
GLITC Update  
The 1-year Strategic Prevention Enhancement (SPE) has ended and GLITC has submitted their 
Strategic Plan to SAMHSA. The plan design integrated the traditional teachings of the medicine 
wheel with the SPF process and is based on the notion that “Culture is Prevention”. The full 
strategic plan as well as summary dissemination materials document can be found on the GLITC 
website; http://www.glitc.org/.  The development of this plan included tribal leadership, who 
were very invested in the process. GLITC hopes to disseminate this plan widely, as it is very 
adaptable to other cultures or tribes around the country.  
 
Marijuana prevention – Moved to next meeting agenda 
 
911 Good Samaritan Law 
The ad-hoc committee has met three times.  Five workgroups have been formed to write five 
sections of the final recommendation report. There is a bit of an impasse regarding whether a 
Good Samaritan Law should be recommended based on law enforcement’s misgivings. There are 
three more meetings scheduled, and they hope to have a draft to the prevention committee by the 
October meeting.   
 
Epi Profile 
The 2012 EPI Profile is complete and at the DHS Secretary’s office for review. The section on 
individual (depression and childhood trauma) and community risk factors (outlet density) are 
new this year. The priorities identified in the report are; reducing underage drinking (we are now 
10th in the nation), reducing adult binge drinking (among 18-35 year olds), reducing alcohol-
related motor vehicle fatalities and injuries, reducing opiate abuse, and one new priority was 
added this year, reducing alcohol use among pregnant women. The report should be produced in 
September with distribution beginning in October. 
 
Social Host Campaign Update 
Discussion about changing the Parents Who Host campaign into a different campaign around 
social host messaging is ongoing. At this time the PWH committee has struggled to identify an 
appropriate replacement campaign, so PWH funding will most likely continue for another year, 
with some of the funding going towards developing a new campaign.  
 
Agency Updates:  
DHS: Two awards were made to consolidate MH And SA services: Chippewa County received 
one to consolidate services between seven counties (Eau-Claire, Pepin, Pierce, Barron, Buffalo 
and Dunn). La Crosse has a three county consortium with Monroe and Jackson Counties. The 
goal is to see a cost saving by consolidating services. The two consortiums have three years to 
develop a plan for a regional services model. DHS will be issuing a new RFP for the AWY 
Regional Centers on Sept. 10, 2012 with funding to begin Jan. 1, 2013.  
 
DCF: Has been working on trauma informed care for children. The Adverse Childhood 
Experiences (ACE) study showed a correlation between children that report more adverse 
experiences have poor health outcomes as they age. DCF has been working with children to 
properly assess them and treat the initial trauma.  
  
UW Policy Project: Alcohol policy seminar is scheduled for Sept. 13, 2012 in Steven’s Point. To 
date, 20 communities have adopted social host ordinances and the latest policy brief 

79

http://www.glitc.org/


 

summarizing the ordinances is available on the Law School’s website. The next brief, on 
“underage under the influences” ordinances will be released on Monday. 
 
Racine County: sent several people to the CADCA’s mid-year training where they heard a lot 
about “designer/redesigned” drugs. Racine also received a component of the transforming WI 
grant to work on tobacco issues in the county.  
 
Wisconsin Clearinghouse: 30 community grants were awarded through the CDC’s transform WI 
grant. The grants are designed to improve community health including, smoke-free air, providing 
healthy lifestyle opportunities, improving physical activity etc..  
 
Marshfield Clinic: the 12 year AmeriCorps grant was not re-funded. Only two new small grants 
were funded in Wisconsin this year. As a result about 12 AmeriCorps programs are shutting 
down. This has hurt the prevention infrastructure around the state. Marshfield will re-write for a 
grant next year. In the meantime, Northwoods coalition is a priority for the department. 
    
Health First: is working with DHS and UWPHI to produce a burden of alcohol use report, with 
an anticipated release date early next year. This report will not be as in depth as the tobacco 
report, but they are hopeful that it will be very useful.  
 
Future Meeting Dates and Agenda Items. 
Next meeting is Thursday October 18th at State Patrol.  
 
Agenda items: Marijuana Prevention, SPF SIG Evaluation, Pay for Success (out of the White 
House, an emerging concept that pushes a private/public partnership for funding prevention - 
Ronda Kopelke), Good Samaritan Draft report, Alcohol Summit report-out, Health First update 
from focus groups. 
 
Adjourn: Stokes adjourned the meeting at 1:05 p.m. 
 

80



 
 
Scott Walker 
Governor 
 
 
 
 

   
 

State of Wisconsin 
 

State Council on Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse 
1 West Wilson Street, P.O. Box 7851 

Madison, Wisconsin  53707-7851 

 
 

Michael Waupoose 
Chairperson 

 
Duncan Shrout    

Vice-Chairperson 
 

Scott Stokes 
Secretary 

 

www.scaoda.state.wi.us 

Prevention Committee Meeting 
Thursday, October 18, 2012 

9:30 a.m. – 2:00 p.m. 
 

Wisconsin State Patrol Deforest Post 
911 W. North St. 

Deforest, WI 53532 
 
Agenda 

• Welcome and Introductions 

• Approve Minutes from August 15, 2012 Meeting 

• Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACE)  

• Marijuana Prevention – Prevalence Data/Needs/Messaging 

• SPF SIG Evaluation  

• Strategic Prevention Framework Partnerships for Success II Grant 

• Good Samaritan Recommendations Update 

• Alcohol Policy Seminar report-out  

• Ad-Hoc Needs Assessment Workgroup Update 

• SAPTBG Technical Review Findings 

• Health First update from focus groups 

• Progress on AODA Epi Study 

• Parents Who Host Campaign Update 

• Agency Updates 

• Future Meeting Dates/Agenda Items 

 

81



SCAODA Motion Introduction 
 
 
Committee Introducing:  Prevention Committee 
Motion: Motion to form a marijuana prevention ad hoc committee that would develop a 
recommendation report and a public health response to issues related to marijuana use.  
Related SCAODA Goal: Wisconsin cultural norms change to people vehemently 
rejecting social acceptance of the AODA status quo and demand and support methods to 
transform the state’s AODA problems into healthy behavioral outcomes. 
Background: Nationally, the use of marijuana is being normalized. Many states have 
passed medical marijuana laws and some states are considering legalizing the use of 
marijuana. The health outcomes related to the use of marijuana are not highly recognized 
or reported.  
Rational for Supporting:  While the use of alcohol by adolescents has been going down in 
WI over the last few years, marijuana use has remained steady or increased. With 
national efforts to normalize marijuana use, the perception of risk associated with using it 
is going down. Studies show that when perception of risk decreases, use increases. The 
Prevention Committee seeks to convene a workgroup to develop a public health message 
regarding the use of marijuana, study the effects that medical marijuana laws have had in 
other states and draft a recommendation report for Wisconsin that would supplement the 
reports the committee has published related to alcohol and prescription drugs.    
 

82



State Excise Tax Revenue 
Wisconsin Department of Revenue 

 
 

EXCISE TAX REVENUE COLLECTIONS 
Through October  of FY12 and FY13 

Year-to-date FY2012 FY2013  % Change  
Cigarette  160.8 152.4 -5.22% 
Tobacco 17.4 15.4 -11.60% 
Liquor 11.8 12.1 2.27% 
Beer 2.4 2.5 2.61% 
Total  192.4 182.4 -5.24% 

  

 
 
 
 

EXCISE TAX REVENUE COLLECTION ESTIMATES 
  Actual November 2012 Estimate (*) 

Excise Taxes FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 
Cigarette  587.8 574.7 572.8 566.9 
Tobacco 65.5 65.6 71.3 74.6 
Liquor and Wine  47.0 47.6 49.4 51.4 
Beer  9.2 9.3 9.3 9.2 
Total  709.5 697.2 702.8 702.1 
(*) Agency Budget Requests and Revenue Estimates FY2014 FY2015, DOR, 
November 20, 2012 

 

$160.8 

$17.4 
$11.8 

$2.4 

$152.4 

$15.4 $12.1 
$2.5 

0.0

20.0

40.0

60.0

80.0

100.0

120.0

140.0

160.0

180.0

Cigarette Tobacco Liquor Beer
FY2012 FY2013

EXCISE TAX REVENUE COLLECTIONS 
Through October  of FY12 and FY13 

$ Millions 

83



BY-LAWS 
of the 

 State of Wisconsin 
State Council on Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse 

As Approved 
June 6, 2008 

Amended 9-10-10 and 9-9-11 
 

 
<please note:  lines underlined below are taken directly from statute.> 
  

ARTICLE I 
 
Purpose and Responsibilities 
 
Section 1. Authority 
 
The council is created in the office of the governor pursuant to sec. 14.017 
(2), Wis. Stats. Its responsibilities are specified under sec. 14.24, Wis. Stats.  
 
Section 2. Purpose 
 

The purpose of the state council on alcohol and other drug abuse is to 
enhance the quality of life of Wisconsin citizens by preventing alcohol, 
tobacco and other drug abuse and its consequences through 
prevention, treatment, recovery, and enforcement and control 
activities by: 

 
a. Supporting, promoting and encouraging the implementation of a 

system of alcohol, tobacco and other drug abuse services that are 
evidence-based, gender and culturally competent, population 
specific, and that ensure equal and barrier-free access; 

 
b. Supporting the prevention and reduction of alcohol, tobacco, and 

other drug use and abuse through evidence-based practice with a 
special emphasis on underage use; and 

 
c. Supporting and encouraging recovery in communities by reducing 

discrimination, barriers and promoting healthy lifestyles. 
 
Section 3. Responsibilities 

 
The state council on alcohol and other drug abuse shall: 

 
a. Provide leadership and coordination regarding alcohol and other 

drug abuse issues confronting the state. 
 

84



b. Meet at least once every 3 months. 
 

c. By June 30, 1994, and by June 30 every 4 years thereafter, 
develop a comprehensive state plan for alcohol and other drug 
abuse programs. The state plan shall include all of the following: 

 
i. Goals, for the time period covered by the plan, for the 

state alcohol and other drug abuse services system.  
 
ii. To achieve the goals in par. (a), a delineation of 

objectives, which the council shall review annually and, if 
necessary, revise.   

 
iii. An analysis of how currently existing alcohol and other 

drug abuse programs will further the goals and objectives 
of the state plan and which programs should be created, 
revised or eliminated to achieve the goals and objectives of 
the state plan. 

 
d. Each biennium, after introduction into the legislature but prior to 

passage of the biennial state budget bill, review and make 
recommendations to the governor, the legislature and state 
agencies, as defined in s. 20.001 (1), regarding the plans, 
budgets and operations of all state alcohol and other drug abuse 
programs. 

 
e. Provide the legislature with a considered opinion under s. 

13.098. 
 

f. Coordinate and review efforts and expenditures by state 
agencies to prevent and control alcohol and other drug abuse 
and make recommendations to the agencies that are consistent 
with policy priorities established in the state plan developed 
under sub. (3). 

 
g. Clarify responsibility among state agencies for various alcohol 

and other drug abuse prevention and control programs, and 
direct cooperation between state agencies.  

 
h. Each biennium, select alcohol and other drug abuse programs to 

be evaluated for their effectiveness, direct agencies to complete 
the evaluations, review and comment on the proposed 
evaluations and analyze the results for incorporation into new or 
improved alcohol and other drug abuse programming. 

 
i. Publicize the problems associated with abuse of alcohol and 

other drugs and the efforts to prevent and control the abuse. 
 

85

http://nxt.legis.state.wi.us/nxt/gateway.dll?f=xhitlist$xhitlist_x=Advanced$xhitlist_vpc=first$xhitlist_xsl=querylink.xsl$xhitlist_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title$xhitlist_d=%7bstats%7d$xhitlist_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:'14.24(3)(a)'%5d$xhitlist_md=target-id=0-0-0-11077
http://nxt.legis.state.wi.us/nxt/gateway.dll?f=xhitlist$xhitlist_x=Advanced$xhitlist_vpc=first$xhitlist_xsl=querylink.xsl$xhitlist_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title$xhitlist_d=%7bstats%7d$xhitlist_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:'20.001(1)'%5d$xhitlist_md=target-id=0-0-0-3423
http://nxt.legis.state.wi.us/nxt/gateway.dll?f=xhitlist$xhitlist_x=Advanced$xhitlist_vpc=first$xhitlist_xsl=querylink.xsl$xhitlist_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title$xhitlist_d=%7bstats%7d$xhitlist_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:'13.098'%5d$xhitlist_md=target-id=0-0-0-7995
http://nxt.legis.state.wi.us/nxt/gateway.dll?f=xhitlist$xhitlist_x=Advanced$xhitlist_vpc=first$xhitlist_xsl=querylink.xsl$xhitlist_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title$xhitlist_d=%7bstats%7d$xhitlist_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:'13.098'%5d$xhitlist_md=target-id=0-0-0-7995
http://nxt.legis.state.wi.us/nxt/gateway.dll?f=xhitlist$xhitlist_x=Advanced$xhitlist_vpc=first$xhitlist_xsl=querylink.xsl$xhitlist_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title$xhitlist_d=%7bstats%7d$xhitlist_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:'14.24(3)'%5d$xhitlist_md=target-id=0-0-0-11075


j. Issue reports to educate people about the dangers of alcohol, 
tobacco and other drug abuse.  

 
k. The council also recommends legislation, and provides input on 

state alcohol, tobacco and other drug abuse budget initiatives. 
 

l. Form committees and sub-committees for consideration of 
policies or programs, including but not limited to, legislation, 
funding and standards of care, for persons of all ages to address 
alcohol, tobacco and other drug abuse problems. 

 
 
 ARTICLE II 
 
Membership 
 
Section 1. Authority 
 
Membership is in accordance with section 14.017(2), Wis. Stats. 
 
 
Section 2. Members 
 
2.1 The 22-member council includes six members with a professional, 

research or personal interest in alcohol, tobacco and other drug abuse 
problems, appointed for four-year terms, and one of them must be a 
consumer representing the public.  It was created by chapter 384, 
laws of 1969, as the drug abuse control commission.  Chapter 219, 
laws of 1971, changed its name to the council on drug abuse and 
placed the council in the executive office. It was renamed the council 
on alcohol and other drug abuse by chapter 370, laws of 1975, and the 
state council on alcohol and other drug abuse by chapter 221, laws of 
1979.  In 1993, Act 210 created the state council on alcohol and other 
drug abuse, incorporating the citizen’s council on alcohol and other 
drug abuse, and expanding the state council and other drug abuse’s 
membership and duties. The state council on alcohol and other drug 
abuse’s appointments, composition and duties are prescribed in 
sections 15.09 (1)(a), 14.017 (2), and 14.24 of the statutes, 
respectively. 

 
The council strives to have statewide geographic representation, which 
includes urban and rural populated areas, to have representation from 
varied stakeholder groups, and shall be a diverse group with respect to 
age, race, religion, color, sex, national origin or ancestry, disability or 
association with a person with a disability, arrest or conviction record, 
sexual orientation, marital status or pregnancy, political belief, or 
affiliation, or military participation. 

 

86



2.2 There is created in the office of the governor a state council on alcohol 
and other drug abuse consisting of the governor, the attorney general, 
the state superintendent of public instruction, the secretary of health 
services, the commissioner of insurance, the secretary of corrections, 
the secretary of transportation and the chairperson of the pharmacy 
examining board, or their designees; a representative of the controlled 
substances board; a representative of any governor's committee or 
commission created under subch. I of ch. 14 to study law enforcement 
issues; 6 members, one of whom is a consumer representing the 
public at large, with demonstrated professional, research or personal 
interest in alcohol and other drug abuse problems, appointed for 4-
year terms; a representative of an organization or agency which is a 
direct provider of services to alcoholics and other drug abusers; a 
member of the Wisconsin County Human Service Association, Inc., 
who is nominated by that association; and 2 members of each house 
of the legislature, representing the majority party and the minority 
party in each house, chosen as are the members of standing 
committees in their respective houses. Section 15.09 applies to the 
council. 

 
2.3 Selection of Members  
 

From Wis. Stats. 15.09 (1)(a);  Unless otherwise provided by law, the 
governor shall appoint the members of councils for terms prescribed 
by law. Except as provided in par. (b), fixed terms shall expire on July 
1 and shall, if the term is for an even number of years, expire in an 
odd-numbered year. 

 
 
2.4 Ex-Officio Members 
 

a. Ex-officio members may be appointed by a majority vote of the 
council to serve on the council, special task forces, technical 
subcommittees and standing committees.  Other agencies may 
be included but the following agencies shall be represented 
through ex-officio membership:  The Wisconsin Departments of: 
Revenue, Work Force Development, Regulation and Licensing, 
Veteran Affairs and Children and Families, and the Office of 
Justice Assistance, the Wisconsin Technical Colleges System and 
the University of Wisconsin System.  

 
b. Ex-officio members of the council may participate in the 

discussions of the council, special task forces, technical 
subcommittees, and standing committees except that the 
chairperson may limit their participation as necessary to allow 
full participation by appointed members of the council subject to 
the appeal of the ruling of the chairperson. 

 

87

http://nxt.legis.state.wi.us/nxt/gateway.dll?f=xhitlist$xhitlist_x=Advanced$xhitlist_vpc=first$xhitlist_xsl=querylink.xsl$xhitlist_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title$xhitlist_d=%7bstats%7d$xhitlist_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:'subch.%20I%20of%20ch.%2014'%5d$xhitlist_md=target-id=0-0-0-10899
http://nxt.legis.state.wi.us/nxt/gateway.dll?f=xhitlist$xhitlist_x=Advanced$xhitlist_vpc=first$xhitlist_xsl=querylink.xsl$xhitlist_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title$xhitlist_d=%7bstats%7d$xhitlist_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:'15.09'%5d$xhitlist_md=target-id=0-0-0-10911
http://nxt.legis.state.wi.us/nxt/gateway.dll?f=xhitlist$xhitlist_x=Advanced$xhitlist_vpc=first$xhitlist_xsl=querylink.xsl$xhitlist_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title$xhitlist_d=%7bstats%7d$xhitlist_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:'15.09(1)(b)'%5d$xhitlist_md=target-id=0-0-0-12283


c. Ex-officio members will serve four-year terms.   
 

d. An ex-officio member shall be allowed to sit with the council and 
participate in discussions of agenda items, but shall not be 
allowed to vote on any matter coming before the council or any 
committee of the council, or to make any motion regarding any 
matter before the council. 

 
e. An ex-officio member may not be elected as an officer of the 

council. 
 

f. An ex-officio member shall observe all rules, regulations and 
policies applicable to statutory members of the council, and any 
other conditions, restrictions or requirements established or 
directed by vote of a majority of the statutory members of the 
council 

 
2.5 Selection of Officers 
 

Unless otherwise provided by law, at its first meeting in each year the 
council shall elect a chairperson, vice-chairperson and secretary from 
among its members. Any officer may be reelected for successive 
terms. For any council created under the general authority of s. 15.04 
(1) (c), the constitutional officer or secretary heading the department 
or the chief executive officer of the independent agency in which such 
council is created shall designate an employee of the department or 
independent agency to serve as secretary of the council and to be a 
voting member thereof. 

 
2.6 Terms of Voting Members 
 

a. Voting members shall remain on the council until the effective 
date of their resignation, term limit or removal by the governor, 
or until their successors are named and appointed by the 
governor. 

 
b. Letter of resignation shall be sent to the governor and council 

chairperson. 
 

c. Each voting member or designee of the council is entitled to one 
vote.   

 
2.7 Code of Ethics 
 

All members of the council are bound by the codes of ethics for public 
officials, Chapter 19, Wis. Stats., except that they are not required to 
file a statement of economic interest.  Ex-officio members are not 
required to file an oath of office. As soon as reasonably possible after 

88

http://nxt.legis.state.wi.us/nxt/gateway.dll?f=xhitlist$xhitlist_x=Advanced$xhitlist_vpc=first$xhitlist_xsl=querylink.xsl$xhitlist_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title$xhitlist_d=%7bstats%7d$xhitlist_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:'15.04(1)(c)'%5d$xhitlist_md=target-id=0-0-0-11899
http://nxt.legis.state.wi.us/nxt/gateway.dll?f=xhitlist$xhitlist_x=Advanced$xhitlist_vpc=first$xhitlist_xsl=querylink.xsl$xhitlist_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title$xhitlist_d=%7bstats%7d$xhitlist_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:'15.04(1)(c)'%5d$xhitlist_md=target-id=0-0-0-11899


appointment or commencement of a conflicting interest and before 
voting on any grant, members shall reveal any actual or potential 
conflict of interest.  Chapter 19.46 of Wisconsin State Statutes states 
that no state public official may take any official action substantially 
affecting a matter in which the official, a member of his or her 
immediate family, or an organization with which the official is 
associated has a substantial financial interest or use his or her office or 
position in a way that produces or assists in the production of a 
substantial benefit, direct or indirect, for the official, one or more 
members of the official’s immediate family either separately or 
together, or an organization with which the official is associated.          
                  
 

2.8 Nondiscrimination 
 

The council will not discriminate because of age, race, religion, color, 
sex, national origin or ancestry, disability or association with a person 
with a disability, arrest or conviction record, sexual orientation, marital 
status or pregnancy, political belief, or affiliation, or military 
participation. 

 
2.9 Nomination Process for Appointed Members and Officers 
 

As per Article II, Section 2.1, the governor is required to appoint six 
citizen members.  In addition, the council elects the chairperson, vice-
chairperson and secretary, annually.  The council will follow this 
process when making recommendations to the governor concerning 
appointments and nominating a slate of officers: 

 
a. The council, along with the office of the governor and 

department staff, will monitor when council terms will expire.  It 
will also monitor the composition of the council with respect to 
the factors specified in Article II, Section 2.1. 

 
b. The vice-chairperson of the council shall convene a nominating 

committee and appoint a chairperson of that committee as 
needed to coordinate the process for all appointments to the 
council as outlined in Article II, Section 2 and annually put forth 
a slate of officers as identified in Article II Sections 3.1, 3.2 and 
3.3. The Council Chairperson may ask for nominations from the 
floor to bring forth nominations in addition to the slate of officers 
brought forth by the nominating committee.  The nominating 
committee shall make recommendations to the council regarding 
nominations and appointments prior to the September council 
meeting and have such other duties as assigned by the council. 

  
c. The nominating committee of the council, with support of bureau 

staff, will publicize upcoming vacancies, ensuring that publicity 

89



includes interested and underrepresented groups, including 
alcohol, tobacco and other drug abuse agencies, alcohol, tobacco 
and other drug abuse stakeholder groups, consumers, and 
providers.  Publicity materials will clearly state that council 
appointments are made by the governor.  Materials will also 
state that the governor normally considers the council's 
recommendations in making council appointments. 

 
d. While any person may apply directly to the governor according to 

the procedures of that office, all applicants will be asked to 
provide application materials to the council as well.  Bureau staff 
will make contact with the office of the governor as necessary to 
keep the committee informed regarding applicants, including 
those that may have failed to inform the committee of their 
application.   

 
e. Applicants shall provide a letter of interest or cover letter, along 

with a resume and any other materials requested by the office of 
the governor.  The nominating committee, in consultation with 
department staff, may request additional materials.  The 
nominating committee, with support of bureau staff, will collect 
application materials from nominees, including nominees 
applying directly to the governor.  The nominating committee or 
staff will acknowledge each application, advising the applicant 
regarding any missing materials requested by the nominating 
committee.  The nominating committee or staff will review each 
application to ensure that all required nomination papers have 
been completed. 

 
f. The nominating committee may establish questions to identify 

barriers to attendance and other factors related to ability to 
perform the function of a member of the state council on alcohol 
and other drug abuse and to identify any accommodations 
necessary to overcome potential barriers to full participation by 
applicants.  The nominating committee may interview applicants 
or designate members and/or staff to call applicants.  Each 
applicant shall be asked the standard questions established by 
the committee. 

 
g. The nominating committee shall report to the full council 

regarding its review of application materials and interviews.  The 
report shall include the full roster of applicants as well as the 
committee's recommendations for appointment. 

 
h. The council shall promptly act upon the report of the nominating 

committee.  Council action shall be in the form of its 
recommendation to the governor.  Department staff shall convey 
the council's recommendation to the office of the governor.  

90



 
2.10 Removal from Office  
 

The Governor may remove appointed members from the council.  The 
council may recommend removal but the Governor makes the final 
decision regarding removal. 

 
Section 3. Officers 
 
3.1 Chairperson 
 

The chairperson is the presiding officer and is responsible for carrying 
out the council's business including that motions passed be acted upon 
in an orderly and expeditious manner and assuring that the rights of 
the members are recognized.  The chairperson may appoint a designee 
to preside at a meeting if the vice-chairperson is unable to preside in 
their absence.  The chairperson is also responsible for organizing the 
work of the council through its committee structure, scheduling council 
meetings and setting the agenda.  The chairperson may serve as an 
ex-officio member of each council committee. The chairperson shall 
represent the positions of the council before the legislature, governor 
and other public and private organizations, unless such responsibilities 
are specifically delegated to others by the council or chairperson.  The 
agenda is the responsibility of the chairperson, who may consult with 
the executive committee or other council members as necessary. 

 
3.2 Vice-Chairperson 
 

The vice-chairperson shall preside in the absence of the chairperson 
and shall automatically succeed to the chair should it become vacant 
through resignation or removal of the chairperson until a new 
chairperson is elected. The vice-chairperson shall also serve as the 
council representative on the governor's committee for people with 
disabilities (GCPD).  If unable to attend GCPD meetings, the vice-
chairperson's designee shall represent the council.  

 
3.3 Secretary 
 

The secretary is a member of the executive Committee as per Article 
IV, Section 5.  The secretary is also responsible for carrying out the 
functions related to attendance requirements as per Article III, Section 
6. 

 
3.4 Past Chairperson 
 

The immediate past chairperson shall serve as a member of the council 
until expiration of their appointed term, and may serve as an ex-officio 

91



member during the term of her or his successor if the term of office as 
member of the council has expired.  
 

3.5    Vacancies 
 

In the event a vacancy occurs among the Officers (Chairperson, Vice-
Chairperson, or Secretary) of the State Council on Alcohol and Other 
Drug Abuse, the following procedure should be followed:  In the event 
of a vacancy of the Chairperson, the Vice-Chairperson assumes the 
responsibility of Chairperson until such time as new Officers are 
elected according to the procedures outlined in the By-Laws.  In the 
event of a vacancy of the Vice-Chairperson, the Secretary assumes the 
responsibility of the Vice-Chairperson until such time as new Officers 
are elected according to the procedures outlined in the By-Laws.  In 
the event of a vacancy of the Secretary, the Chairperson shall appoint 
a replacement from the statutory membership until such time as new 
Officers are elected according to the procedures outlined in the By-
Laws. 
 

 
 

ARTICLE III  
 

Council Meetings 
 
Section 1. Council Year 
 
The council year shall begin at the same time as the state fiscal year, July 1. 
 
Section 2. Meetings 
 
2.1 Regular and special meetings 
 

Regular meetings shall be held at least four times per year at dates 
and times to be determined by the council.  Special meetings may be 
called by the chairperson or shall be called by the chairperson upon the 
written request of three members of the council. 

 
2.3 Notice of meetings 
 

The council chairperson shall give a minimum of seven days written 
notice for all council meetings.  An agenda shall accompany all meeting 
notices.  Public notice shall be given in advance of all meetings as 
required by Wisconsin's Open Meetings Law.  If a meeting date is 
changed, sufficient notice shall be given to the public. 

 
2.3 Quorum 
 

92



A simple majority (51%) of the membership qualified to vote shall 
constitute a quorum to transact business.   

 
Section 3. Public Participation 
 

Consistent with the Wisconsin Open Meetings law, meetings are open 
and accessible to the public. 

 
Section 4. Conduct of Meetings 
 
4.1 Meetings shall be conducted in accordance with the latest revision of 

Robert's Rules of Order, unless they are contrary to council by-laws or 
federal or state statutes, policies or procedures. 

 
Section 5. Agendas 
 
5.1 Agendas shall include approval of minutes from prior meetings, any 

action items recommended by a committee, an opportunity for public 
comment, and other appropriate matters. 

 
5.2 Requests for items to be included on the agenda shall be submitted to 

the chairperson two weeks prior to the meeting. 
 
Section 6. Attendance Requirements 
 
6.1 All council members are expected to attend all meetings of the council. 

Attendance means presence in the room for more than half of the 
meeting. 

 
6.2 Council members who are sick, hospitalized or who have some other 

important reason for not attending should notify the secretary or the 
secretary's designee at least a week before the meeting.  If that is not 
possible, notice should be given as soon as possible. 

 
6.3 Any member of the council who has two unexcused absences from  

meetings within any twelve month period will be contacted by the 
secretary of the council to discuss the reasons for absence and 
whether the member will be able to continue serving.  Appointed 
members who do not believe that they can continue should tender 
their resignation in writing to the secretary of the council.   Any 
resignations will be announced to the council and forwarded to the 
appointing authority. 

 
6.4 At any time the secretary of the council, after consultation with the 

appointed member, believes that a member will not be able to fulfill 
the duties of membership, he or she should bring the matter to the 
chairperson.  When the chairperson confirms that recommendation, he 
or she shall place the matter on the next council agenda.  The 

93



chairperson shall ensure that the member at issue is given notice that 
the council will consider a recommendation to the appointing authority 
regarding the membership.  When the council, after the member at 
issue is given the opportunity to be heard, agrees with the 
recommendation, it shall recommend to the appointing authority that 
the member be removed from the council and a replacement 
appointed to fulfill the member's term. 

 
6.5 If a statutory member or their designee are absent from two meetings 

within a year, they will be contacted by the secretary of the council to 
discuss the reasons for absence and whether the member will be able 
to continue serving.  In the event that a statutory member believes 
they are unable to continue, the secretary of the council shall inform 
the council chairperson and upon confirmation the chairperson will 
provide written notice to the governor of the need for an alternate or 
replacement.   

 
Section 7. Staff Services 
 

The division of mental health and substance abuse services shall 
provide staff services.  Staff services shall include: record of 
attendance and prepare minutes of meetings; prepare draft agendas; 
arrange meeting rooms; prepare correspondence for signature of the 
chairperson; offer information and assistance to council committees; 
analyze pending legislation and current policy and program issues; 
prepare special reports, and other materials pertinent to council 
business. 

 
Section 8. Reimbursement of Council and Committee Members 
 

According to Section 15.09 of Wisconsin Statutes:  Members of a 
council shall not be compensated for their services, but, except as 
otherwise provided in this subsection, members of councils created by 
statute shall be reimbursed for their actual and necessary expenses 
incurred in the performance of their duties, such reimbursement in the 
case of an elective or appointive officer or employee of this state who 
represents an agency as a member of a council to be paid by the 
agency which pays his or her salary. 
 

ARTICLE IV 
 
Committees 
 
Section 1.  Committee Structure 
 
1.1 There shall be an executive committee as provided below. The 

executive committee is a standing committee of the council. 
 

94



1.2 The council may establish other standing committees and 
subcommittees as necessary or convenient to conduct its business.  Of 
the standing committees established by the state council on alcohol 
and other drug abuse, at least one shall have a focus on issues related 
to the prevention of alcohol, tobacco and other drug abuse, at least 
one shall have a focus on issues related to cultural diversity, at least 
one shall have a focus on issues related to interdepartmental 
coordination, at least one shall have a focus on issues related to the 
intervention and treatment of alcohol, tobacco and other drug abuse, 
and at least one shall have a focus on issues related to the planning 
and funding of alcohol and other drug abuse services.   Subcommittees 
are a subset of a standing committee.  Subcommittees are standing 
committees, which by another name is a permanent committee.  
Standing committees meet on a regular or irregular basis dependent 
upon their enabling act, and retain any power or oversight claims 
originally given them until subsequent official actions of the council 
(changes to law or by-laws) disbands the committee.  Of the standing 
subcommittees established by the state council on alcohol and other 
drug abuse, at least one shall have a focus on children youth and 
families and is a subcommittee of the intervention and treatment 
committee, at least one shall have a focus on the Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA) for deaf, deafblind and hard of hearing and is a 
subcommittee of the cultural diversity committee, at least one shall 
have a focus on cultural competency and is a subcommittee of the 
cultural diversity committee, and at least one shall have a focus on 
epidemiology and is a subcommittee of the prevention committee. 

 
Ad-hoc committees are established to accomplish a particular task and 
are to be temporary, with the charge being well-defined and linked to 
SCAODA’s strategic plan, not to exceed duration of twelve calendar 
months.  Ad-hoc committees are formed by standing committee chairs. 
 Ad-hoc committees must report their progress at the meeting of their 
standing committee.  Ad-hoc committees can be granted extensions by 
the standing committee chair.   
 
 It is the intent of this section that: 
 

• There should be periodic review of the structure and 
progress of the work of the committees, subcommittees 
and ad-hoc committees. 

• If the officers have concerns about the work of the 
standing committees, subcommittees or ad-hoc 
committees, they could convene an executive committee 
meeting to discuss options, “for the good of the order.” 

• The intent of this group is to recommend that ad-hoc 
committees be time-limited (recommend one year) and the 
committee chair determines if the work should go forward 
beyond the original charge. 

95



• The charge should be well-defined and linked to SCAODA’s 
strategic plan. 

• The committee chairs should be primarily responsible for 
creating and disbanding ad-hoc groups. 

• The committee chairs should be responsible for monitoring 
the work and duration of the work in coordination with 
SCAODA. 

 
1.3 Committees may determine their own schedules subject to direction 

from the full council. 
 
Section 2. Composition of Committees  
 
2.1  Council committees may include members of the public as well as 

council members. 
 
2.2 The council chairperson may appoint a chairperson who must be a 

member of the council, for each committee. The council chairperson, 
with the advice of the committee chairperson may appoint other 
committee members. 

 
2.3 Committees may designate subcommittees including ad hoc 

committees, as necessary or convenient subject to limitation by the full 
council.   

 
2.4 A council member shall not chair more than one committee. 
 
2.5 A committee chairperson’s term shall not exceed the length of their 

appointment or four years whichever comes first.  With the majority 
vote of the council, a chairperson may be reappointed. 

 
Section 3. Requirements for all Committees 
 
3.1 A motion or resolution creating a committee shall designate the 

mission and duties of the committee.  The council may also specify 
considerations for the chairperson to follow in appointing committee 
chairpersons and members and such other matters as appropriate. 

 
3.2 All committee members are expected to attend all meetings of the 

committee. Attendance means presence in the room for more than half 
of the meeting. 

 
3.3 Any committee may authorize participation by telephone conference or 

similar medium that allows for simultaneous communication between 
members as permitted by law. 

 
3.4 Committee members who are sick, hospitalized or who have some 

other important reason for not attending should notify the chairperson 

96



or the chairperson's designee at least a week before the meeting.  If 
that is not possible, notice should be given as soon as possible. 

 
3.5 Any committee member who has two unexcused absences within a 

twelve month period will be contacted by the committee chairperson to 
discuss the reasons for absence and whether the member will be able 
to continue serving. Members who do not believe that they can 
continue should tender their resignation in writing to the committee 
chairperson.  Any resignations will be announced to the council 
chairperson and to the committee. 

 
3.6 The committee chairperson may remove committee members, other 

than executive committee members, after notice of proposed removal 
to and an opportunity to be heard by the member consistently with 
this process.   

 
Section 4. Requirements for Committee Chairpersons 
 
The chairperson of each committee is responsible for: 
 

a. Ensuring that the by-laws and every applicable directive of the 
council are followed by the committee as indicated in Chapters 
15.09, 14.017 and 14.24 of Wisconsin Statutes; 

 
b. Ensuring that recommendations of the committee are conveyed 

to the full council; 
 

c. Submitting meeting minutes in the approved format to the 
council; and 

 
d. Coordinating work with other committees where items could be 

of mutual interest. 
 
Section 5. Executive Committee 
 
5.1 The executive committee shall be comprised of at least three 

members, including the council chairperson, vice-chairperson and 
secretary. The immediate past chairperson of the council may also be 
invited by the council chairperson to be a member of the executive 
committee.    

 
5.2 The executive committee will have the following responsibilities: 
 

a. Provide policy direction to and periodically evaluate the 
performance of the council and its activities relating to direction 
from the division of mental health and substance abuse services.  

 
b. Meet at the request of the chairperson as needed; 

97



 
c. Provide for an annual review of the by-laws; 

 
d. Act on behalf of the council when a rapid response is required, 

provided that any such action is reported to the council at its 
next meeting for discussion and ratification; and 

 
e. Other duties designated by the council. 

 
5.3 Rapid Response  
 

The executive committee may act on behalf of the full council only 
under the following circumstances: 
 

a. When specifically authorized by the council; 
 

b. When action is needed to implement a position already taken by 
the council; 

 
c. Except when limited by the council, the executive committee 

may act upon the recommendation of a committee, other than 
the executive committee, if such action is necessary before a 
council meeting may reasonably be convened, provided that if 
more than one committee has made differing recommendations 
concerning the subject, the executive committee may not act 
except to request further study of the subject; or 

 
d. Except when limited by the council, the executive committee, by 

unanimous consent, may take such other action as it deems 
necessary before a council meeting may reasonably be 
convened. 

 
ARTICLE V 

 
Amendments 
 
The by-laws may be amended, or new by-laws adopted, after thirty days 
written notice to council members by a two-thirds vote of the full council 
membership present at a regularly scheduled meeting. 
 

98



DRAFT MEMORANDUM TO STATE COUNCIL AND ADVISORY GROUP 
MEMBERS RE: ARRANGEMENTS FOR OVERNIGHT ACCOMMODATIONS 
 
 
The Division of Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services has been notified that the 
Division may not use a state credit card, called a “p-card” in state government, to cover 
the cost of non-DHS employee hotel, airfare and other business expenses for attending 
DMHSAS meetings or conferences.  In order to be reimbursed, non-DHS personnel, 
including Council and Advisory Group Members, will need to first obtain a state vendor 
number using the attached form in order to be registered in the state system.  Then after 
the expense has been incurred, the individual submits a travel reimbursement voucher. 
 
The reason for this restriction on state p-cards is because the state’s accountability plan 
for the use of the p-cards assures that state p-cards will only be used for expenses that 
DHS can identify as tax-free. In some instances, for some individuals, travel 
reimbursements may be taxable income.  
 
According to Section 15.09 of Wisconsin Statutes: “Members of a council shall not be 
compensated for their services, but, except as otherwise provided in this subsection, 
members of councils created by statute shall be reimbursed for their actual and necessary 
expenses incurred in the performance of their duties, such reimbursement in the case of 
an elective or appointive officer or employee of this state who represents an agency as a 
member of a council to be paid by the agency which pays his or her salary.” 
 
This state law requires a reimbursement mechanism for actual and necessary expenses of 
Council members.   
 
In addition another part of state law addresses advisory bodies as follows: 
15.04(1)(c)       
(c) Advisory bodies. In addition to any councils specifically created by law, create and 
appoint such councils or committees as the operation of the department or independent 
agency requires. Members of councils and committees created under this general 
authority shall serve without compensation, but may be reimbursed for their actual 
and necessary expenses incurred in the performance of their duties and, if such 
reimbursement is made, such reimbursement in the case of an officer or employee of this 
state who represents an agency as a member of such a council or committee shall be paid 
by the agency which pays the officer's or employee's salary. 
 

99

http://www.legis.state.wi.us/statutes/Stat0015.pdf


SCAODA Organization Chart 
May 2012 

 
1. Cultural Diversity Committee  

a. Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) For Deaf, Deafblind and Hard of Hearing Sub-Committee  
b. Cultural Competency Sub-Committee 

2. Interdepartmental Coordinating Committee 
3. Intervention and Treatment Committee 

a. Children Youth and Family Sub-Committee 
4. Planning and Funding Committee 
5. Prevention / SPF-SIG Advisory Committee  

a. 911 Good Samaritan Law Ad-Hoc Committee 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

       
 

SCAODA 

CULTURAL DIVERSITY 
COMMITTEE 

INTERVENTION AND 
TREATMENT 
COMMITTEE 

 

PREVENTION / SPF-SIG 
ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

PLANNING AND 
FUNDING 

COMMITTEE 

911 GOOD 
SAMARITAN LAW 

AD-HOC 
COMMITTEE 

INTERDEPARTMENTAL 
COORDINATING 

COMMITTEE 

CHILDREN YOUTH 
AND FAMILY 

SUB-COMMITTEE 

AMERICANS WITH 
DISABILITIES ACT 
(ADA) FOR DEAF, 
DEAFBLIND AND 

HARD OF 
HEARING 

SUB-COMMITTEE 

CULTURAL 
COMPETENCY 

SUB-COMMITTEE 

100



Department of Health Services
Division of Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services

Functions

Administrator

Mendota Mental Health Inst Winnebago Mental Health Inst

Bureau of Treatment, Prevention & Recovery

Wisconsin Resource Center Sand Ridge Secure 
Treatment Center

Community Forensics

Executive Staff Assistant

Mental Health Services Substance Abuse Services 

MH Programs Administrative Rules
Community MH Block Grant Admin
Federal Block Grants Data Reporting
MH Contracts Administration
WI Council on Mental Health Staffing
Community Recovery Svcs Prog Admin
Crisis Intervention Services Programs
Community Support Programs
Consumer / Peer Recovery Center Grants
Preadmission Screening & Resident
    Review (PASARR) Contract / Client 
    Appeals 
Homelessness and MH Issues
Insts for Mental Disease Funding / Policy
MH / SA Quality Improvement Projects
MH / SA Evaluation and Data Mgmt
Inpatient Psychiatric Svcs Policy / Rules
Emergency Detention Policy / Process
Confidentiality Policies / 
   HIPAA Compliance  MH /SA

Adult Forensics
Adult Civil Inpatient Care
Juvenile Treatment Center
Program of Assertive Treatment
(PACT) – Community Support
   Model to Reduce the Risk
   of Hospitalization

Substance Abuse Services
   Administrative Rules (DHS 75)
SA Block Grant Administration
SA Grants / Contracts Administration
State Opiod Treatment Authority / 
    Methadone Programs 
Women’s SA Treatment Grants / 
    Referrals
Intoxicated Driver Program
Injection Drug Use Treatment / 
   Street Outreach
Access to Recovery Grant
Treatment Alternative Programs
SA Treatment & Re-entry Services -
   Community Corrections
SA Treatment Svcs - Child Welfare Families
SA Treatment Svcs - TANF Families
Intercultural Treatment & Prevention Svcs
Disaster Response Crisis Counseling
    FEMA Grants
State Council on AODA Staffing
SA Prevention Grants and Data Analysis
Alliance for Wisconsin Youth
Healthiest WI 2020 for AODA

Integrated Services

MH / AODA Functional Screen Policy / Mgmt
Consumer Relations / Services
Peer Specialist Certification
COP MH / AODA Clinical Oversight
Person Centered Plng Grants / Consultation
Integrated Treatment Policy
SBIRT Grants Mgmt / Consultations
Integrated Treatment Policy
Supported Employment Grants
Recovery Based Systems Consultation
Comprehensive Community Services
Evidence-Based Practices Info Dissemination
Adult MH Clinical Consultation
Elder MH /SA Clinical Consultation
Coordination of Medicaid Policy / County Svcs

Adult Forensics
Adult Civil – counties contract with 
   WMHI
Civil/Voluntary Youth
Mental Illness/Developmental 
   Disability Adult and Youth
MH/AODA Adult and Youth
Outpatient Day School -
   paid for by the School Districts

Prison Inmate Treatment for
   Mentally Ill Prisoners
Sexually Violent Persons
Admission and Assessments
Sexually Violent Persons Unit

Evaluation of SVP Individuals 
   Under Ch. 980, Stats. (initial
   evaluation pre-trial, periodic
   re-examinations)
Treatment of SVP Individuals
   Held Under Ch. 980 Stats. 
   (assessment, treatment,
   treatment reporting)
Provision of safe/secure
   institutional setting
Operation of the community
   supervised release program

Policy Initiatives Advisor–Admin 

Children, Youth & Families Unit

Coordinated Services Teams Prog / Grants
Hospital Diversion Programs for Children
Children Come First Advisory Committee
MH Prevention / Healthiest WI 2020 for MH
Suicide Prevention
Infant Mental Health Initiatives
Youth Transitions Grant
Adolescent SA Treatment Grants / Consult
MH Children & Youth Services
Day Treatment Administrative Rules
Gambling Awareness
Trauma Informed Care Consultation
Monitoring / Reduction in Use of Seclusion & Restraint
Family Support Grants
WI United for Mental Health – Anti-Stigma Efforts
Child Care Grants to Support Women in Treatment

Client Rights OfficeDeputy Administrator

April 2011

Conditional Release Program
Outpatient Competency Evaluations
Outpatient Competency Restoration
Opening Avenues for Re-Entry Success

Budget & Operations

Financial Management Including:
   Budget Development
   Expenditure Monitoring U& Control
   Hospital Rate-Setting
   Billings & Collections Policy
Legislation
Strategic Planning
Program Performance Measurement
Data Gathering & Analysis
Information Technology Management
Contracts & Grants Management

101



Directions to American Family’s Training 
Center and Auditorium 

 

 

 

TURN HERE 

Enter Here 

Park Here 

American Family Drive 

102


	2-Goals Tobacco Policy Meeting dates
	3-Strategic Plan Goals 2010-2014
	4-This Page Intentionally Left Blank
	5-Tobacco Free Environment 2009
	6-This Page Intentionally Left Blank
	7-SCAODA 2012 meeting dates
	8-SCAODA 2013 meeting dates

	3-SCAODA agenda121412
	4-2012 SCAODA Meeting Minutes June 8 Approved
	5-2012 SCAODA Meeting Minutes September 7 Draft
	6-Exct Cmte Aproved Minutes July 13 2012
	7-DCF Appointment Letter
	8-Diversity Approved Minutes 71612
	9-Diversity Approved Minutes 82012
	10-Diversity Approved Agenda101912
	11-ITC 10-9-2012 Minutes (Approved)
	Welcome, Introductions, and Review of Minutes – Norm Briggs/Roger Frings
	Norm brought the meeting to order at 10:10am with introductions.  The August meeting minutes were reviewed and approved as written (motion by Dan and seconded by Francine).

	12-ITC Agenda 11-13-2012
	I. Welcome, Introductions and Review of October Minutes–  10:00am – 10:10am
	Norm Briggs/Roger Frings

	13-ITC Motion WiNTiP Nicotine Cessation Motion
	14-P&F Approved Minutes 81712
	15-P&F Agenda 111612
	16-P&F Public Forum notes MH&SAS Conference October 23-24 2012 (approved)
	PUBLIC FORUM0F
	Meeting Notes

	17-P&F motion - support DPI funding 111612
	SCAODA Motion Introduction

	18-P&F motion - intoxicant definition 111612
	SCAODA Motion Introduction

	19-P&F article - Treatment is the best way to fight crime
	jsonline.com
	James E. Causey - Treatment is the best way to fight crime


	20-P&F article - Groups say state should fund treatment over incarceration
	madison.com
	Groups say state should fund treatment over incarceration


	21-Prevention CommitteeApproved  Minutes081512
	Prevention Committee Meeting
	August 15, 2012
	9:30 a.m. – 1:00 p.m.

	22-Prevention Committee Agenda 101812
	23-Prevention Motion to form Marijuana Ad Hoc Committee 101812
	24-StateExciseTaxRevenueNov2012
	25-APPROVED SCAODA Bylaws amended 9-09-11
	BY-LAWS
	As Approved
	June 6, 2008
	ARTICLE I
	ARTICLE III


	26-By-laws ConsumerReimbursementPCardISsue
	DRAFT MEMORANDUM TO STATE COUNCIL AND ADVISORY GROUP MEMBERS RE: ARRANGEMENTS FOR OVERNIGHT ACCOMMODATIONS

	27SCAODA Organization Chart Revised 05-2012
	28-DMHSAS org chart & functions 2011
	29-Directions to American Family
	1-SCAODA Cover.pdf
	1-SCAODA Cover
	Michael Waupoose SCOTT WALKER
	Chairperson Governor

	2-This Page Intentionally Left Blank

	1-SCAODA Cover.pdf
	Mark Seidl SCOTT WALKER
	Chairperson Governor

	01-SCAODA Cover.pdf
	Michael Waupoose SCOTT WALKER
	Chairperson Governor


	Q3cGo4Ni0xODEwODI1ODEuaHRtbAA=: 
	form1: 
	k: 
	s: 

	input1: enter your e-mail address
	input0: 

	NlP0Fjcm9iYXRXZWJDYXBUSUQ0AA==: 
	form0: 
	lsd: AVpKYZ0a
	href: http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/treatment-is-the-best-way-to-fight-crime-id7pj86-181082581.html
	action: recommend
	nobootload: 
	iframe_referer: http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/treatment-is-the-best-way-to-fight-crime-id7pj86-181082581.html
	ref: 
	button0: 
	lsd_(1): AVpKYZ0a
	href_(1): http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/treatment-is-the-best-way-to-fight-crime-id7pj86-181082581.html
	action_(1): recommend
	nobootload_(1): 
	iframe_referer_(1): http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/treatment-is-the-best-way-to-fight-crime-id7pj86-181082581.html
	ref_(1): 


	Fsc2U/QWNyb2JhdFdlYkNhcFRJRDcA: 
	form0: 
	lsd: AVpKYZ0a
	href: http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/treatment-is-the-best-way-to-fight-crime-id7pj86-181082581.html
	action: recommend
	nobootload: 
	iframe_referer: http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/treatment-is-the-best-way-to-fight-crime-id7pj86-181082581.html
	ref: 
	button0: 
	lsd_(1): AVpKYZ0a
	href_(1): http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/treatment-is-the-best-way-to-fight-crime-id7pj86-181082581.html
	action_(1): recommend
	nobootload_(1): 
	iframe_referer_(1): http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/treatment-is-the-best-way-to-fight-crime-id7pj86-181082581.html
	ref_(1): 
	lsd_(1)_(2): AVpKYZ0a
	href_(1)_(2): http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/treatment-is-the-best-way-to-fight-crime-id7pj86-181082581.html
	action_(1)_(2): recommend
	nobootload_(1)_(2): 
	iframe_referer_(1)_(2): http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/treatment-is-the-best-way-to-fight-crime-id7pj86-181082581.html
	ref_(1)_(2): 
	button0_(1): 
	lsd_(1)_(2)_(3): AVpKYZ0a
	href_(1)_(2)_(3): http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/treatment-is-the-best-way-to-fight-crime-id7pj86-181082581.html
	action_(1)_(2)_(3): recommend
	nobootload_(1)_(2)_(3): 
	iframe_referer_(1)_(2)_(3): http://www.jsonline.com/news/opinion/treatment-is-the-best-way-to-fight-crime-id7pj86-181082581.html
	ref_(1)_(2)_(3): 


	ExYTMtMDAxYTRiY2Y4ODdhLmh0bWwA: 
	form1: 
	input1: 
	q: 
	z: Madison,WI
	input11: 
	email: 
	first: 
	last: 
	input23: 

	form2: 
	answer: Off
	input3: 


	U/QWNyb2JhdFdlYkNhcFRJRDEzAA==: 
	form0: 
	button0: 




